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CorresLor, county of BuckiNemAM, 8 miles (N.E.)
from Ivinghoe, comprising the chapelry of Dagnell, and
the ‘hamlets of Hudnall and Northall, and containing
1378 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocesé of Lincoln,
rated in the Jgme's books at £13. 17., endowed with £8
per annum private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in' the patronage of the Trustees of the late Earl of
Bridgewater. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a
handsome edifice, sitnated on an isolated hill, which has
much the appearance of an ancient fortress. At Dag-
nell there was formerly a chantry chapel, dedicated to
All Saints.

EDDLESTON, a township in the parish of Actox,

hundred’of NanTwicH, county palatine of CazsTer, 2

miles (8.W.by W.) from Nantwich, containing 95 inha-
bitants.

EDDLETHORP, a township in the parish of Wgs-
Tow, wapentake of Buckrose, East riding of the county
of York, 3% miles (8.) from New Malton, containing 62
inhabitants.

EDECLIFT, a township in the parish of Cruw,
hundred of Punsx.ow county of Saror, containing 419
inhabitants.

EDEN (CASTLE), a parish in the southern divi-
sion of Easingron ward, county palatine of Durmam,
105 miles (E. by 8.) from Durham, containing 281 inha-
bitants.” The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Durham, endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of Rowland Burdon, Esq. The church, dedi-
cated to St. James, was rebuilt in 1764, at the ex-
pense. of Rowland Burdon, Esq., whose son and suc-
cessor enlarged it by the addition of two aisles. The
petty sessions for the division are held here. This was
a place of some note anterior to the Conquest. Robert
de Brus, by charter, granged the chapel of Eden,
which he had founded here, to the monks of St. Cuth-
bert, directing that a chapel should be built by the prior,
within four years afterwards, which was probably the
origin of the present parochial edifice. The ancient castle
has long fallen to ruins, and has beent succeeded by a
modern mansion. The Dene, a narrow glen about
four miles in length, through which runs the Eden
rivalet, abounds with scenery of a wild and romantic
descr!ption The skeleton of a human figure, and a
cunOud lass-vase, were found in 1775, beneath a cairn,

!mdred ynrds northward from the bridge, but
they were ‘not then removed: the cairn having been
subsequently re-opened, the former, from exposure to
the atmosphere, had mouldered into dust, and the latter
was then taken away.

'EDENBRIDGE, a parish in the hundred of Wes-
TerEAM, lathe of Surron at Howg, county of Kunr,

54 miles (8.) from Westerham, eéntalnmg 1454 inhabx

tants. The living is av‘iumge
tualcmcyofWemrhnﬂ
Ml&‘ Rochester. The chur

and St. Paul, has a tower surm .,, h%*ht’_“'fth'{
‘west end ; in ~arwm; , in which

112

EDG

and is heére crossed bya bridge, which in the Mﬁ
Roffensis is called Eddelnesbrege.

EDENFIELD, a chapelry in the parish 6! Bury,
hundred of SALI‘ORD, county palatine of LANCASTER, é'
miles (N. by W.) from Bury, with which the popuhti'd!t’ '
returned. The living is a perpetual euracy, in
archdeaconry and diocese of ~Chester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, £ 600 royal bounty, and £ 500
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Rector
of Bury. The manufacture of cotton is here carried
on to a considerable extent. A’'new road has lately'
been made to Blackburn.

EDENHALL, a parish in Learn ward county of
CumsrrraN, comprising the chapelry of Langwathby,
and the township of Edenball, and containing 501 inha-
bitants, of which number, 251 are in the township of
Edenhall, 3 miles (E.N. E) from Penrith, The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Carlisle, rated in the king's booksat £17.12.1,,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Car.
lisle. The church, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, is a sin-
gular and beautiful structure, with a low tower ; it con-
tains several monuments to the Musgraves. There is
a neat private chapel at Eden Hall, which is a large
handsome edifice, built in the style which prevailed in
the earlier part of the seventeenth century, and the
residence of the ancient family of the Musgraves. The
village is situated on the western bank of the river
Eden. The proceeds of £75, bequeathed by Sir Philip
Musgrave in 1759, are applied to the education of
children.

EDENHAM, a parish in the wapentake of Brrris-
LoE, parts of Kesreven, county of LincoLn, 3% miles
(W.N.w.) from Bourne, containing, with the hamlets
of Grinsthorpe, Ellsthorp, and Scottlesthorp, 657 in-
habitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, and in the patron-
age of Lord Gwydir gnd Lady Willoughby D'Ereshy.
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, has a Norman
door-way.

EDENSOR, a parish in the hundred of Hicu Pux,‘
county of Dersy, 2§ miles (E.N.E.) from B
containing, with Chatsworth and the hamlet of lsley,
752 inhabitants.  The living, formerly B vi rt\t:ed
in the king's books at £4.13. 4,, is now a perpe

in the archdeaconry of Berby and . e
of Lm‘:ﬁeld and Coventry, and in the e of
the Duke of Devonshire. The chur
St. Peter, contains uevie:l m};;:gu;me “the

Cavendish. e vi is m
thhh’z%hatswmth Park. The Duke of
£.30a‘yurin aid of a &
£5. 12, ‘per’ :
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tensive and handsome appendage to the town of Bir-

ingham, and consists of several spacious streets
well lighted with gas, containing many respectable
houses, exclusively of several substantial mansions in
detached situations, and numerous villas inhabited
chiefly by proprietors of factories in the town, by the
more opulent manufacturers, and private families : the
buildings are chiefly of stone and brick, coated with
Roman cement, and exhibit a great variety of architec-
tural style. Of the few ancient buildings which existed
previously to the erection of the modern town, the hall,
which was garrisoned for the parliament in the reign of
Charles I., and a private house called the Monument,
from the erection of a very high octagonal tower of
brick, near which passes the Roman Iknield-street, are
the principal now remaining. The subscription bowling-
green and pleasure-grounds are beautifully laid out and
well attended. The reservoir of the Birmingham
canal, which passes through the parish, an extensive
sheet of water covering nineteen acres, and excavated
to the depth of twenty feet, derives from the rich
foliage on its banks all the beauty of a small lake.
The church, an ancient structure, has been recently en-
larged, and carefully restored, with a due regard to the
preservation of its original character. The asylum for
the deaf and dumb, on the borders of the canal, is a
commodious edifice, resembling in some degree the an-
cient style of English architecture.

EDGBOLTON, atownship in that part of the parish
of Smawsury which is in the Whitchurch division of
the hundred of Braprorp (North), county of Savor,
8 miles (N.E. by N,) from Shrewsbury, containing, with
Muckleston and t Witchford, 457 inhabitants.

EDGCOTT, a parigh in the hundred of Crirring-
WarpEN, county of NorTHAMPTON, 6F miles (N.E. by
N.) from Banbury, containing 62 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £12, Thomas Carter, Esq. was patron in 1827.
The church is dedicated to St. James. In a vale called
Danes-moor, south of the village, a battle was fought
between the Saxons and the Danes; and.in the time of
Edward IV. a conflict took place between the houses of
York and Lancaster, when the former having been de-
feated, the Earl of Pembroke and his two brothers were
made prisoners and beheaded ; there mti three smt;ll
mounds in a triangular position upon the spot. 1In
1642, Charles I., with hil: two sons and a part of his
army, en Mhere previously to the battle of Edge-
: d the following day. :

a ip in the parish of Mu.mf higher
‘the hundred of Broxron, county palatine
, 3 miles (N. by E.) from Malpas, ngg

ything iuthe "‘;h.(:x,{;PAmswxcx, hun-
v, county of GLOUCESTER, containing
mp ‘%?Swor,

e

arish of Bbmnilﬁxw,
L containing 372

and diocese of Lincoln,
12 ). Johm Coker
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Esq. was patron in 1814. The ch i icated -
St. Michael, Wk Jn.daionind. 4o

EDGEFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Howr,
county of Norrovrk, 2§ miles (8.) from Holt, contain-
ing 680 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
m.‘chdeacunry and diccese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £11. 6. 8. John "arcon, Esq.
;:; patron in 1764. The church is dedicated to St.

T,

EDGE-HILL, a chapelry in the parish of WaLrox
on the HiLy, hundred of West Dxmlx)nr, county palatine
of LANCASTER, 1 mile (S.E.) from Liverpool. The po-
pulation is returned with the parish. The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester.
E. Mason, Esq. was patron in 1823. This is a pleasant
village, situated on rising ground on the road to Waver-
tree and Childwell: the Liverpool Botanic Garden is in
the vale bencath, and at a short distance from it. A
chapel, dedicated to St. Mary, has beén recently erected.
There is a place of worship for Baptists,

EDGE-HILL, a joint township with Burntwood
and Woodhouse, in that part of the parish of St. M-
cHAEL, LicarieLp, which is in the southern division
of the hundred of OrrrLow, county of Starrorp, 2%
miles (W.S.W,) from Lichfield, containing 675 inha-
bitants.

EDGERLEY, a township in that part of the parish
of ALprorp which is in the lower division of the
hundred of BroxTon, county palatine of CuEesTER,
containing 4 inhabitants.

EDGMOND, a parish in the Newport division of
the hundred of Braprorp (South), county of Savrop;
14 mile (W.) from Newport, comprising the chapelries
of Church-Aston and Tibberton, and the towaships of
Cherrington and Chetwynd-Aston, and containing 2163
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeacon-
ry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £46, 8. 14. J. K. Powell, Esq.
and others were patrons in 1811, The church is dedi-
cated to St. Peter. The Rev. Dryden Piggott, in 1734,
gave £200, the income arising from which is applied for
the clothing and education of poor children.

EDGTON, a parish in the hundred of PursrLow;
county of Savroe, 4} miles (E.S.E.) from Bishop's
Castle, containing, with the township of Brunslow, and
the extra-parochial liberty of Harderlea, 220 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicar-

of Clun, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese
of Hereford. The church is dedicated to St. Michael.
The river Ouny runs through the parish. i :

EDGWARE, a parish (formerly a market town) in
the hundred of Gorg, county of MIppLESEX, 8 miles
(N.W. by W.) from London, containing 551 inhabitan abitants.
This place, from its situation within a pleasant distance of
the metropolis, and the excellence of the road leading o
it through an almost uninterrupted succession of elegant
villas and agreeable scenery, has become the residence of
numerous opulent and respectable families. The.
Watling-street, leading to the ancient city of Perulam,
passes over a bridge near the entrance to the v ;
which consists of one principal street, of which
western side is in the parish of Little Stanmore, or
Whitchurch, where, in_the éhrly part of the cighteenth
century, James, Duke of Chandos, at an expense of
£250,000, erected the magnificent dnvf Canons, the



EDG

walls of which were twelve feet in thickness at the
base, and nine feet thick in the upper part; the pillars
of the hall and the steps of the grand staircase were
of the most beautiful marble, and the locks and hinges
of the doors were of silver; the internal decorations
were of the most splendid description, and the grounds
were adorned with a profuum of statuary; the house-
hold establishment was in every respect equal to the
splendour of this sumptuous mansion ; the chapel was
of like elegance, and richly embellished with paintings
of the Italian school : the most eminent composers
were employed in. the arrangement, and the most
eminent masters in the vocal and instrumental
formance of the musical services.
the duke, this noble mansion was taken down and
sold piecemeal : the columns formed part of the por-
tico. of Wanstead-house ; the marble staircase was
put up in the Earl of Chesterfield's residence in May-
fair, London; and the celebrated equestrian statue of
George 1. at present decorates the area of Leicester-
square. The village contains several respectable houses,
and is supplied with water from a well dug in 1822,
by .public subsecription. The market, formerly on
Thursday, has been discontinued, but an annual fair
is still held on the first Wednesday, Thursday, and
Friday, in Aungust, for cattle and toys: on the two last
days races are held, which are in general well attended.
are is within the jurisdiction of a court of requests
held at Brentford and Uxbridge, for the recovery of debts
under 40s. There are courts baron and leet annually on
the 1st of May ; and the petty sessions for the division
are held in that part of the village which is in the parish
of Little Stanmore, Sir William Blackstone mentions
a singular ancient custom as existing here, for the
lord of the manor to provide a minstrel or piper to
play for the amusement of the tenants, and there is
in the parish a small field still called Piper's Green.
The living is a perpetual curacy, but having been from
time immemorial endowed with the vicarial tithes, it
may be considered a vicarage mot in charge; it has
been further endowed with the rent of three houses in
Hosier-lane, London, by Mr. John Jones; it is in the
of Middlesex, and diocese of London,
and in the patronage of John Lee, L.L.D. The church,
dedicated to St. Margaret, with the exception of its
square. mbattled tower, which is of flint and stone, was
rebuilt of brick in 1763, and the interior was thoroughly
in 1822. An almshouse, containing four tene-
ments, with a to each, was founded for four
aged women, in 1680, by Samuel Atkimon, Esq., who en-
dowed it with lands at Oakley, in the county of Buck-
ingham, to which has been added a small bequest of
land at Kenton, in Middlesex, by Thomas Napier, Esq.,
producing together, exclusively of the rents of Harrod's
Green, given by Mr. Watts to the parish, and appropri-
audtothuch-:ity an annual income of £32, 10.
Charles. Day. E-q., “in 1828, founded almshouses for
five of and three of Little

-ﬂ,lpwamhel situated atﬂm ;
Wﬁl‘y at
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county of GLOUCESTER, 6 miles (N.w byw.) fgm
Cirencester, containing 134 inhabitants,

a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese o£ Glonoenu
rated in the king's books at £8, and in the pa

of Mrs. Westfalm.g The church, dedlmmd to St. Muy,
has some portions in the Norman style, and some of
later date. There is a bequest of £5, 5. per annum, by
Mrs. Joan Ridler, for teaching poor children, ‘

EDGWORTH, a township in the parish of Bomu,
hundred of SALrorp, county palatine of Laycasrer,
54 miles (N.N.E.) from Bolton, containing 1729 inha.
bitants. The Independents havea place of worship here,
There are several establishments in the neighbourhood,
for spinning and printing cotton. A school-room for
the education of poor children, and a dwelling-house
for the master, were erected in 1804, by subscriptions
amounting to £500.

EDINGHALL, otherwise EDINGALE, a pansh
partly in the northern division of the hundred of
Orrrow, county of Starrorp, and partly in the hun-
dred of Repron and GresLey, county of Dersy, 6
miles (N. by W.) from Tamworth. That part of the
parish which is in Staffordshire contains 224 inhabit-
ants, and the population of that part which is in Der-
byshirve is returned with the parish of Croxall. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdie-
tion of the Prebendary of Alrewas and Weeford in the
Cathedral Church of Lichfield, endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £300 royal bounty, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to the
Holy Trinity. An ancient raised way, in the direction
of Lullington in Derbyshire, passes through the. parish,
near which there is a tumulus. Edinghall is in the
honour of Tuthbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s. .

EDINGLY, a parish within the liberty of Sovra '
weLL and Scroosy, though locally in the wapen-
take of Thurgarton, county of Norrineuam, 23 miles
(W.N.W.) from Southwell, coutaining 344 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, rated in the king's
books at £4, endowed with £.800 royal bounty, and in
the peculiar jurisdiction and '
of the Collegiate Church of Southwdl
dedzcataed to St. Giles.. A school i

eight aged Edgware, :
Mnom,nndeﬂomdthmviﬁdm w%_dm
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mpnﬁma with sulphur and steel, said to be effica-
¢ious in scorbutic disorders. A tesselated pavement and
other Roman antiquities have been discovered.
© 'EDINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Wuor-
WELSDOWN, county of Wivrs, comprising the tythings
‘of Baynton with West Coulston, Edington, and Tin-
head, "and containing 1099 inhabitants, of which num-
ber, 549 are in the tything of Edington, 33 miles
(E.N.E.) from Westhury. %‘he living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salisbury,
endowed with £200 royal bounty, and £1200 parlia-
mentary grant.  G. W. Taylor, Esq. was patron in
1826." The church, dedicated to All Saints, is a hand-
‘gome cruciform structure with a tower rising from the
intersection.  William de Edington, a native of this
place, and successively Bishop of Winchester, Lord High
Treasurer, Chancellor of the Order of the Garter, and
Lord High Chancellor, in the reign of Edward I11,, be-
sides partly rebuilding the church, founded, about 1347,
in honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, St. Catherine,
and All Saints, a college, consisting of a dean and
twelve ministers, of whom some were prebendaries;
for these were substituted, at the desire of the Black
Prince, in 1858, a ‘reformed order of Augustine friars,
called Bonhommes, under the government of a rector :
its yearly revenue at the suppression was estimated at
£521. 12. 5. The bishops of Salisbury had a palace
here, which was plundered and destroyed during the
rebellion of Jack Cade, in 1450, when Bishop Ayscough
was dragged from the altar of his chapel, where he was
officiating at mass, and stoned to death on a neigh-
uring hill. On an eminence about two miles from
the is a sfrong irregular intrenchment, called
Bratton , enclosing an area of twenty-three acres ;
and on ‘the south-western declivity of the same hill, a
remarkable figure of a white horse, in a walking posture,
is eut out, measuring one hundred feet both in length

und'!mgt.‘
- EDINGWORTH, a hamlet partly in the parish of
East BrenT, and partly in the parish of Lymrsuawm,
hindred of BrexT with WriNeToN, county of SoMER-
sur, 5§ miles (W. by 8.) from Axbridge. The population
is returned with the ive parishes. Here was
erly an alien priory of Benedictine monks, a cell to
the andy, which was granted
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king's books at £3.18, 4., and in'the pa e of
-Ehe Dean of Lincoln. The church is dedicated to St.

EDLINGHAM, a parish in the northern division
of Cogx_:rrn.;x.n :“dl’x counity of NORTHUMBERLAND,
comprising the chapelry of Bolton, and the townships
of AbMick, Broom-Park, Edlingham, Learchild, ]:ll?d
Lemmington, and containing 666 inhabitants, of which
number, 201 are in the township of Edlingham, 6 miles
(8. W.by W.) from Alnwick. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland,
and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at
£6. 14, 4., and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Durham. The church is dedicated to St.
John the Baptist. The river Aln runs through the pa-
rish, in which are parochial and Sunday schools. There
are some remains of Edlingham castle, built prior two
the reign of Henry II.

EDLINGTON, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of GarTrEE, parts of Linpsey, county
of Lincorn, 8% miles (N.W.) from Horncastle, con-
taining 263 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £8. 4. 7., and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Helen.

EDLINGTON, a parish in the southern division
of the wapentake of STrarrorTa and TrexuiLn, West
riding of the county of Yorx, 5% miles (8. W.bys.)
from Doncaster, containing 141 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of York, rated in the king's books at £9. Lord
Molesworth was patron in 1818. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Peter.

EDMONDBYERS, a parish in the western division
of CrrsTER ward, county palatine of DuruAm, com-
prising the chapelry of Hunstonworth, and the town-
ship of Edmondbyers, and containing 769 inhabitants,
of which number, 358 are in the township of Edmond-
byers, 12 miles (N.N.W.) from Wolsingham. The liv-
ing is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at £6.11.4.,
endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Dean and Chapter of Durham. The church is
dedicated to St. Edmund. The village, situated on the
southern bank of the Derwent, is irregularly built.
There is a smelting-mill, erected by the London Lead
Company, the neighbouring parish abounding with lead-
ore. A school-room was built in 1825, at the joint ex-
pense of the Dean and Chapter of Durham, and the
trustees of Lord Crewe.

EDMONDSLEY, a township in that part of the
parish of CuEsTER le STREET which is in ‘the middle
division of CrrsTEr ward, county palatine of Durnam,
5% miles (N.W.byN.) from Durham, containing 205
inhabitants. : i

- EDMONDSTRIP-BENHAM, a tything in that part
of the parish of KinvescLere which is inthe hun-
dred of Kinescrere, Kingsclere division of the county
of Sovraamprow, 15 mile (N.) from Kingsclere, with
which the population is returned. o
\ “EDMONBSTRiP-Wm,f!JW M‘Mm \
of the parish of Kingscrerg which is in the hu
of Krvescurs, Kingsclere divison of the county of

A - -N.' A }
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EDMONDTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of
Framranp, county of  Lercksrer, 7 miles (E. by 8.)
from Melton-Mowbray, containing 148 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the nrchdeacOnry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£14.12.8%., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

EDMONSHAM, a parish in that part of the hun-
dred of CrANBORNE which is in the Shaston (East) di-
vision of the county of Dorser, 14 mile (8. by E.) from
Cranborne, containing 262 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, rated in the king's books at £6. 5. The Earl
of Shaftesbury was patron in 1826. The church is de-
dicated to St. Nicholas. There is a chalybeate spring in
the parish.

EDMONTON, a parish in the hundred of Epmon-
ToN, county of MipprLesex, 7 miles (N.) from London,
containing 7900 inhabitants. This place, which had
risen into some consideration prior to the Conquest, is
in Dontesday-book called Zdelmeton, probably as having
been the residence of some distinguished personage
during the Heptarchy. The extensive forest in the
neighbourhood, of which Enfield Chase formed a part,
made it the resort of many individuals who oecasionally
retired. hither to enjoy the diversion of hunting, and
from its convenient distance from the metropolis, it
became the residence of many opulent families. The
village is pleasantly situated on the high road to Hert-
ford, along which it extends for more than a mile, con-
taining, exclusively of small dwellings, several ranges of
respectable, houses, and, in detached situations, many
elegant mansions and handsome villas ; it is well lighted
with gas, and amply supplied with water : the New River
winds ‘through several parts of the parish, producing a
pleasing and picturesque effect in the pleasure grounds
and meadows through which it runs, A considerable
coach ' manufactory has been established here within
the last thirty years, which affords employment to
more than sixty persons; and an extensive trade in
timber is carried on by means of the Lea river navigation,
which passes within three quarters of a mile of the village,
Fairs are held annually on St. Giles' and Ascension days,
on a part of Enfield Chase, near Southgate, in this parish,
under letters patent of James L., chiefly for pleasure. The
pettyuldomforthednmonneheldattheAngellnn
every alternate Friday. The jurisdiction of a court of
requests at Enfield, for the recovery of debts under
40s., exteld-tothilpmsh and a court leet and court
hlm are held on the Tuesday in Whitsun-week.
~; The parish comprises the divisions of Church- Sheet
Fore-Street, Bury-Street, and Southgate-Street. - “The
living is a vicarage, in the of Middlesex,
mddimdbndon,uudhthekhg‘dboohu
£18, and in the of the Dean and Chapter:of
St. Paul's, London. The church, dedicated to All Saints,
is a spacious modern brick:structure with an- old em.
battled tower ; the nave was rebuilt of brick in 1772,
;h::};‘p;l IWWSM and endowed

y Weld, Knt.; ‘another on
Winchmore Hill, dm«ummm of
hmm an expense

116

& TR TV

EDS

Baptists, the Society of Friends, Independents; and
Wesleyan Methodists. A charity school for boys was
foundedin 1624, by Mr. Edward Latymer, who bequeathed
a messuage at Edmonton, and lands at Hammersmith,
for clothing and educating eight poor boys, for which
purpose also Mr. Thomas Styles, in 1679, bequeathed
£20 per annum ; several similar benefactions have been
consolidated, producmg about £ 550 per annum, which
is appropriated to the instruction of more than one
hundred boys, of which number sixty are clothed : the
school-room ' was built in 1811, pursuant to the will of
Mrs. Ann Wyatt, who bequeathed £500 five per cent.
Navy annuities for that purpose, and £100 to keep it
in repair. A charity school for girls was established by
subscription in 1778, since which period donations and
legacies to the amount of £5000 have been given for its
support ; the endowment arising from these sums is aug-
mented by annual subscription, and appropriated to the
clothing and instraction of more than seventy girls:
the present school-house was built by subscription in
1818.  There is a National school, in: which nearly
three hundred children are instructed. A fund arising
trom several bequests is appropriated to the appren-
ticing of poor children. Mr. John Wild; in 1662,
built three almshouses, which he endowed with £4 per
annum; and Mr. Thomas Styles erected twelve, which he
endowed with £36. 16. perannum ; to the poor in the
latter, Mr. John Lewitt, in 1771, bequeathed £800 ; and
for the poor in beth almshouses, Mr. George Stanbri

in 1780, left £500 ; Mrs, Sarah Huxley, in 1800,

ed £1000; and other benefactors have contributed various
sums for their support. On Bush Hill; in this parish, are
remains of a large circular encampment, supposed to have
been the site of a British town, near which Sir Hugh
Myddelton had a residence, Bury hall, the seat of Pre-
sident Bradshaw, retains many of its original features.
Peter Fabell, a learned man of eccentric 'chu'm,wh.
obtained the reputation of being a conjuror, is said to
have been born in this parish, which became noted by
the production of a drama about the year 1490, founded
upon some of his alleged exploits, and called the “ Merry
Devil of Edmonton :” the place also gave rise to a trage
founded on the history of an unfortunate woman
was condemned and executed on & charge of
in 1621 3 m(;g"hasbmol?ﬂ}yhe:a‘mbutd.um
C 0 "p !' ’ po ““ ) ”n

which there is a painting in front of ﬂhm
Dr. Brook Taylor, secretary to the Royal Society, an
author of an ingenious treatie m.ﬂugm Wi
born here in 1685; and Archbishop Tillotson res
haecmmnﬂywhibmu ofSt Paul’s, and

Ensms'rou,.m in that
af ‘Wewm which is in the wxm ﬁv
hundred of Brap#orp (North), ecounty
uule (N. by m) mw«n,
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bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the

S rof ‘Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £7. 10., and in the patronage of
the Marquis of Salishury. - e
£ EDSTON (LITTLE), a township in that part of the
parish of SinNineTON which is in the wapentake of
Ryepare, North riding of the county of York, 6%
miles (W.) from Pickering, containing 16 inhabitants.
/' EDVIN-LOACH, a parish in the upper division of
the hundred of DoppiNGTREE, county of WORCESTER,
though locally in' the hundred of Broxash, county of
Hereford, 8 miles (N.by E.) from Bromyard, con-
taining 63 inhabitants. - The living is a discharged rec-
tory, with which the rectory of Tedstone-Wafer is united,
in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford,
rated in the king's books at £2. 1. 105. Mr. Higginson
was patron in 1811,

- EDWALTON, a parish in the northern division
of the wapentake of Rusucrirre, county of NorTiNg-
gam, 8% miles (8.8.E.) from Nottingham, containing
119 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York,
endowed with £ 600 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of John Musters, Esq. The church is dedicated to the
Holy Rood. Edwalton is in the honour of Tutbury,
duchy of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a
court of pleas held at Tuthury every third Tuesday, for
the recovery of debts under 40s.

© '"EDWARDSTONE, a parish in the hundred of
Baserca, county of Surrork, 14 mile (N.W.) from
Boxford, containing 416 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged *vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£4.13.4. Charles Dawson, Esq. was patron in 1817.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary, was given with the
tithes ‘and other appurtenances to the monastery of
Abingdon; by Hubert Munchesni, lord of the manor, in
1114, 'when a society of Black monks was placed here ;
but in 1160 they were removed to the priory of Coln,
to which the parish church became appropriated and
belonged till the dissolution. There is a fair for cattle,

) and pigs, on the 24th of Decémber.
WIN-RALPH, a parish i@ the hundred of
pary, though loeelly in the hundred of Broxash,
y of Herrrorp, 2 miles (N) from Bromyard,
ning, with Butterley, 157 inhabitants, The living

o o, o

the king's books at £6. 6. 103,
of Mrs. Pytts. Lxmeem is

ex in
;{k{: e

by 8.) from Ollerton, comprising the
rton, Ollerton, and Perlethorpe,

~and diocese of
at £14., and in_the pa-

rectory, in‘the archdeaconry and dioeese -
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year, and the school is free for all the poor children of
the parish. The principal object of note is the last rem-
nant of the ancient Forest of Sherwood, celebrated in
ballad story as the scene of the exploits of Robin Hood
and his faithful band of archers, extending for the dis-
tance of three miles and a half from east to north, and
two from north to south. '

EDWORTH, a parish in the hundred of BrgeLEs-
WADE, county of Beprorn, 3% miles (8, E. bys.) from
Biggleswade, containing 67 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £15, 16. 3., and in
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lincoln, The
church is dedicated to St. George.

EFFINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Errine-
HAM, county of SUrRreY, 3% miles (S.W.byWw.) from
Leatherhead, containing 499 inhabitants, The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£7. 18. 9., endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
#200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown,
The church, dedicated to St. Lawrence, contains several
old stalls and monuments. There are evident proofs of
the village having been formerly much larger than it is
at present ; cavities similar to cellars have been frequently
discovered in the adjacent fields and woods, '

EGBROUGH, atownship in the parish of KeLrang-
ToN, lower division of the wapentake .of OseorLpcrOsS,
West riding of the county of York, 5§ miles (W.byN.)
from Snaith, containing 215 inhabitants.

EGDEAN, a parish in the hundred of Rorazr-
BRIDGE, rape of ARUNDEL, county of Sussex, 2 miles
(8.E.) from Petworth, containing 66 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £1.9.2.
The Earl of Egremont was patron in 1788. ' The church
is dedicated to St. Bartholomew. There are fairs on
May 1st and September 4th, for horses and horned
cattle.  The Rother or Arundel navigation passes by the
southern boundary of the parish.

EGERTON, a township in the parish of MavLpas,
higher division of the hundred of BroxTon, county
palatine of CarsTER, 5 miles (N.E.byN.) from Malpas,
containing 115 inhabitants. There was formerly a
chapel attached to an ancient manor-house which stood
here ; its remains have been converted into a barn.

EGERTON, a parish in the hundred of CaregiLL,
lathe of Scray, county of Kunt, 3% miles (W.8.W.)
from Charing, containing 890 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, endowed with £15 per annum private be-
nefaction, and £1700 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter of St. Paul's, Lon-
don. The church is dedicated to St. James. A fair is

held on the 5th of August. There is a petrifying spring
in the parish. . ol A 29
KLAND, county of Devon. See BUCK-

. EGG-BUC
EGGESFORD, a parish in the hundred of Nowrs
TawrON M.Wxxnmwlm;xﬂ uﬁlam
0 "mw&hnm i !'1“». itants,
‘(s is a discharged rectory, in the conry of
: and diocese of K rated in the king's
‘books at £7. 18. 9., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
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of the Hon, Newton Fellowés. Hae was: formerly an
hospital founded by Ibote Reigny.

EGGINGTON, a chapelry in thn parish of ann-
roN-Buzzarp, hundred of Mansueap, county of BEp-
¥orD, 2% miles (E.) from Leighton-Buzzard, containing
802 inhabitants. = The living is a perpetual curacy, en-
dowed with £200 parliamentary grant, and in the pe-
culiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Prebendary of
Leighton-Buzzard in the Cathedral Church of Lincoln.

EGGINTON;, a parish in the hundred of MorLEs-
Ton and LircmurcHa, county of Dersy, 4% miles
(N.N.E.) from Burton upon Trent, containing 319 in-
habitants. = The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £8. 2.8%., and in the patronage
of Sir C. Eveny, Bart., C. Pole, and J oseph Leigh,
Esqrs., the two former having each two presentations,
and the latter one. The church, dedicated to St. Wil-
frid, is a small ancient building with a low tower. The
rivers Dove and Trent and the Grand Trunk canal pass
through the parish. At the Norman survey Eghintune
was described as having a church, a priest, a mill, and
six farmers.  In March, 1644, a battle was fought on
Egginton Heath, in which the royalists were defeated by
the parliamentarians under Sir John Gell.

EGGLESTON-ABBEY, a township in the parish
of Roxeny, western division of the wapeutake of GiL-
1ING, North riding of the county of Yorxk, 14 mile (8.E.
by 8.) from Barnard-Castle, containing 82 inhabitants.
An abbey for Premonstratensian canons, dedicated to
St. Mary and St. John the Baptist, was founded about
1189, by Ralph de Multon; it was re-founded in 1537,
and at the dissolution its revenue was estimated at
£36. 8. 3. per annum : there are still considerable re-
mains -of: the ‘buildings, part of which has been con-
verted into cottages: the abbey church; a cruciform
structure, is almost entire.

EGGLESTONE, a chapelry in the parish of Mip-
pLETON in TEEsDALE, south-western division of Dar-
LINGTON ward, county palatine of Durmam, 64 miles
(N.W.by N.) from Barnard-Castle, contalmng 464 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Durham, endowed with £ 800 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Rector of Middleton.
There are lead-mines in the parish, said to have been in
operation since the time of HenryVI., and which, from
the discovery of ancient excavations and tools therein,
are supposed to have been known to the Romans. The
London Lead Company have a smelting-mill here. About
a mile to the northward of the village, near a rivulet, is
a cmleof stones, with an inner trench enclosing

;.and close by the bmokuntumulm u\urmted
by a md stones.

“EGGLETON, a wwmhip in'the pﬁuh of Bunor‘s
Froome, lmndred of Raprow, county of Hnuman,
9% wiles (E.N.E.) from Hmford, contn,inmg ln in-
habitents.’ -

EGHAM, apamh in the mddwidnnnﬂthbm-

\ Md%nm,mtyofmyﬂmﬂa(w
from London, containing 3616 inhabitants. The
h;ﬁ&alm-uy situated on the b n&m M
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comes conspicuous on the rising grounds, where it is
remarkable for the almost entire preservation of ite

original form ; and whence it may be traced, with some
intervals, to Ashford, in Middlesex, In this parish are
the plains of Runymede, appointed by King John for
holding a conference with the barons, who had confede-
rated for the preservation of their liberty, and celebrated
as the spot on which, after a debate of a few days,
during which each party encamped as open enemies, the
king consented to grant the pnvxlegeu and exemptions
contained in “ Magna Charta,” which he  afterwards
signed in a small island near the-opposite bank of 'the
Thames, still called Magna Charta island. = The village,
neatly built, and containing many respectable houses;
is connected with the market town of Staines by a neat
bridge, and another is now being erected in a more
direct line with the London road. Cooper's Hill, within
the parish, was first celebrated by the muse of Denham,
who resided here, and afterwards by Pope and Somerville.
Camomile Hill obtained its appellation from the luxuriant
growth of that herb, with which it is covered, and which
appears to be indigenous to the soil. Races are held an-
nually in September, on Runymede, and are well attended.
The only trade in this placeis that arising from its situa-
tion as a great public thoroughfare.  An annual fair ‘is
held on the 29th of May and the two following days. The
parish is divided into four tythings, and courts baron
for the manors of Egham and Mitton are held annually.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £11. 9. 7., and in the patronage of Mrs. Gost-
ling. The church, dedicated to St.John the Baptist; is
a modern edifice of brick, ornamented with stone, and
was built by subscription, his late Majesty, George II.,
having been a liberal contributor. - There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A charity schiool
was founded in 1703, by Henry Strode, Esq., who be-
queathed £6000 to the Coopers' Company in London,
in trust for that purpose, and also for the founda-
tion and endowment of almshouses for six aged men
and six aged women ; fifty boys are instructed in read-
mg, writing, and arithmetic, on the National system.
sixteen girls are also taught reading, writing, arithmetic,
and needlework, by part-of a legacy of 6860  left \by
Mrs. Barker, for teaching children of the
Egham, New Windsor, and Yately. = This *WM
the privilege of sending boys for ednmﬁm Gdfﬁnm
ation by Sir William Perkins, at Chertsey.
Lee, Esq., in 1705, bequeathed &mo to wm
in land, the produce to be applied in apprenticing for
‘boys, or girls, yearly. Twelve almshouse: ) "
each an upper and a lower room, have ‘heen erec
in pursuance of Mr. Strode’s will, md

in 1627, byswmm whqm
"n:hfﬁ of £30, and f‘ka
ren ms»-mmm. five age

Viscou  ‘Warren Bulk
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" EGLINGHAM, a parish in'the northern division of
CoaueTpase ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, com -
prising the townships of Bassington, Beanly, New Be-
wick, Old Bewick, Brandon, Branton, Crawley, Egling-
‘ham, Hareup, Hedgeley, East Lilburn, West Lilburn,

i m, and Wooperton, and containing 1440 inha-
bitants, of which number, 184 are in the township of
Eglingham, 7§ miles (N.W.) from Alnwick. The living
is ‘a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland
and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at
£23. 3. 14., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Dur-
ham. The church is dedicated to St. Maurice. The
river Bremish and several bournes rise in the Cheviot
hills, and run through the parish. There is a lake
covering ten acres, called Kimmer loch ; also a spring
of ‘strong vitriolic water. In the eastern and southern
parts of the parish are extensive moor lands. Coal,
limestone, and freestone are obtained here. There are
British and Roman encampments, and the ruins of an
old border tower, in the parish. Percy's cross, on the
road between Whittingham and Wooler, was erected on
the spot where Sir Ralph Percy fell, in the battle of
Hedgeley Moor, in 1468 ; at some distance from which
is Percy’s leap, where two stones commemorate an ex-
traordinary leap which he took when closely pursued by
the enemy.

EGLOSHAYLE, a parish in the hundred of Trige,
county of CornwaLL, 4 of a mile (S.E.) from Wade-
Bridge, containing 1174 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Bishop of Exeter; rated in the king's books at £16. The
church contains an ancient and curious stone pulpit ; its
lofty tower was built some centuries since, by the then
vicar, named Lovibond, who left land producing about
£20 a year for the support of a noble bridge of sixteen
arches, grected by public contribution in the reign of
Edward IV., across the Camel at Wade-Bridge, which
river, at flood tides, is navigable for barges to and
from ' Padstow. National schools, for children of bhoth
sexes, are supported by subscription, At Burnere or
Brenere, the bishops of Exeter had formerly a seat.
In the neighbourhood are the remains of an ancient
treble intrenchment, called Castle Killibury.

. EGLOSKERRY, a parish in the northern division
of the hundred of East, county of Cornwary, 8%
miles (W.N.,W.) from Launceston, containing 436 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter, endowed
with ££00 royal bounty, and £800 parliamentary grant,

| in ‘the patronage of F. H. Rudd, Esq. and others,
stees, The church is dedicated to St. Petrock.
y place of worship at Tregeare for Wesleyan
TON, a parish in the South-glay disision

ke of BasseTrAw, eounty of NorrinG-
from Tuxford, containing 820 inhabi.

| vicarage, in the archs

' ;:‘ £4.6,0§., endowed vi?th '£200
L ’ m rmhmtyvi‘ . Bu",
8. e church. is dedicated to

The

o 4

119

EGR

(w by N.) from Little Walsingham, containing 47 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory annexed to the vie
of Holkham,'in the archdeaconry and diocesé of Nor-
wich, rated in the king's books at £8, and in ‘the
patronage of T. W. Coke, Esq. The church, which was
dedicated to St. Edmund, is desecrated.  The two pa-
rishes are separated by Quarles farm, which is extra-
parochial. ;
EGREMONT, a market town and pavish in ALren-
paLe ward above Darwent, county of CUMBERLAND,
424 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Carlisle, and 293 (N. W. byN.)
from London, containing 1741 inhabitants. This place
is of great antiquity, and the neighbourhood is supposed
to have been the scene of various conflicts between the
Saxons and the Danes. At the time of the Conquest,
Ranulph de Meschines, to whom William had granted
the whole county of Cumberland, gave the great barony
of Copeland (now called the barony of Egremont,) to
his “brother, William de Meschines, who erected his
baronial castle on the site of an ancient Danish fort,
The remains of this fortress, to the north-west of
the town, though not exteusive, exhibit traces of an-
tiquity and strength : they consist chiefly of the gateway-
tower and vaulted entrance, of circular arches in the
Norman style ; portions of the outer wall, enclosing a
quadrangular area ; the postern, and three narrow gate-
ways, communicating with the outworks, which are of
later date. The town is situated within less than three
miles of the Irish sea, and consists principally of one
spacious street : the houses are in general ancient, but
many improvements have been recently effected, and a
new bridge has been built over the river. The clothing
business appears to have been anciently carried onhere :
the principal articles of manufacture at present are checks,
linen, canvas, sail-cloth, and paper; the tanning and
dressing of leather prevails to a limited extent, and in the
parish are mines of iron-stone, from which about one
hundred tons of ore are raised per day, and shipped at
‘Whitehaven, for the supply of the iron-foundries of South
Wales ; limestone and red freestone are found in the
neighbourhood, and a considerable quantity of lime is
burnt. The market is on Saturday, and is well supplied
with corn : the fairs are, February 18th for horses, the
third Friday in May, and September 18th for horned
cattle, sheep &c ; on the three days following the last
fair, a festival is celebrated, during which the inhabit-
ants are allowed to sell ale without a license : statute
fairs for hiring servants are held at Whitsuntide and
Martinmas. The town was anciently a borough, and re-
turned members to parliament in the 23rd of Edward L.,
but was, on its own petition, disfranchised, in the 24th
of the same reign ; the burgesses possessed many other
privileges, of which all records are lost: there are about
one hundred and twenty burgage tenements in ' the
. A horough serjeant, two bailiffs, four con-
stahles, two hedge and corn-viewers, and assessors of
, are annually appointed at the court leet of the
lord of the manor, held in April, at which time a
u - court is also held : a court baron is held every
third Friday, under the Earl of Egremont, for the reco-
journment fromuhe castle, at the King's Arms Inn,
:ldcnt»m%e m.mm%gmm decay.
- The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Richmend, and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's
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books at £7. 12. 1., and in the patronage of the Earl of
Egremont. The church dedicated to St. Michael, is an
ancient structure, of which the ‘east end is in the early
style of English architecture, and the remainder chiefly
Norman: it has a low tower. There is a place of wor-

ship for Wesleyan Methodists. A National school
is supported by subscription, to which £4 per annum,
arising from a bequest by Mr. John Nicholson, for ap-
prenticing children, and another trifling sum, have been
added. Near the ruins of the castle is a cairn of stones,
called Woful Bank, which seems to have some reference
to a battle fought prior to the Conquest. Egremont
gives the title of earl to the family of Wyndham.

EGTON, a chapelry in the parish of ULvERsTONE,
hundred of LonspALg, north of the sands, county pa-
latine of LancasTeR, 3 miles (N.N.E.) from Ulverstone,
containing 470 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of
Chester, endowed with £400 royal bounty, and £1200
parliamentary grant. Mr. and Mrs. Machell were patrons
in 1792. The chapel is dedicated to the Blessed Virgin
Mary. Iron-ore obtained here is considered the richest
hitherto found in the kingdom, and a large furnace
for smelting it has been established for centuries.
At Greenodd, a creek within the limits of the port
of Lancaster, a considerable quantity of iron, in bars,
copper-ore, slate, hoops, tanned leather, gunpowder,
pyroligneous acid, and other articles of merchandise,
are shipped for Liverpool, Glasgow, and Whitehaven.
Henry Lindow, in 1735, gave certain property, now pro-
ducing about £6 per annum, for the support of a school,
for which eight children receive instruction.

EGTON, a parish in the eastern division of the
liberty of LanceaurcH, North riding of the county of
Yorx, 6} miles (W. 8.W.) from Whitby, containing 1037
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York, en-
dowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Archbishop of York. The church, dedicated to St.
Hilda, which is situated about half a mile from the town,
wag consecrated by the Bishop of Damascus, in 1349.
There is a Roman Catholic chapel; and a Sunday
school is supported by contributions, Egton received a
charter for a market and four annual fairs from William
II1.; the former is now only held from the Tuesday
before Palm-Sunday to Midsummer, weekly, and on the
Tuesday before old Michaelmas for cattle: the fairs are
on the Tuesday before February 15th, Tuesday before
May 11th, September 4th, and 'l‘uesday before Novem-
ber 22nd for horned cattle, boots, and shoes, There is
a ﬁaespring,cu.lledooldl{eldwell much resorted to
for strengthening weakly children.

. EISEY, a parish in the hundred of Hmlwonrn,
Onzcxunl, and StapLm, county of Wirrs, 1 mile
(N.N.E.) from Cricklade, containing, with the town
ship of Water-Eaton, 194 ‘imhabitants. The living is
di :mnexed to the vicarage of me

mmeu‘chamom-ygofw.m,madioemofsmm, "king's bo
, and in the Hon,

rated in the king's books at ill.',ll

patronage of the Earl of St. German’s.

dedicated to St. Mary. mmm- a
h the paris
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ants. The living is a discharged vi consolidat
in1767 with the vicarage of Olveston,cng’

diction of the Bishop of Bristol, rated in the king's books
at £6. 12. 6., endowed with £200 royal W

in the patronage of the Dean and Chnpter w
and the Bishop of Bristol, the former having two m,
and the latter one. The church dedicated to St.

has a central tower with a spire, and was probah
erected in the thirteenth century. East of the vxlhge
are some remains of a Roman intrenched camp, sug

ed to have been constructed for the protection o the
trajectus, or ferry, at Aust ; it was a regular parallelo-
gram, enclosing two acres.

ELDEN, a parish in the hundred of Kineg's Som-
BOURN, Andover division of the county of SouTHAME-
TON, 4% miles (8.E.) from Stockbridge. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £2, and in the patrona of
John Hussey, Esq. The church, dedicated to St. ge
the Baptist, is dilapidated, and unfit for service. The
parish contains only one house, occupied by a farmer.

ELDERSFIELD, a parish forming, with the parishes
of Chaseley and Staunton, a distinct portion of the lower
division of the hundred of PersHORE, county of WoRr-
CESTER, 7 miles (W.byS.) from Tewkesbury, contaimng
743 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
the king's books at £8. 16. 8., and in the patronage of
Sir Anthony Lechmere, Bart. The church, dedicated to-
St. John the Baptist, has a handsome spire, There is a
place of worship for dissenters, also a charity school,
supported by subscription.

ELDON, a township in that part of the parish of
St. ANDREW, AUCKLAND, which is in the south-eastern
division of DArLINGTON ward, county palatine of Dur-
u.ua, 3% miles (S.E, by E.) from Bishop-Auckiand, con-

94 inhabitants.  John Scott, Earl of Eld(m, late
%llgh Chancellor of England was elevated to the
peerage by the title of Baron Eldon, on the 18th of
July, 1799, having also been raised to the ities of
Viscount ls.ncombe and Earl of Eldon, July 7th, 1821,
" ELDROTH, a hamlet in the parish of CrAPHAM,
western divisiop®f the wapentake of SfarncLirrs and
Ewcross, :

THUMBERLAND, 7
ing 131 inhabitants
ELFORD, ap
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m. 5 ap $nz in the hundre;lf ti{ Lonmq’islo-
roveH, lathe of Surpway, county of Kenr, 7 miles
(Nfﬁ”g N.) from Folkaﬂtone, containing 1168 inhabi-
tants. This place, which was anciently of greater im-

Y it ! -
portance, and contained several handsome structures,
of which there are scarcely any vestiges, was, at the
time of the Conquest, in the possession of the Norman
earl Ewe, a near relation of the Conqueror's, who ob-
tained for it many valuable privileges: in the reign
of Henry III. it belonged to Prince Edward, who pro-
cured for it the grant of a weekly market, which, though
for some time disused, is*held occasionally in the market-
house, every five or six years, in order to preserve the
right. The village is situated on the smaller river Stour,
and contains many houses neatly built of brick, and of
modern appearance. Elham park, of which notice
oceurs in the time of Henry IIL, is now overgrown
with wood. Fairs are held annually on Palm-Monday,
Easter-Monday, and Whit-Monday, and October 20th,
for horses, cattle, and pedlary. The county magistrates
hold a petty session for the division monthly; and the
parish is within the jurisdiction of a court of requests
held at Folkestone, for the recovery of debts above 2s.
and not exceeding 40s.: manorial courts are held on the
Thursday in Easter week, and on the Thursday after the
20th of October. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's
hooks at £20, and in the patronage of the Warden and
Fellows of Merton College, Oxford, on the nomination
of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, is.a spacious and handsome structure in the
early style of English architecture, with a massive square
embattled tower; over the west door is a fine window of
three lights, in the decorated style, which has been subse-
quentlyinserted; the ancient timber roof'is still preserved
in the nave and aisles. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists.. A school was founded here in
1725, by Sir John Williams, Knt., who endowed it with
a house and lands now mduMMg of £60 per

annum, for the. i ins ix poor boys,
of whom one is house of in-

that at
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There is a fair for toys on the 5th of July. At-March-
wood, about two miles east from Eling, is a magazine of
gunpowder, for the supply of Portsmouth garrigon, with
proper accommodations for the detachment of troops
stationed for its protection, Tatchhury Mount is sup-~
posed to have been anciently a military station, and
tradition records it as the site of a royal hunting seat ;
the trenches may still be traced from the terrace that
surrounds it. The mansion and manor of Bury farm is
held of the crown, on presenting to the king a brace of
of white greyhounds in silver couples, whenover His
Majesty visits the New Forest, which tenure was last
discharged in 1789, by the late Rev. Sir C. Mill, Bart., to
George III. on his alighting from the royal carri at
Lyndhurst. The tythings of Ower, Wade, and Wigley,
in this parish, are entitled to partake of the benefit
schools founded by John Nowes, at Romsey and Yeovil,
for teaching and clothing poor boys.

ELISHAW, a hamlet in the parish of Erspox,
southern division of CoquerpaLe ward, county of
NorTHUMBERLAND, 9 miles (N. by E.) from Belling-
ham. The population is returned with the parish.
Here was formerly an hospital, the ruins of which are
still remaining.

ELKINGTON, a parish in the hundred of GuiLs-
BOROUGH, county of NorTHAMPTON, 11 miles (N.N.E,)
from Daventry, containing 56 inhabitants, The church
has been entirely demolished, but at what period nei-
ther history nor tradition informs us: it belonged to
the monastery of Daventry, and afterwards to that of
Pipewell, the rectory being valued in the return of the
impropriations of the latter : there is now no living
appointed to, the inhabitants being obliged to resort to
the neighbouring parochial churches.

ELKINGTON (NORTH), & parish in the Wold di-
vision of the hundred of Lourn-EskE, parts of Linp-
sEY, county of LincoLn, 4% miles (N.W.) from Louth,
containing 74 inhabitants. The living is a’discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincolu,
rated in the king's books at £4. 19. 44., and endowed
with £600 royal bounty. The Rev. William Smyth,
Jun. was patron in 1818. The church is dedicated to
St.Helen.

ELKINGTON (SOUTH), a parish in the Wold di-

~ vision of the hundred of Lovrn-Eske, parts of Lann-

sEy, county of Linconw, 2% miles (W.N.W.) from
Louth, containing 268 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £5.7. 6. The
Rev. William Smyth, Jun. was patron in 1822. The
~ church is dedicated to All Saints. : » ;
ELKSLEY, a parish in the Hatfield division of the
take of Bassetraw, county of NorriNncuam, 4
s (N. W.) from Tuxford, coutain:ng tﬁ;ﬂ inhabitants.’
The living is a discharged vicarage, in y
Jof g?t’(ngghafn,md diocese ofr‘;%:k, rated in the king's
ﬁoox:pu £3. 16. 04,, endowed with £200 roysl bounty,
andufphe patronage of the Duke of Newcastle. The
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rated in the king's books at £12. 9. 2., and i the pa-
tronage of the Hon. B, Craven. The ahml\‘:h," edicated to
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‘St.John the Evangelist,is an ancient,though small edifice,
affording a fine specimen of Norman architecture in the
ornamented south porch, the east window, and the interior
of the chancel ; it hasat the west end a square embattled
tower in the later English style, erected in the reign of
Richard 1I. . The old Ermin-street traces the westemn
boundary of the parish. A kind of stone is obtained
here, which is easily cut when raised from the quarry,
but becomes exceedingly hard by exposure to the air,

ELKSTONE, a chapelry comprising the townships
of Lower Elkstone and Upper Elkstone, in the parish of
ALLSTONEFIELD, northern division of the hundred of
TormonNsLow, county of Starrorp, 5% miles (E.N.E.)
from Leek, and containing 259 inhabitants, of which
number, 108 are in Lower Elkstone, and 151 in Upper
Elkstone, - The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Stafford; and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, endowed with £ 1400 royal bounty, and in the

onage of certain Trustees, The chapel is dedicated
to.St.John the Baptist,

ELLA (KIRK), a parish in the county of the town
of Kingstox upon Huwr, locally in the East riding of
the county of Yorxk, comprising the townships of Kirk-
Ella and West Ella, and a portion of the townships of
Anlaby, and Willerby, and containing, with the whole
rof Anlaby, which is partly in the parish of Hessle, 875
inhabitants, of which number, 246 are in the township of
Kirk-Ella, 5 miles (W. by N.) from Kingston upon Hull,
and 122 in the adjoining township of West Ella. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £18, 2, 8%.
N. Sykes, Esq. was patron in 1813. The church, dedi-
cated to St.Andrew, is a very ancient structure. Some
of the merchants of Hull have elegant residences here.
A school-room, with a house for the master, has been
evected.

ELLAND, a chapelry in. the parish of HALIFAX,
wapentake of MorrLey, West riding of the county of
York, 3 miles (8.8.E,) from Halifax, containing, with
Greetland, 5088 inhabitants,  The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, en-
dowed  with. £200 private  benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £400 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
‘tronage of the Vicar of Halifax. The chapel is dedicated
to St. Mary. There are four places of worship for dis-
senters. Elland is a very ancient village, situated on
the river Calder, Woollen cloths are manufactured,
and there are mines of coal and stonme quarries in
the neighbourhood. It had formerly a market, by char-

ster of Edward 115 which ks been long disused, - Grace |

Ramsden, in 1734, bequeathed en estate at Bingley,
now producing about £63. 10. a year, for
&Mmmihmﬁwndmﬁondpm

N ¥

arising from bequests in 1712 and 1756, by James
Brooksbank, and his grandson of t heum;?m
from Lady Hewley's charity, the greater nf WM
was given as an endowment upon the ghuw ol
ELLASTONE, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of TormoNsLow, county of S'rurom 44
miles (W.8,W.) from Ashbourn, comprising the town-
ships of Calwick, Prestwood, Ramshorn, Stan
Wootton, and containing 1328 inhabitants. The. living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Stafford,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £4. 9. 2., endowed with £200 private benefac-
tion, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patr of
D. Davenport, Esq. The church, dedicated to St.
was built in 1388, and contains memorials of the Fleet-
woods, the ancient owners of a great part of the parish:
it has lately received an addition of two hundred sittings,
of which one hundred and fifty are free, the Incorpe-
rated Society for the enlargement of churches and cha-
pels having granted £160 towards defraying the expense.
The vxlla.ge, which is of considerable size, is situated on
the river Dove, in a neighbourhood abounding with fine
scenery, and enjoying a salubrious atmosphere. A Na-
tional school-room was erected by subscription in 1812,
which will accommodate two hundred children.. The
petty sessions for the division are held here. There are
mines of copper and lead near Stanton, and in the fields
and lanes are found many rare plants. On the
‘Weaver hill are several barrows, from which have
dug some ancient coins : there are also vestiges of a Ro-
man encampment. Gilbert Sheldon, Archblshop of Can-
terbury, was born in this parish ; he died in 1677.
ELLEL, a chapelry in the parish of Cockermam,
hundred of LonspaLg, south of the sands, county pala-
tine of LANCASTER, 4 miles (S. by E.) from Lancaster,
containing 1851 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
of Chester, endowed wit,h £200 private benefaction, and
£ 600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Vicar of

Cocker e chapel was built in 1802, at thgax-
pense of itants. Here are two silk-

which_about, four hundred persons are employed.. “A
school wi a!mall endowment was established in 1753.

, Maryport, con
Itputakeshthe
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conty of Stafford, and diocese of Lichficld and Coven-
wmﬁ&d with £200 private benefaction, and £ 600
royal , and in the age of Viscount Afison.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a trifling
endowment, the gift of William Morteboys, in 1738, for

VE. BECK, a township in the parish of Osmo-

THERLEY, wapentake of ALLerronsuire, North riding
of the county of York, 5% miles (E.N.E.) from North
Allerton, containing 81 inhabitants,

ELLERBURN, a parish in Prckerine lythe, North
riding of the county of Yorxk, 34 miles (E. by N.) from
Pickering, compri the chapelry of Witton, and con-
taining 203 bitants, exclusively of a portion of the
township of Farmanby, which is in this parish. The
living is a disch vicarage, rated in the king's books
at £7. 4. 94., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean of
York. The church is dedicated to St. Hilda.

ELLERBY, a township in that part of the parish of
Swing which is in the middle division of the wapen-
take of Horperness, East riding of the county of
Yorxk, 7§ miles (N.E. by N.) from Kingston upon Hull,
containing 233 inhabitants,

" ELLERBY, a township in the parish of Lyrue,
eastern division of the liberty of Lanesavuren, North
il of the county of York, 74 miles (W.N.W.) from

¥, containing 80 inhabitants.

RKER, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of BranTiNGHAM which is in the wapentake of How-
veNsuirg, East riding of the county of York, 14 mile
(8. by w.) from South Cave, containing 249 inhabitants.
It is within the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of How-
denshire,  There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists.

ELLERTON-ABBEY, a township in the parish of
Downnorme, western division of the wapentake of

Hawng, North riding of the county of Yorxk, 7 miles
(W.8, w.) from d, containing 47 inhabitants.
Here was a small priory of Cistercian puns, thought to

have bezn founded by Warnerius, to the Earl of

Richmond, in the time of Henry IL., which, at the dis-
solution, was Valued at £15.10.6. ° ' -
" ELLERTON-PRIORY, a parish in the Holme-
1con ‘of the wapenta Harraiis, East
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1070, at this place, and a monument, with a suitable
epitaph, was erected to his memory in the church of
Bolton upon Swale, in 1748, where hie was interred.

ELLESBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of
AYLESBURY, county of BuokiNGHAM, 24 milee (W. by
8.) from Wendover, containing 581 inhabitaits.  The
living Is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham,
and diocese of Lincoln, vated in the king's' books at
£11.9.7. R.G. Russell, Esq. was patron in 1895,
The church is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul: near
it, on a circular eminence, is an ancient fortification,
called Belinus’ Castle, where tradition relates Belin re-
sided ; above it is a high hill, still retaining the name
of Belinesbury. There are almshouses for four poor
widowers and four widows,

ELLESMERE, a market town and parish in the
hundred of PimmiLy, county of ‘Savoe, 16% miles
(N.N.W.) from Shrewsbury, and 1784 (N.W.) from
London, containing, with the chapelries of Cockshut,
Dudlaston, and Penley (the last of which, is in the county
of Flint), 6056 inhabitants. This place takes its name
from an adjoining lake, or mere, which, being more
extensive than some others in the neighbourhood, was,
by way of pre-eminence, called Al, or Aelsmere, from
which its present appellation is derived. The lake com-
prises more than one hundred acres; and is bordered
on one gide by the town, and on the other by Oatley
park, in which are some of the fine$t el trees to be
found in any part of the country. The town consists of
some tolerably well paved streets; the houses are in
general well built, and have a respectable appearance; and
the inhabitants are amply supplied with water. On the
elevated site of an ancient castle, which was alternately
in the possession of the princes of North Wales and
of the English monarchs, (having been ‘a frontier for-
tress of considerable note during the unsettled period
which preceded the final subjugation of Wales,) and
which was probably demolished after the parliamentary
war, is a very fine bowling-green, commanding a pleas-
sing view, where an annual festival, called the meeting
of Ellesmere club, is celebrated at Midsummer. The
trade is principally in malt, which is carried on to a very
great extent, and in leather; and many of the labouring
class are employed in the spinning of flax, and in the
manufacture of stockings. The Ellesmere canal passes

N.N.W.) from ‘o the south of the town, and, with its different branchés,
living is a

forms a connexion between the Severn, the Dee, and
the Mersey, being a line of navigation from Liverpool to
Bristol, and a communication with North Wales. The
market, granted to Sir Edward Kynaston, Knt., in
1598, is on Tuesday, and is noted for corn: the fairs
are on the Tuesday after February 2nd, the third Tues-
day in April, Whit-Tuesday, August 26th, and Novem-

; ber 14th, for horses, cattle, and sheep, Ellesmere for-

‘gave name to a hundred, which, with its depen-
dencies, was annexed to the hundred of Pimhill; in the

‘Q7th of Henry VIIL ; a hundred court is held for the
: nomﬂyof debts under 40s. GEY ek ABRSS orkE S
© The li is a vicarage, in the ‘ of Sa.-
Top, and of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
kinig's books aty£17. 18. 14., and in_the patronage of
the Cof the late Earl of .~ The
church, ™
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east window is @ remarkably fine ition in the
later style. The livings of the chapelries in this parish
are perpetual curacies, in the patronage of the Vicar.
A National school is supported by subscription; and
near the margin of the lake, at a short distance from
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bounty. The church, dedicated to St. Peter, has a
rangular tower on the south side. At the time . the
Conquest this place, though now only an MM

village, is said to have been three miles long, * .
ELLINGSTRING; a township in t!le plxw\ of

the town, is the house of industry, for the reception of MasuaM, partly within the liberty of St. Prrer of

the poor of five adjoining parishes.
ELLINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of CrLAvER-
NG, county of Nomrrork, 23 miles (N.E. by E.) from

Bungay, containing 389 inhabitants. The living is a

rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of

Norwich, rated in the king's books at £12. The patron-
age is annexed to the Mastership of Magdalene College,
Camb The church is dedicated to St. Mary,

Bamsroven ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, com-
prising the townships of North Charlton, South Charlton,
Chathill, East Ditchburn, West Ditchburn, Doxford,
Ellingham, Preston, and Shipley, and containing 1027
inhabitants, of which number, 257 are in the township
of Ellingham, 8% miles (N.) from Alnwick. The living is
avi ,in the archdeaconry of Northumberland, and
diocese  of Durham, rated in the king's books at
£6. 5. 5., and in the patronage of the Dean and Chap-
ter of Durham. The church, dedicated to St. Maurice,
which stands at'a short distance from the village, was
founded by Ranulph de Guagy, in the twelfth century,
and rebuilt @ few years ago, A free school was erected
by subscription on the glebe land, in 1821 : the
master receives £5 a year from the trustees of Lord
Crewe, which is augmented to- £20 by voluntary con-
tributions. ~ Coal and limestone are obtained in the
parish.
' ELLINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Fox-
pINGBRIDGE, New Forest (West) division of the county
of Sovrmampron, 24 miles (N. by W.) from Ringwood,
contdining 897 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £8. 4. 94., endowed with
#£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of Eton
College. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. In the
church-yard is a plam stone commemorating the execu-
tion of Alicia Lisle, in her old age, pursuant to a sen-
tence passed by Judge Jeffreys, ona charge of harbour-
ing known rebels in her mansion of Moyle's Court,
which sentence was reversed at the Revolution. The
navigable river Avon runs through the parish.

+» vELLINGHAM (GREAT), a parish in the hundred
ot‘ Smomuu, county of NorroLK, 2 miles (N.W.by W.)

from . 760 inhabitants, The living
uaduchgad ‘with which the rectory of Little
Ellingham-is united, in the and diocese of

Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6. 5. 10, en-
- dowed with £ 200 private benefaction, and £200
 bounty. Dover Colby, Esq. was patron in 1814,

church is dedicated to St. James, - There is & place-of

.-mtup for Baptists, SERS LT AN U 0 &
ELLINGHAM (W};l@“hﬂu
" WAYLAND, nile

York, but chiefly in the eastern division of the wapen-
take of Han, North riding of the county of Yomk, 4}
miles (N. W. by W.) from Masham, containing 204 in-
habitants, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists,

ELLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Lu!(}n-
TONSTONE, county of HuNTINGDON, 54 miles (W.by N.)
from Huntingdon, containing 344 inhabitants,  The

ELLIN'GHAM. a parish in the southern division of living iz a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,

and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
€20, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £400
royal bounty, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Master and Fellows of Peter-House,
Cambridge. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

ELLINGTON, a township in the parish of Woon-
HORN, castern division of MorrETE ward, county of
NoORTHUMBERLAND, 7 miles (N.E. by E.) from Morpeth,
containing 255 inhabitants. It is situated on the north
side of the river Line, across which there is a stone
bridge

ELLINGTON (NETHER and OVER), a township
in the parish of Masmam, partly within the liberty of
St. Perer of York, but chiefly in the eastern division
of the wapentake of HanG, North riding of the county
of York, containing 152 inhabitants,  Nether Elling-
ton is 2% miles (N.W,) and Over Elhngton % mﬂu
(N.W. by w.) from Masham.

ELLISFIELD, a parish in the h\mdmd of Bll~
MONDSPIT, Basmgsboke division of the county of SovTH-
AMPTON, 4 miles (8.) from Basingstoke, containing 218
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books. at
£8, 3. 64., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of Bernard Brocas and Thomas Terry, Esqrs.,
alternately. The church is dedicated to St. Martin,

There were two churches prior to the reign of Ed-
ward I1L, when that dedicated to All Saints was taken
down, by consent of the two patrons and - dio-
cesan.  There is an endowment of £3 a year, of
Stephen Terry, Esq., in 1787, for teaching six peor
children. The name of this pamhmmlhbm w-
ruption of Ella's field, from the Saxon king, Ella,
lddduboutthmm,emom bylw
mpponed;ot::tbameofum
other parts parish vmhmm. i
- ELLOUGH, a parish in the hundred of Wang :
mmyof SyrroLk, 3 miles (s.n. B;)»*ﬂ'w@ |
hhubm
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Prébendary of Wetwang in the Cathedral Church of
York, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a very
ancient structdre,  There are places of worship for
Calvinists and Wesleyan Methodists,

-~ 'ELLSTHORP, a hamlet in the parish of Epenuam,
wapentake of BErrisLo, parts of KEsTEVEN, county
of LincoLN, containing 58 inltabitants, !

- 'ELM, a parish in the hundred of Wissracu, Isle
of Ery, county of Camsriper, 2 miles (S.8.E.) from
Wisbeach, containing 1368 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage to which the euracy of Emneth is annexed,
in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Bishop of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £14. 15. 10.; and in the patronage
of the Rector of Elm with Emneth; the rectoryis a
sinecure, rated in the king's books at £17, and in the

age of the Bishop of Ely. The church is

dedicated to “All Saints. Thomas Squire, in 1689,
bequeathed 'a  school-room with a house and lands,
now producing about £50 a year, for teaching poor
children. i )

ELM, a parish in the hundred of FromE, county of
Somirser, 2% miles (N.W. by W.) from Frome, com-
prising the hamlets of Great Elm and Little Elm, and
containing 449 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of Bath
and Wells, rated in the king's books at £9. 13. 6£.,
endowed with £50 per annum private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Rev,
Charles ‘Griffith, D. D. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. The river Frome, which runs through the parish,
has extensive iron-works and manufactories for agri-
cultural implements on its banks. Near the northern
bank of a rivulet, and on the edge of a precipice, are
the remains of ‘a Roman intrenchment called Tedbury,
in which a vessel containing coins of the Lower Empire
was found in 1691.

ELMBRIDGE, a ¢hapelry in that part of the parish
of Dovper#iny which is in the upper division of
hundred of Havrsuire, county of WORCESTER, 23
miles (N.) from Droitwich, containing 336 inhabitants,
The is dedicated to St. Mary.

' ELMDON, a parish in the hundred of UrrLEsFoRD,
ty of Essex, 5§ miles (W. by N.) from Saffron-
"Walden, containing 601 inhabitants, Thetliving is a
vicarage, to ‘which is annexed the rectory of Wendon-
Lofts, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of |  rated in the king's books at £19. J. Wilkes,
] was patron in 1814, The church is dedicated to
olas, There is a charity school, supported by

to about £ 14 per annum,

, a parish in the Solihull division of the -

hundred of Hemrancrorp, county of Wanwick, 4

‘miles (S.W. by 8.) from Coleshill, containing 146 inba-
“bitants, ' The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
of Coventry, and diocesé of Lichfield and

eee;, which #tands orf.an
tower at the west end, was built
se of Abraham'Spooner, Esq., and

in that
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vynpenta‘l;e of; Bu:nro:m, North riding of the county of
ORK; 7 miles (N, E.) from Boroughbri
taining 78 inhabitanti. : .
ELMHAM (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of
Launprren, county of NorroLk, 5% miles (N,) from East
Dereham, containing 1046 inhabitants, living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £13. 15.,
and in the patronage of R. Mills, Esq. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, has at the west end a quag r
tower with a slender spire one hundred and nineteen
feet high. The kingdom of the East Angles, which
from its first conversion by Felix had heen under one
bishop, was, about 673, divided into two dioceses, when
one of the episcopal seats was fixed at Dunwich, and
the other in this ancient town, which had a succession
of ten bishops, till the martyrdom of Humbert by the
Danes, in 870. The two sees were again united
about 950, and the episcopal chair transferred to Thet-
ford in 1075, and soon afterwards to Norwich. = The
site of the cathedral is still discernible, and near it
are some old wells. Herbert, first bishop of Norwich,
rebuilt the parish church, but the present seems to be
of later date : from the altar ran a subterranean
to the palace, situated on a neighbouring hill, which
Bishop Spencer, in the turbulent reign of Richard 11.,
converted into a castle, and surrounded with a double
intrenchment, the inner moat enclosing the keep ; its
remains are now almost obscured by thorns and briars.
Not far from the village, numerous Roman urns and
coins were discovered in 1710; and in a field called
Broomclose, urns of various sizes and colours, con-
taining bones, ashes, glass, divers brass instruments, and
a silver seal-ring with an eagle holding a thunderbolt,
have been found. 3
ELMHAM (SOUTH) ALL SAINTS, a parish in
the hundred of WanNGrorD, county of SurroLk, 5 miles
(N.W.) from Halesworth, containing 239 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, with that of St.
Nicholas annexed, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk; and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8,
and in the patronage of Alexander Adair, Esq.
ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST. CROSS, or SANDCROFT,
a parish in the hundred of WanGromp, county of
SurroLk, 4 miles (E. by N.) from Harleston, containing
233 inhabitants, The living is a discharged rectory,
annexed to the rectory of Homersfield, in the archdea-
conry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £10, and in the patronage of Alexander
Adair, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. George..
ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST.JAMES, a parish in the
hundred of WaNGrorD, county of SurroLk, 5% miles
(N.W. by W.) from Halesworth, containing 351 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
‘the king's books at £8, and in the patronage of
*'Alexander Adair, Esq. NG
'ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST. MARGARET, a parish
the hundred of WANGForD, county of Surrorxk, 6F
Halesworth, containing 181 inhabit-
: is a discharged rectory, with that
‘8t Peter ‘in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6.2. 11, and in the patronage of Alexander Adair,
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ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST. MICHAEL, a parish in
the hundred of Wanarorp, county of Surrork, 6 miles
(N.N.W.) from Halesworth, containing 128 inhabitants.
The living is" a’ discharged rectory, with the perpetual
curacy of Rumburgh anmnexed, in the archdeaconry of
Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
at £4.'17. 11., endowed with £800 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of Mrs. Athill. ;

ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST. NICHOLAS, a parish in
the hundred of WAnGrorp, county of Su¥rork, 6}
milés (N.W.) from Halesworth, containing 91 inhabi-
tants. The living is a discharged rectory, annexed to
the rectory of All Saints, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6.
The church has been long since demolished.

ELMHAM (SOUTH) ST. PETER, a parish in the
huhdred of Wanerorp, county of Surrork, 33 miles
(8.) from Bungay, containing 139 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, annexed to that of St.
Margaret, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the King's books at £€8.

ELMHURST, a joint township with Curborough,
in that part of the parish of St.Cuap which is in the
northern division of the hundred of Orrrow, county
of SrArroRrn, 13 mile (N. by W.) from Lichfield, contain-
ing 250 inhabitants.

ELMINGTON, a hamlet in the parish of OunpLz,
hundred of Porrsroox, though locally in the hundred
of Willybrook, county of Norrmampron, 1% mile
(N.E.byN.) from Oundle, with which the population is
returned. Here was formerly a chapel.

ELMLEY CASTLE, a parish in the middle division
of the hundred of OswaLpsLow, county of WoRCESTER,
4% miles (W.8.W.) from Evesham, containing 316 inha-
bitants. = The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
king's books at £5. 6. 5%., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Bishop of Worcester, The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, contains some handsome monuments. On
one of the Breedon hills a strong castle was erected, in
the reign of William the Conqueror, and destroyed in
that of Henry I11.: a college, or chantry, for eight priests
was founded in it by Guy Beauchamp, Ear% of War-
wick, in honour of the Blessed Virgin: the site and
surrounding moat are still discernible. Henry ITI,

granted to this place a weekly market and an annual fair

on St. Lawrence's day. Here are quarries of stone, one
kind of which is blue, used for the flooring of kitchens.
A small stone cross stands within the parish. )

ELMLEY (ISLE OF), a parish in the liberty of
the Isle of Suerry, lathe of Scray, county of Kenr,
34 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Queenborough, containing 23
inhabitants.  The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's
books at £5, and in the p ge of the Warden and
Fellows of All Souls’ College, Oxford. ‘The church, dedi-
eated to St. James, is dilapidated, and only used on the
induetion of a new - . This small island, adjoining
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ELMLEY-LOVETT, a parish in the lower division
of the hundred of Havrrsuire, county of WoRCESTER,
4 miles (E.by8.) from Stourport, containing 447 inha-
bitants. The living is a reetory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Worcester, rated in the King's books at
£17.2. 6., and in the patronage of John Lynes, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael. There are two
schools, endowed with part of the profits of an estate
bequeathed, at a very early period, by an individual now
unknown, for the benefit of the church and the poor of
the parish. This place gives the title of viscount to the
Lygon family. gl

ELMORE, a hamlet in the parish of Morcoms,
liberty of GrrrincuaM, Shaston (West) division of the
county of Domser, § a mile (N.) from Shaftesbury.
On Elmore Green are several wells, from which the
town of Shaftesbury is supplied with water, and as an
acknowledgment for the benefit derived therefrom, a
particular custom is annually kept up, by ancient agree-
ment between the lord of the manor and the mayor and
burgesses, who, on the Monday before Holy Thursday,
go in procession to the wells, with what is termed a
prize besom, richly ornamented with plate and peacocks’
feathers, carrying also a raw calf's head and a pair of
gloves, all which are presented to the steward, who re-
turns the former, when it is brought back to the town
with great formality. ‘

ELMORE, a perish in the middle division of the
hundred of Dupsronr and Kine's BarToN, county of
GrLoUCESTER, 6% miles (W.8.W.) from Gloucester, con-
taining 355 inhabifants. The living is a
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £800
royal bounty, and in the patronage’ of Sir' Berkeley
William Guise, Bart. The church, dedicated to St. John
the Baptist, has an embattled tower at the west end.
The waters in the neighbourhood abound with eels,
from which Elmore bably derived its name, The
river Severn is navigable on the west of the parish ;
but, owing to & rock extending nearly across the stream
there is only a narrow channel for vessels of light

ht, , at | “\:;rstr B’I‘herew (;l::e a 'day and
Sunday schools, supported by W, Guise,

ELyMSALL (N%RTH), a township in the parish of
Sovrn Kirksy, upper divisioiﬁ.qhe wapentake of Os-
corpcross, West riding of the egunty of Yok, 6§
miles (S8.byE.) from Pontefract, containing 113 inha-

bitants. _
Enngm (SOUTH), a to

Sovrn Kirkgpy, upper division

OscoLpcross, West | of

miles (8.by E.) from Pontefract,
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mamm the hundred of TENDRING,
aty of Essex, 44 miles (E.byN.) from Colchester,
ontaining 693 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £8, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Jesus
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St. Anne,
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
The river Coln forms a boundary to the parish, which is
crossed by a Roman road, called Stone-street. There is
a fair for toys on the 15th of May.

ELMSTED, a parish in the hundred of Srouring,
lathe of SmepwAy, county of Kent, 8 miles (E.byN.)
from Ashford, containing 454 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 4., and
in the patr of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The
church is dedicated to St.James. There is a fair on
the 25th of July. \

ELMSTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of SpARk-
ENHOE, county of LeicesTer, 3 miles (N. E. by E.) from
Hinckley, containing 46 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, annexed to the rectory of Barwell, in the arch-
deaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £6. 13. 4. The church is desecrated,
the ruins having been converted into a barn.

ELMSTONE, a parish in the hundred of PresToON,
lathe of St. AuGusTINE, county of KenT, 24 miles (N.E.
by N.) from Wingham, containing 76 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 7. 84., and
in the patronage of Thomas Delmar, Esq. There is a
school endowed with donations amounting to about £3

ELMSTONE-HARDWICKE, a parish partly in
the lower division of the hundred of DrrrnursTt, but
chiefly in the lower division of the hundred of West-
MINSTER, county of GLOUCESTES .33 miles (No.fNI.JW.)
to; ), 857 inhabit-~
arged vic , in the arch-
pucester, rated in the king's
the patronage of the Crown.
St. Mary Magdalene. ;

K, 53 miles (N.w.) from Stow-
§ inhabitants. The living is a
onry of Sudbury, and diocese of

ng’s books at £11, 7. 11., and
Robert Gardiner. The church is
the Eve There is a place

mm An almshouse was
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ELSDON, a parish in the southern division of
quvx'rmu: ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, com-
prising the townships of Elsdon ward, Monkridge ward,
Otterqu ward, Rochester ward, Troughend ward, and
W(_)odslde ward, and containing 1848 inhabitants, of
which number, 299 are in the township of Elsdon ward,
18} miles (W.N.W) from Morpeth. The livin g is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland, and
diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at £20,
and in the patronage of the Duke of Northumberland.
The church, dedicated to St. Cuthbert, is a large cruci-
form structure. A few years since, in clearing away the
earth against the morth transept, upwards of one hun-
dred skeletons were discovered, lying in double rows
alternately between the legs of each other. The river
Reed and the new Edinburgh road intersect the parish,
There are some fine seams of coal, which, with lime-
stone and iron-stone,is obtained in abundance. A fair
for cattle, sheep, linen and woollen cloth, is held on the
26th of August. Elsdon is supposed to have been a
Roman town, and the first of a chain of forts between
Watling-street and the Devil's causeway. North-east of
the village is an ancient intrenchment, called Moat-hill,
which, from the relics discovered in it, seems to have
been used as a place of sepulture by the Romans. About
two miles to the north-west is Tod-law, an eminenee
upon which are three large columns of stone; in a tri-
angular position, said to have been set up to the memory
of some distinguished Danish leaders. Elsdon castle
was erected by David, King of Scotland ; it is a strong
tower building, now the rectory-house, the lower story
of which is spanned by a single arch, having in front
the armorial bearings of Umfraville, Lord of Prudhoe,
who died about 1325.

ELSENHAM, a parish in the hundred of UrrLES-
¥ORrD, county of Essex, 2 miles (N.E.) from Stansted-
Mountfitchet, containing 434 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £11, 10., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of London. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a small endowmen
for teaching two poor children. :

ELSFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Burring-
ToN, county of Oxrorp, 3§ miles (N.E.byN.) from
Oxford, containing 188 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, rated
in the king's books at £6. 8. 15., and endowed  with
£200 royal bounty. The Earl of Guildford was patron in
1804. The church is dedicated to St. Thomas & Becket.

ELSHAM, a parish in the northern division of the

take of YARBOROUGH, parts.of Lannsey, county
of LincoLx, 5 miles (N.E. by NT)h?;m Gllnﬂf‘:‘:l'm»
taining 383 inhabitants. iving is a discharged
in the archdeaconry and diocese of
at £7.18. 4. W.T.
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" ELSING, a parish in the hundred of Eyngrowp,
county of Nonrou, 5 miles (N.E.byE.) from East
Dereham, cnntaimng 374 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdu.conry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5.11.8,
The Rev. R, Browne was patron in 1820,

ELSLACK, a joint township with Broughton, in the
parish of BROUGHTON in AREDALE, eastern division of
the wapentake of StAincLirre and Ewcross, West
riding of the county of Yorxk, 4§ miles (W.8.W.) from
Skipton, oon‘tninhlg 427 mhabltants

ELSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of FArnuawm,
county of SURREY, 42 miles (W.) from Godalming, con-
zumng 608 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese of Win-
chester, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and £ 1400
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of Robert
Colmer, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. James,
The navigable river Wey runs through the parish,

ELSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Dumerorp,
rape of CrarcuesTeR, county of Svssex, 41 miles (W,
by 8.) from Midhurst, containing 100 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Chichester, rated in the king's books at £11, 13. 4.
Lord Selsey was patron in 1822. The church has por-
tions m the Norman style of architecture,

ELSTOB, a township in the parish of StaiNToNn,
morth-eastern division of Stockron ward, county
palatine of Durnam, 9 miles (N. E. by N.) from Dar-
lington, containing 28 inhabitants.

ELSTON, a township in the parish of Prestox,
hundred of AMouNDERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 4% miles (E.N.E.) from Preston, containing 76
inhabitants.

ELSTON, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of NEwWARk, county of NorriNcmam, 5%
miles (8, W. by §.) from Newark, containing 446 inhabi-
tants.  The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £9. 8. 9. 'W. B. Darwin, Esq. was patron in
1819. The church, dedicated to All Saints, contains
several monuments to the Darwin family. A commo-
dious uchool-hmue was erected in 1812, at the expense
of Robert Waring Darwin, Esq., which is endowed with
ln’dﬂlm‘ted in 1801 by the commissioners for enclo-
sing the open fields of Elston, in lieu of that bequeathed
in 1652 by the Rev. Robert Pendleton, and other land
pumhued wlth £100, the legacy of Elizabeth Darwin,
in 1784 : there are also a dwelling-house, garden, and
orchard, for the master, who gratuitously teaches nine
poor children, An almshouse, for four poor 3
was built in 1744, in pursuance of the will & ;;Ann
Darwin, in 1722. j ;

ELSTON, a chapelry in the parish of EAI'I' S'ron,
southern division of the wapentake of NEwawa, county
of Norrsncuam, 5% miles (8. W by 8.) from %
Bl
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ELSTON-COMBE, a hamlet in the pwhérﬁu&-
viv, hundred of SToxE, county of SomErser.  The po-
pulation is retwrned with the parish. Here ‘was for—
merly a chapel, now demolished. -

ELSTOW, a parish in the hundred of Rlnnét
STOKE, county of Beprorp, 14 mile (8. b W)m
Bedford, containing 548 inhabitants. The living s a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, aﬁd
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £7. 9., en-
dowed with £800 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
William Henry Whitbread, Esq. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary and St. Helen, a fine old structure in the Nox-
man style, was formerly the conventual church, and is
now, with its detached tower to the north-west, the
remains, of an abbey of Benedictine nuns, founded in
the reign of William the Congqueror, by his niece, Ju-
dith, Countess of Huntingdon, to the honour of the
Holy Trinity, St. Mary, and St. Helen ; at the dissolu-
tion it contained an abbess and twenty-one nuns, whose
annual revenue amounted to £325.2. 1. There are
faire for all sorts of cattle on May 14th and 15th, and
November 5th and 6th. John Bunyan, author of the
Pilgrim’s Progress, was born here.

ELSTREE, or IDLESTREE, a parish in the hun-
dred of Casmo, or liberty of St. Anpan's, county of
Herrrorp, 3 miles (N. by W.) from Edgware, con-
taining 309 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the urchdeacunry of St. Alban’s, and dio-
cese of London, rated in the king's books at £8, and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated
to St. Nicholas, was enlarged "and new seated in 1824,
and received an addition of one hundred and ninety sit-
tings, of which one hundred and sixty-four are free, at
an expense of more than £900, of which sum, £250
w ted by the Incorpnrated Society for e ing
churgl‘:: and chapels : it is said to have be%
erected out of the ruins of the ancient city Sulloniacim,
the site and foundations of which are still visible about
one mile to the southward. The village st up
the spot where the old Watling-street crosses fro
Middlesex into Hertfordshire, and is partly in.four
parishes, viz. Aldenham, Edgware, Elstree, ‘and ‘Whit
church. There is a bequest of £5 a year frau
bert Warren, for apprenticing one poor child. A
tional school was established in 1813. 4

ELSTRONWICK, a chapelry in the parwh of I
pLETON, middle division of the wapentake of Hots
ness, East riding of the mnﬁtzmd York, 9§ miles
(E.N.E.) from Kingston upon containing 154 in-
habitants. The chapel is of great antiquity.

a small endowed {: ;
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, pztmnmmink is a rectory, in
w@m?:mt@ﬁhthé, 1g's
. 6.05. The church is dedicated to the
mity. There is a trifling endowment for a
school. Dr, Franklin, in 1695, bequeathed £400
for building and endowing, three almshouses for poor
wi
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gy - }'HAM ,a parish in the hundred of BLACKHEATH,
lathe of Surtox at Hone, county of Kenr, 85 miles
(8.E. by 8.) from London, containing, with the hamlet
of Mottingham, part of which is in the parish of Chi-
selhurst, 1977 inhabitants. This place, in Domesday-
book called Alteham, from which its present appellation
is. deduced, is supposed to have derived its name from
the Saxon Eald, old, and Ham, a dwelling. It formed
part of the royal demesne in the reign of Edward the
Ider, by whom it was given to’Odo, Archhishop of
Canterbury, and at a very early period became a fa-
vourite retreat of the English kings, Henry II1. kept a
grand festival in 1270, attended %y his queen and the
whole ‘court, in the palace, which was enlarged by An-
thony Beck, Bishop of Durham, about the close of the
thirteenth century. Edward II. resided here for some
time, where also his son’'was born (and from this cir-
cumstance called John of Eltham), and the palace, erro-
neously, King John's palace, Edward III. held parlia-
ments here in 1329 and 1375, and in 1364 sumptuously
entertained his prisoner, King John, of Frauce, in the
palace.  Richard IL. here celebrated the festival of Christ-
mas, in 1384 and 1886 ; and Henry IV, in 1405, on which
occasion the Duke of York was accused of an attempt
to surprise and murder the king. Edward IV. repaired
he palace and enclosed one of the parks; Henry VIL
built a front to it, and otherwise improved it, and it
continued to be the occasional residence of the kings of
Englasd till the reign of Henry VIIL, who celebrated
ndid festivals in it, after which time it began to
importance to Greenwich, which, in the reign of
obtained the ascendancy. During the civil
he reign of Charles I, Eltham was occupied
Earl :&%mx, the parliamentary general, who
n 1646, Of the extent of this once magnifi-
‘idea may be formed from the parliamen-
which it is described as having “ one
: Mgrmhm, forty-six rooms and offices
h two large cellars ; and above stairs,
ng-rooms on the king's side, dt:r:lhve on
nd nine on the princes’ side, thirty-

“'A

' long, and thirty-six. wide,
3& and a finely orna-

years been used as a

s, portions of
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rear 1 'um,cont;ming 319 inha‘bitants.‘v
. with a view to its )

Il in. the early style
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in height : the moat by which it was surrounded was
from. seventy to cighty fect in. breadth, and.rom four-
o ™ Dby e B, e, dry. pod Hhongh
:g;l;le;%d S0 e ta criol form may be dis-
traced ; the princi ridge has two poi

arches finely groined.p v i o, poiieg
The village is irregulacly built, but contains many
handgpme houses, and the environs abound with noble
mansions and elegant seats; Shooter's hill, so named
from its having been anciently used for the practice of
archery, and on which a singular triangular tower has
been erected, by his lady, to the memory of Sir William
Daines, Bart., is celebrated for the beauty of its situ-
ation, and the extent and variety of its prospects ; on
its summit has been erected one of the telegraphs eom-
municating between London and Dovor. The parish is
within the jurisdiction of the court of requests held
weekly at Greenwich, under an act passed in the 47th of
George ITL, for the recovery of debts not exceeding £5.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's books at
£3. 2. 6., endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
#£400 royal bounty. Sir Gregory Page Turner, Bart.
was patron in 1783. The church, dedicated to St. John
the Baptist, is a plain edifice, with a spire: in it
were interred the remains of Dr. Horne, Bishop of
Norwich, who died in 1792; and in the church-yard,
those of Sir William Daines, Bart,, and D t, the
comedian, partner with Wilks and Cibber, and who
left a coat and badge to be rowed for annually on the
1st of August. There is a place of worship for Inde-
pendents. A free school was built in 1634, and endowed
in 1714, by Mrs. Elizabeth Leggatt, with lands producing
more than £30 per annum ; there are sixteen boys at
present taught in this school. An almshouse was -
founded, in 1680, by Mr. Thomas Phillipot, for six aged
persons, four of this parish, and two of the parish of
Chiselhurst, and endowed with lands producing upwards
of £30 per aunum. This parish has the privilege of
sending three of the pensioners to Queen Elizabeth's
hospital at Greenwich. Among the benefactions to the
poor are a grant of land by Henry VIL, in 1492, and
another in 1509, by Mr, John Passey. On the sum-
mit of a hill south by east from the town, are t)xe_ re-
mains of a Roman camp. Dr. William Sherard, the
celebrated botanist, resided here in the carly part of the
eighteenth century, and cultivated a botanical garden,
assisted by the German botanist, Dillarius, who ub;
lished a catalogue of the plants in two volumes, olio,
ander the title of Hortus Elthamensis, in 1732. The
learied herald and Kentish bistorian, John Phillipot,
was a native of this place, or resided here. Fre-
derick,#®rince of Wales, was created Earl of Eltham
in gﬁd, which title is still borne by the King of Fmg-
hn,u?mv, a parish in the hundred of LonGsTow,
CamsripeE, 3 miles (N.W. by W.) from Cax-
The ‘:1;“;' l!adiso—f

charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
Ely, rated in the king's books at £7. 16. 8,, endowed
with £600 royal bounty, and £200 entary grant
and in. the patronage of
dicated to $t. Pandiania
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G. 'W. Leeds, and an a ual ti £6 is appro- mter, d within the nrin(hchon cour
pihoc oviits Viblilig dm E«E \ punnery  held at’ 'mtbhﬁevery ?%?i- he 1
formerly stood near the vfoor (vhé'ré St' Pun- debts under 40s.

diania, the dtmghm- of ‘a King df’Scoﬂand is said to
have beeti ‘buried:

m desﬂoyed about the time of
the Congquest.

"ELTON, a township “in' the parish of TrorNTON,
second dMsibn of the hundred of Eppissury, county
palatine of CuesTeR, 53 miles (W.8.W.) from Frodsham,
containing' 1 inhabitasts, The Grand Trunk canal
passes through this parish.

, & township in the parish of WARMINGHAM,
h\mﬂrbﬂ of NorrawicH, county palatine of CHESTER,
:zbmﬂes (W. by s.) from Sandbach, containing 379 in-

“ELTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
'me.cnnr which is in the hundred of WirksworTH,
of Derny, 14 mile (W.) from Winster, contain-
mg 548 inhabitants. . The living is a perpetual curacy,
i the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£200 i'oyﬂ b('mnty, and £ 200 parliamentary grant, and
in the of the Inhabitants. The chapel is de-
dicate toAl! Saints.  This chapelry is ‘in the honour
of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the juris-
diction of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every third
Tﬂbday, for the recovery of debts under 40s.
ELTON, a purish in the south-western division of
Stockron ward, county palatine of Durnanm, 34 miles
(W.8.w.) from Stockton upon Tees, containing 105 in-
habitants. * The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, rated in the
king's hooks at £7. 1. 54., and in the patronage of
R. E. D. Shafto, and — Hogg, Esqrs., the former having
two, and the latter one tarn in the presentation.
" "ELTON, a parish in the hundred of Wiemore,
county of HErEroRD, 43 miles (8. W.by W.) from Lud-
low, containing 93 mhabltauts The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, united with Yarpole to the rectory of Croft,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, endowed
gtb £800 royal bounty. The church is dedicated to
EL , a parich in the h\mdred of NormAn-Cross,
o&utty of HunTinGpox, 4§ miles (N.E. ) from Oundle,
ning 785 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
i ( of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lin-
eoln ’rﬁteﬂinth‘é king's books at £28, 9. 2., and in the
wage of the Master and Fellows of Umversxty Col-
: . The church, dedicated to All Saints, has
mm in the deconﬁéd, I?eteh }nmﬁonsfoin gm lntea‘
le. 'Theré is a of wors| r Wesle
H otﬁ::g. A’ﬁweéschobriisémpwe}l‘ipﬁthbew’;g
k £40E%50 i’?&nﬁ in that ‘of the parish
a e bf
Bury which is in ﬁ;ucflmndm'lpo.t!.t SALFORD, count
p-ht!heofg:gx;c mzk;gw.byN.)Eh-Mry

ELTRINGHAM, a mmmp mtbe pm;ﬁ‘agoi
HAM, eastern division of TiNDALE ward,
NORTHUMBERLAND, 13% niiles (W. by 8.) fx’oin
castle, containing 52 inhabitants, v
" ELVASTON, a parish in the hundred b ﬂon
roN and LitcHURCH, county of DersY, 5 miles (8.E.
E.) from Derby, containing 408 inhabitants. i
living is a disch d vicarage, in the archdencoprf
Derbgy, and dmct:%eof Llchz%fd and Coventry, rated in
the King's books at £5. 3. 9., endowed with £400 pri:
vate benefaction, and £400 myal bounty, and in the pa-
tronage of the Earl of Harrington. The church is de-
dicated to St. Bartholomew. In January, 1643,
ton hall, the seat of Lady Stanhope, was plun
the parliamentarian troops under Sir John Gell.
river Derwent runs through this parish, Earl Stanhoisé
enjoys the inferior title of Baron Stanhope of Elvaston.

ELVEDON, otherwise ELDEN, a parish in the hun-
dred of LAckromp, county of SurroLk, 3§ miles (5.W.
by wW.) from Thetford, containing 277 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£12. 17, 6. Newton, Esq. was patronm1796 The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

ELVETHAM, a parish in the hundred of Obrmam,

Basingstoke division of the county of SoUTHAMPTON,
1§ mile (5.8.E.) from Hartford-Bridge, containing 497
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arc’h
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the ki
books at £ 9, and in the patronage of Lord Caltho:
The water near Hartford- Bndge, in this };a.rlah is
strongly impregnated with iron, Here was formerly a
splendid mansion belonging to the Earls of Hertford,
where Queen Elizabeth, in 1591, was mmptuorusly en-
tertained for four days.

ELVINGTON, a parish in the wapentake of Ouze
and Derwent, East riding of the county of Yomk,
7miles (E.S.E.) from . containing 405 |
The living is a discha ory, in the archdeac
Bdw?ev and, and diocese o '

s at £5. 17. 33, a
Crown. The church, ded
a neat building, erected in_
L.L.B., rector. There is a p
leyan Methodists. A school is
to the master of which £20




o the -west of the church is an eminence called
Beacon hill, which had formerly a beacon on its summit.
. ELWORTHY, a parish in the hundred of WirLiToN
nd FREEMANNERS, county of Somerser, 53 miles,
(N.) from Wiveliscombe, containing 187 inhabitants,
'he living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton,
“‘}mm of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books
at £6. 6. 8,, and in the patronage of William Locke,
Esq. - The church is dedicated to St, Martin. ;
e AT SR\ ELY, a city in the Isle
. N of Eiy, county of Cam-
BRIDGE, 16 miles (N.N.E,)
from Cambridge, and 67 (N.
by E.) from London, contain-
& ing 5079 inhabitants. This
place, which is ithe capital
of an extensive district in
the fens, comprising the
greater part of the northern
division of Cambridgeshire,
derived its Saxon name Elig,
either from the British Helyg, a willow, with which
tree, from the marshy nature of the soil, it especially
abounded, or, according to Bede, from Eige, an eel, for
which fish, from the same cause, it was equally remark-
able. Ethelreda, daughter of Anna, Kingof the East Angles,
founded a monastery here in 673, for monks and nuns,
which she dedicated to the Blessed Virgin Mary, and,
though married to Egfrid, King of Northumberland,
devoted herself to a monastic life, and became its first
lbieu ~This monastery, which was destroyed by the
Danes in 870, was, a few years afterwards, partially
restored by some of the monks who had escaped the
massacre, and established themselves as secular priests
der the government of provosts for nearly a century.
- of ster, having pur-
e of Ely, rebuilt
ently endowed, ang
+ monks, to whom
jurisdiction of two hundreds
without the fens, with many
‘were subsequently confirmed
d by Edward the Confessor, who
eﬂg\ca’tion. Soon after the
ish pobility, unable to brook
retired to this place in 1071,
1 qf Chester,

P
n1s

’ m%;,lﬂdwud tﬁe Confessor,
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. Peter, stands on & remarkable elevation at the east on his conquest of the isle, he fook possession. but
SR approached on one side by o suffered the mouka to remain with. certiin oty
4 f‘m‘l‘ﬁmpﬁ Hising from the dell whch se- under an abbot of his own appointment, at whose inter
tes this plac from the v age of Elwick. A little cession he subsequently restored. the privi he;

prevnously enjoyed. Richard, the tenth and last abtl]il:t,’
a thrt time prior to his death, ubtained from ‘Henry L
permission to establish an episcopal see at Ely, whicd
m 1107 was carried into effect, and Hervey, who, has
been driven by the Welch from his own see of Bangor,
was made first bishop. To him and his successors
Hepry I gave for a diocese, the county of Cambridge,
which had previously belonged to the bishop of Lincoln,
and invested them with sovereign powers in the isle.
On the accession of Hervey, who was to supersede the
abbot, a new division of lands belonging to the abbey
took place, between the bishop and the prior and
monks ; the bishop's share was, in the 26th of Henry
VIIL, valued at £2134. 18. 6., and that of the prior
and monks at £1301. 8. 2. The bishop granted a
fair, to continue for seven days, commencing on the
20th of June, the anniversary of Ethelreda’s death. A
castle was built here, by Bishop Nigel, in_the reign of
Stephen, of which there are no remains; its probable site
being only distinguishable by a mount to the south of
the church. In 1216, during the contest between John
and his barons, William Bunk, with a party'of Brabant-
ers, taking advantage of a frost, together with the Earl
of Salisbury and others, entered the Isle of Ely, plun-
dered the churches, and committed dreadful ravages,
compelling the inhabitants to pay large sums of money
for the ransom of their lives, and the prior two hun-
dred marks to save the cathedral from being burnt..
The city is situated on elevated ground nearly at the
southern extremity of the isle, and on the river Ouse,
which is navigable from Lynn for barges: it consists
of one long street, partially paved, with smaller streets
diverging from it, both in the upper and lower parts of the
town, in the centre of which is a spacious market-place:
the houses in general are of indifferent appearance, and,
with the exception of the cathedral and ecclesiastical
buildings, the town has few claims to architectural
notice. The ground in the vicinity, though flat and
marshy, is extremely fertile, producing excellent her-
bage, and a cousiderable portion of it is cultivated by
market gardeners, who supply the neighbouring towns
with vegetables : great quantities of fruit and butter are
also sent to the London market, and the strawberries
and asparagus produced are remarkably fine, There is
a considerable manufactory for earthenware and fo-
bacco-pipes ; and there are numerous mills in the isle
for the preparation of oil from flax, hemp, and cole-seed.
The market is on Thursday, for corn and eattle: the .
fairs are on Ascension-day and the eight following days,
and October 29th for horses, cattle, hops, and .
The" charter of privileges granted to the monastery
in the 13th of his reign, enlarged and eon-
e e e i
Henry I, who granted to the bishop jura rega
ﬁdthinthehle,haﬁﬂwsxlwww. he foundation
of that temporal jurisdiction which
me,;ﬁ:dl‘ezom-the.ﬁmvf re




ELY 182, ELY
Ely, in several stitutes, was. ted the county pala- through almost imperceptible ions, the various
tine of Ely, till the 27th of Henry VIIL, when, by act changes which have characterised the progress of eccle-
of parliamen o t, thejuﬁww “oyer and terminer bymﬂ' siastical architecture, from the earliest times of the N

gaol delivery, and justices of the peace for the Isle of
under the great seal, and all writs to be issued in the
king's name. Exclusive jurisdiction, both in civil and
criminal matters, is vestéd in the bishops, who, with their
“ temporal steward " of ‘the isle, are by the same act
justices of the peace, and hold a general assize of
oyer and terminer and gaol delivery twice in the year,
and a court of pleas for the trial of civil actions to any
amount, the proceedings in which are similar to those
in the Nisi Prius court at Westminster, and quarterly
courts of session alternately here and at Wisbeach : the
bishop is also Custos Rotulorum of the isle, which in-
cludes the three hundreds of Ely, Wisbeach, and
Witchford. A court of requests, under an act passed
in the 18th of George IIL, is held monthly at Ely,
March, Wisbeach, and Whittlesea, for the recovery of
debts under 40s. The municipal government of the
city is vested in magistrates appointed by the bishop,
who are justices of the peace within the isle; of these,
the chief bailiff, called in the act of the 27th of Hen. VIII.
“ the temporal steward,” exercises the fanctions of
high sheriff, his appointment being for life ; he summons
the juries, both in civil and criminal cases, from the
inhabitants of the isle only, who are exempt from serv-
ing on juries for the county, and also from all contri-
butions to the public rates for that part of the county
which is beyond the limits of the isle. The court-house
is a neat and commodious building, consisting of a cen-
tre, erected in 1821, containing apartments for holding
the several courts, in front of which is a handsome por-
tico of four columns ; and two wings, of which the north
is an infirmary, and the south a chapel. The common
gaol, adjoining it, comprises four divisions for the
clasdification of prisoners, one general day-room, and
one airing-yard. The house of correction, situated be-
‘hind the court-house, and erected at the same time,
comprises the

-east side ‘of the quadrangle, wards for females and
soners confined for small debts : it is well ada

“to the Hol ity ; he en- -
dowed . it he 4t i
» “ ‘-‘.vi»l:: ’j‘

vernor's house in the centre, on each &I
side of which are eight cells for male felons, and on the.

man to the latest period of the English style, The plan-
differs from that of other Mﬁm:%‘ﬁ&
the nave, which is continued through an exte ang
of twelve arches, and in the shortness of the t
septs, which have only a projection of three arches : th
west front, though incomplete from the want of -
south wing of the facade, is strikingly magnificent;
in the lower part it is in the Norman style, with a
handsome octagonal turret at the southern extremity,
a projecting porch of early English architecture, and a
lofty, massive, and highly enriched tower, with uls
turrets, of Norman character in the lower stages; and in
the upper, of early English, formerly surmounted by
a lofty spire, which has been taken down; from the
Aintersection of the nave and transepts rises a noble oc-
tagonal lantern, which is considered one of the finest
compositions in the decorated style of English archite
ture, and equally admirable for the excellence of its
tails and the beauty of its arrangement : it is eighty.
feet in diameter, and rests on piers which supported
a tower, that fell down in 1322. The interior of the
cathedral is singularly elegant, and derives a simple
grandeur of effect from the judicious arrangement by
which the various styles of its architecture are made to
harmonise : the nave and transepts are in the Norman
style; the choir, partly in the early and partly in the
decorated style of English architecture, is separated from
the nave by three of the western arches, which were ori-
ginally part of it,and now form an ante-choir : the east-
ern part, or present choir, consisting of a range of six
arches, is lighted by a double range of windows, and
forms one of the richest specimens of the early English
style extant; the roof is beautifully groined, and the
intersections embellished with flowers and foliage of

elegant design ; the east window is ornamented with a
o s

g<

i
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y contrasted. .
apel is an elegant edifice in the later deco-
the groining of the roof, and the series of

ments, but inferior in general effect to other p
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W«elty,,uduivﬂyof the l!berty ofthe college
which is extra-parochial, comprises the parishes of St.
‘Mary and the Holy Trinity, in the peculiar jumdxction
and patronage of the Dean and Chapter. « The living of
St. Mary’s is a -curacy, endowed with £200
royal bounty, and £800 paﬂiamentary grant. The church
isian interesting structure, partly in the Norman, and
m the early style of English architecture, with a
1 e tower surmounted by a spire ; the nave is in
the Norman style, with clerestory windows of later Eng-
lish architecture ; the chancel is in the early English style,
with insertions ofa later date, and contains some remains
of ‘the ancient stalls ; the north porch and doorare of the
carly English style. The living of Holy Trinity parish
is also a perpetual curacy, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £400 parliamentary
grant. The church was formerly the lady chapel of the
cathedral, now fitted up for the parishioners. There are
places of worship for Baptists, those in the Countess of
Huntingdon's connexion, Independents, and Wesleyan
Methodists, The king's grammar school was founded
in 1541, by Henry VIIL, ‘on the establishment of the
cathedral : it is under the control of the Dean and Chap-
ter, who appoint the master. Jeremiah Bentham, the
celebrated political writer, received the rudiments of his
education inthis school, which at present is not attended
by any scholars. = A charity school was founded in 1730,
by Mrs, Catherine Needham, who endowed it with lands
and: tenements producing nearly £400 per annum, for the
instruction and - of thirty boys, with each of
wiwm an npprentiee fee of £20 is given, for which latter
§Laney, in 1674, bequeathed lands and
ional school for boys and girls is sup-
m aubsenption, the boys are taught in that part
of the abbey called the Gallery, formerly used as the
grammar gchool.  There are several charitable
ELYAUGH, a township in that part of the
Ferron which is mtho eastern division of Coauer-
( paLE. ward; county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 9 miles
i m from Alnwick, containing 13 inhabitants.
EMBER ahlmlntmthatpartofthepmshof
oy - which. is in the second division of the
BRIDGE, county of SurrEy, containing,

a:paﬁﬂlhthemmalwmm.
inu, 1 mile (8.) from Oluey, con-
keneyf m P ~mh-
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- EMBLETON, a chapelry in the. parish of Sepce-
Elnnpmﬂh-&m division of StockroN ward,county
palatine of Durmawm, 83 miles (N. by w.) fi-om Stm;i:r
ton upon Tees, containing 102 inhabitants,

EMBLETON, a parish in the southern division of
BAMBROUGH wm'd county of NoR1HUMBERLAND, COTH-
prising the chapelries of Renington and Rock, and the
townships of Brocksfield, High Bruton, Low Bruton, Cras-
ter, Dunston, Embleton, Fallowdon, Newton and Stam-
ford, and containing 1806 inhabitants, of which numbcr
413 are in the township of Embleton, 7{ miles (N, E
by N.) from Alnwick. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Northumberland,and diocese of Durham,
rated in the king's books at £11. 3. 4., endowed with
£600 royal bounty, and £200 parhamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of Merton
College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
A free school is endowed with £20 per annum.

EMBLEY, a tything in the parish of EastWeLLOW,
hundred of TeORNGATE, Andover division of the county
of SourHAMPTON, 2} miles (W.) from Romsey. The
population is returned with the parish.

EMBORROW (IN and OUT), a parish in the hun-
dred of CurwToN, county of SomerseT, 54 miles (N.E.)
from Wells, containing, with the tything of Whitnell,
250 inhabitants. The living isa perpetual curacy annexed
to the vicarage of Chewton-Mendip, in the archdeaconry
of Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. By the road side is a lake
covering about ten acres, with a thick wood behind, and
some pleasant walks, the whole presenting a very agree-
able appearance. There were formerly mines of coal
and lapis calaminaris, the working of which has seen
discontinued  between forty and fifty years.

EMBSAY, a joint township with Eastby, in that part
of the parish of Sk1pTON Which is in the eastern division
of the wapentake of StaincrirFe and Ewcross, West
riding of the county of York, 2 miles (N.E. by N,) from
Skipton, containing 861 inhabitants. William de
Meschines, and Cecilia de Romili, his wife, founded a
mo here in 1120, for canons regular of the
order, of St. Augustine, which about thirty years after
was translated, by their daughter Adeliza, to Bolton in
‘Craven : a chapel was continued long after its transla-

- There is a spring in the township still bearing
the name of St, Cuthbert's well.

EY, a parish in the lower division of the wa-
'Aannmo, West riding of the county of YoRx,
.8,B.) from Huddersfield, containing, with a
portion of the townahxp of Skelmanthorpe, 1351 inla-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and dmeele of York, rated in the king's books at
,7%.., and in the patronage of the Hon, and

“Savile

. "The church is dedicated to St.
'ﬂm‘e is a trifling endowment for the eﬂu

, & parish in the hundred of Iumwx.-
) from Thame.
recto
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miles (S. E. by E.) from Wisheach, oonﬁlnlngm ‘inha-
bitants, The living is a perpetuil curacy, annexed to
the rectory and vicarage of Elm, in the peculiar juris-
diction of the Bishop of Ely The church is dedicated

to St. Edmund,

EMPINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of East,
county of RutLAaND, 6% miles (E. byS.) from Oakho,m
containing 759 mhabltants The living is a dxscha.rged
vicarage, rated in the king's books at £7. 14, 94, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the peculiar Junsdlctxon and patronage
of the Prebendary of Empingham in the Cathedral
Church of Lincoln. The church, dedicated to St. Peter,
is a handsome edifice, principally in the early Enghsh

tyle, with some later insertions, There is a free school.

EEMPSHOT a parish in the hundred of SELBORNE,
Avron (North) division of the county of SoUTHAMP-
TON, 5 miles (N.) from Petersfield, containing 139 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
king's books at £5. 16. 5%,, endowed with £400 private
henefaction, and £400 royal bmmty, and in the patron-
age of Mrs Butler. The church is dedicated to the

Hol:

éMSWELL a joint township with Kelleythorpe,
in that part of the parish of DrirrieLp which is in the
Bainton-Beacon division of the wapentake of HARTHILL,
East riding of the county of Yorxk, 2 miles (W.) from
Great Driffield, containing 93 inhabitants.

EMSWORTH a tything in the parish of Wars-
LiNGToN, hundred of Bosmere, Portsdown division of
the county of SOUTKAMPTON, 2 miles (E.by8.) from
Havant. The population is returned with the parish.
This place lies upon the Sussex border, at the head of
Emsworth channel, which is navigable along Hayling
island to the English channel. Fairs for the sale of
toys, &c. are held, April 15th and July 18th.

ENBORNE, a parish in the hundred of Kixtsury-
EAGLE, county of Berks, 2% miles (W. 8.W.) from New-
bury, containing 349 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
m, in the urchdeaconry of Berks, and diocese gf

sbury, rated in the king's books at £10, and in ghe

of the Earl of Craven. The church is
cated to St. Michael. The Kennet and Avon ﬂanal
pubes thr(mgh the parish. The custom of free bench
e in the manor of East and West Enborne, whereby

the widow of a tenant is entitled to an estate in copy-
hold, for her dower, while she continues single and
in default of which she forfeits her I
choose to demand them by riding into court bbd:wardl
on ,‘blaekmm.andrepeatmga piece of loose ‘doggrel

e M

) of CorNwALL, 5% 1
. 1149 inhabitants.
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ENDELLION a pumh in the hundred of Trice, .

ENF

Marney is in the patronage of Richardson Gray, Esg,
In this Port Is ,whlah . a consid
g1 parish “and 'gw.- hni,t‘

utchers' meat. The principal export of the]ﬁake. el

is bounded on the north y the Briti , con-
sists of pilchards, and slate from the Deli.bt)le marries :
coal is imported from Wales. Inthe parish also is
Port Guin, formerly a large fishi At Port Isaac
is a charity school, established abont 1894, and lﬁp
ported by voluntary‘mbscriptxons

ENDERBY, a parish in the, lmndred of SPARK-
ENHOE, county of LEicester, 4% miles (5. W.) from
Leicester, containing 1143 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the kingsbooks at
£10. 8. 9. C.L.Smith, Esq. was patron in 1824. ' The
church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. There is a
chapel of ease at Whetstone, in this parish. A school for
thirty poor children was endowed with a house and £20
per annum, by Richard Smith, Esq., in 1762, Towards
the south-east, the parish is bounded by the river Soar.

ENDERBY (BAG), a parish in the hundred of Hivx,
parts of LinpsEy, county of LiNcoLn, 5% miles (N.'W.
byN.) from Spilsby, containing 107 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £6. 18, 14,
R. Burton, Esq. was patron in 1816. The church is de-
dicated to St. M

ENDERBY (MAVIS), a parish in the eastern divi-
sion of the soke of BorLinGsrokE, parts of LiNpsky,
county of Lincorn, 1§ mile (W.byN.) from Spilsby,
containing 189 inhabitants. The living is a disch
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £12, 11,3, The Rey.

C. Semple was patron in 1808. The church is dediwhd
to St. Michael.
ENDERBY |

D), aparish in t‘hesoke of Ho
SEY, county of LiNcoLw, 4 uﬁ;
i , containing 183 inhnbitlﬁﬁ
& perpe m;mcy in the archd
dowed with £1000
bounty, and in the pntronxge of the Bishop of Mﬁk
The church is dedicated to St. Benedict. sl
ENDFORD, a parish in the hundred of '
and Everuey, county of Wirts, 83 miles (W’
from Ludgershall, containing, with the
901 inhabitants. TheJiving is a vic
deaconry y
books at £19. 4.

nors of Christ’s

dicated to All Saints. M ﬁ'ﬂ
ENDON, a ch by

Lrrk which is in the northern division

of To'rxonsx.ow ponnoy of Srarrow
by W.) from e
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hbourhood of which, for the facility of its
, the timber growing in this extensive tract,
ly be felled prior to that in any other

sard VI. had a palace here, in which he kept his court
for a considerable time ; and in 1557, the princess, after-
wards Queen Elizabeth, spent some days in the palace,
when, with great pomp, she came to hunt in Enfield
Chase, which was well stocked with deer. In the earlier
part of her reign the queen made this her principal re-
sidence, where she held her ‘court previously to its re-
moval to London. James L., who had a palace at Theo-
bald’s, made frequent excursions to this forest, to enjoy
the diversion of the chase; and Charles IL. here had a
hunting seat, where he occasionally resided. During the
great civil war, the parliamentarian army destroyed the
game, and. cut down the trees ; and a considerable part of
the land was divided into small farms: it continued in
this state till after the Restoration, when it was re-planted
and stocked with deer. In 1777, it was finally disaf-
forested by act of parliament, and allotments assigned
to such parishes and individuals as claimed a right of
common : the Chase, on admeasurement, was found to
contain eight thousand three hundred and fifty acres,

of which the greater gart is now in tillage. Of
the ancient palace, which was probably repaired du-
ring the reigns of Edward VI and Elizabeth, but of

which the major part was taken down in 1792, only
one of ‘the’ princ rooms on the ground floor is re-
aining ; it is still in its original state, wi
anll ‘& Fichl§ oriamentsd cefling ¢ the gk
me, which is embellished with fi
foliage, is supported b;

rinthian and Tonic orders, ar ' the rose
and porteullis crowned, and
and France quartered, having #6 a lion

:Zg“?h, ‘and the motto “ Sola salus servire Deo ; sunt
era fraudes ;" part of a similar chimney-piece, re-
moved from one of the upper rooms, has been placed
on the wainscot over the door. A fine cedar of Libanus
the garden of the palace in 1666, the girth

distance from the ground is nineteen’
rk, and a gilt silver
 part of the ancient
{ ruins another silver
*Elizabeth, which is in

M

coin
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runs through the town, and the Lea navigation s
through part of the parish. The ma.rk‘:t onﬁ-,
day, granted by charter of Edward L in 1304, an
another on Saturday, by charter of James L, are l::g
discontinued ; but faire are still héld on September
23d, which is a statute fair, and November 30th. for
horses, cows, and cheese. Near the murket-houx,;e a
h.an(l_some stone cross, in the ancient style of English
architecture, was erected in 1826, by subscription. The
county magistrates hold here a petty session for the
division every alternate Wednesday : courts leet and
baron are held on the Wednesday in Whitsun-week :
and a court of requests is held for the hundred, for the
recovery of debts under 40s. Enfield is a liberty be-
longing to the duchy of Lancaster, and the inhabitants
appoint their own coroner, The parish comprises the
town, the Chase, Bull's cross, Baker street, and Green-
street, with Ponder's End.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Mid-
dlesex, and diocese of London, rated in the king's hooks
at £26, and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows
of Trinity College, Cambridge. A lectureship was esta-
blished in 1631, by Mr. Henry Loft, who endowed it
with £4 per annumh. The church, dedicated to St. An-
drew, is an ancient structure in the decorated and later
styles of English architecture, with a low square em-
battled tower ; the nave is separated from the aisles by
clustered columns and pointed arches : it contains many
ancient, and several splendid monuments, among which
are the tomb and effigies of Sir Nicholas Raynton and
his lady ; an altar-tomb to the memory of Joyce, Lady
Tiftoft, mother of the talented Earl of Worcester; a
handsome monument of Italian veined marble to Tho-
mas Stringer, Esq., and various others. In enlarging
the arch which separates the chancel from the nave, a
rude painting of the Resurrection in six compartments
was removed ; and in opening a vault in 1820, some
coffins in the sghape of the human frame were disco-
vered. A chapel of ease is about to be built in the divi-
sion of Green-street and Ponder’s End, at an estimated
expense of £4800, to be defrayed partly by a grant from

parliamentary commissioners, and partly by sub-
:%tion. There are places of worship for Independents,
Wesleyan Methodists, and Presbyterians, :

The free grammar school was originally endowed with
funds arising from a bequest by Mr. Robert Blossom, in’
1418, of land and premises in the parish of South Bem-
fleet, for the establishment of a chantry in that place,
which after the dissolution was granted to trustees for
the payment of a schoolmaster for the instruction of
poor children of the parish of Enfield, with remain-
der, after paying the expenses of repairs, &c., for dis.

tribution among the poor: the produce arising from
this and subsequent benefactions, and from the sale of
timber, is at prglent nearly £400 per annum : there




ENF

tion : an infant school was also eltablisimd'ﬂ Ponder's
End in 1830. Sir Nicholas ‘in 1646, be-
& ueathed £ 10 per annum in trust to theHuberduhers
y, for apprenticing children of this parish, to

which the churchwardens have added £3 per annum,
bheing the dividend on £100 stock, purchased with a
sum of £70 returned to them by the company, who for
thirty-five years had deducted £2 per annum for the
land tax. Henry Dixon, E&q., in 1693, left considerable
estates in the parishes of Bennington and Munden, in
the county of Herts; of Enfield in the county of Mid-
dlesex; and of St. Mlldred's in the Poultry, London, in
trust to the Drapers’ Company, for apprenticing boys
of these parishes above the age of fifteen; such as
bear his christian and surname, wherever born, are to
be preferred, and to receive a premium of £5, and
£5 on the expiration of their indenture: those who
bear only his surname receive a premium of £4, the
sons of tenants of any of his lands, wherever born, £3,
and any who are nominated by the court of assist-
ants of the Drapers’ Company, £4. Mrs, Anne Crowe,
in 1768, endowed almghouses for four aged persons, with
£500 reduced Bank Annuities. Thomas Wilson, Esq.,
in 1590, bequeathed the rents of three houses in White-
chapel, London, producing £162. 14. 6. per annum, for
ution among six aged men of this parish; one of

theae houses was sold by act of parliament and the money

in the purchase of £2091 three per cent. consols.,

the interest of which, with £150, the rental of the two
remaining houses, amounts to about £212 per annum.
John David, Esq. bequeathed the rents of tenements on
Enfield-green, producing £50. 5. per annum, to be di-
. wided among four aged widows. King James I. gave
#£500 for the purchase of three hundred and thirty-five
acres of land, a part of Enfield Chase; with which sum
the churchwardens bought an estate at North Mimms,
in’ Hertfordshire, afterwards exchanged for another at
Eastwood, in Essex, which is distributed among aged
widows : there are several other bequests for charitable

_ purposes. A charity for the relief of lying-in women . |
- was established in 1797, and is supported by subq" an

eédption

The Ermiindstrect led through part of the CYilie to'
Hertford ; and in a meadow called Old Bury, abowt half

‘4 mile t0 the east of the church, is the site % an
“ancient mansion, surrounded by a wide and ‘deep moat,
with high intrenchments, including a quadrilateral area

ofmnzty—nx yards in length, and forty in breadth; at
the north-west angle nanemmmcehuvingm
ance of the keep of a castle, probably the el re-
sidence of Humphrey de Bohun. To the south-west

of the town, and about a mile from Old Bury, is a

smaller moat, ontheesweoflohnmqymn th;nnd Egmo

tothesouth’ol Goululnwnhm

- of out-buildings belonging to a
Jeffreys- mugto*hmxui
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pieces of gold. In September, 1820, m loman coins
of silver and brass were J
Hill ; ‘they were of the reigns of D '
Aurelhu ‘Hadrian, An with  th
head of the Empress §: and severd om hout
seventy in number, many of which are in the . posses,
sion of Dr. May and C. P. Meyer, Esq.  William Qﬂ,
Earl of Chatham, was an inhabitant of d .
several years, and Richard Gough, the mthulry,

here till his decease in 1809. Enfield gives the title
of baron to the Earl of Rochford.

ENGLEFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Txm:
county of Berxks, 6 miles (W.) from Reading, contain-
ing 343 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Berks, and diocese of Sahsbury, rated in the
king's books at £11. 12. 8%., and in the patronage of
R. P. W. Benyon de Beauvoxr, Esq. The church has
some portions in the early English style, but has been
much modernised : it contains several interesting monu-
ments to the memory of the ancestors of the Marquis
of Winchester. This parish, which is not unfrequently
called Inglefield, derives its name from the Saxon word
Ingle, a fire or beacon light, and probably had its origin
about the middle of the ninth century, at which time
the Danes, having made themselves masters of Reading,
sent out a detachment from their army to attack the
Saxons, who were encamped at this place, and who
drove them back with great loss. - Elias Ashmole, the
herald and antiquary, retired to this place in 1647, where
he pursued his researches.

ENHAM (KING'S), a hamlet in the parish and
hundred of Axpover, Andover division of the county
of Sournamrron, 2 miles (N.) from Andover, with
which the population is returned. ¥his place is within
the jurisdiction of thg®Cheyney Court held at Wi
every Thm-sday, for ecovery of debts to any amouut.

HAM a parish in the hundred of
of the county of Squ'm-




built in'its stead: A school-roomhas . ENVILLE, a parish in the southern division of the

subgeription among the inhabitants. On hundred of Seispox, county of Starromp, 5 miles

| | Tuesda; X-lqmbuf.t sheep fair is held in (W, N. W) from Stourbridge, containing 842 inhabitants.
the : am Carl of Lonsdale, as lord of the ma- The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stafford,
r, holds a court here at Michaelmas: and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the -

' ENODER (ST.), a parish in'the bundred of Pyoyx, king's books at £27. 2. 11., and in the patronage of

county of CornwaLL, 2§ miles (N. ) from St. Michacl,

containing, with a part of the borough of St. Michael's,

or Midshall, 833 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,
-rated in the king's books at £26. 13. 4., and in the pa-
tronage of the Bishop of Exeter. In the church is a
curious Norman font. At Summer Court, in this parish,
are fairs for horses, bullocks, sheep, &c., on the
28th of July and 25th of September. '

ENODOCK (ST.), a chapelry in the parish of Sr.
Minver, hundred of Trrea, county of CORNWALL, 2%
miles (N.E.) from Padstow. The population is re-
turned with the parish. \

ENSHAM, a parish in the hundred of Woorron,
county of Oxrorp, 54 miles (E.by §.) from Witney, con-
taining 1705 inhabitants.  The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,
rated in the king’s books at £15, 14., endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty. The
church, a handsome edifice, is dedicated to St. Leonard.
There is a place of worship for Independents. In 1700,
John Bartholomew gave £350, to be applied to the edu-
cation and apprenticing of ten poor boys: in the year fol-
lowing the school was built by subscription, and fourteen
boys are now instructed. This place derives its name
from the Saxon Egonesham, and was formerly a Saxon

frontier town. King Ethelred held a council at Ensham,
i Al e andgWulstan, Archbishops of

nterby whi ecclesiastical and

od it was famous

in_the reign of Ethels
1005 : its revenue,
£441; there are no’
high.. repute.

ton .
, and containing 1077
are in the hamlet of

i

the Earl of Stamford and Warrington. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. . In lﬁsr,l%tdward Gravenor be-
queathed a small endowment for the education of six
poor children ; and in 1755, and 1757, Lady Dorothy
Grey gave two annuities of £50 and £20, for clothing,
maintaining, and educating twelve poor girls: subsequent
bequests have raised the income to £101. 2. 10. per
annum, but at present only four children receive the
benefits of the charity.

EPPERSTONE, a parish in the southern division of
the .wapentake of THURGARTON, county of NoTTINGHAM,
6 miles (8. w.) from Southwell, containing 513 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £18. 1. 8. E.White, Esq. was patron in 1822.
The charch is dedicated to the Holy Cross, There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

EPPING, a parish comprising the market-town of
Epping, and the chapelry of Epping-Upland, in the hun-
dred of Wartuam, and the hamlet of Ryhill, in the
hundred of Harvrow, county of Essex, and containing
2146 inhabitants, of which number, 1688 are in the
town of Epping, 17§ miles (W.by8.) from Chelmsford,
and 16§ (N.E, by N.) from London, on the road to New-
market. This place, which is of some antiquity, was
given by Henry II. t6 the monks of Waltham ahbey, but
reverting to the crown, it became afterwards a part of
the duchy of Lancaster. The town is pleasantly situ-
ated near the extensive forest to which it gives name,
and consists of two parts, one near the church, called
Epping-Upland, and the other nearly a mile and a half
to- the south-east of it, called Epping-Street, in which
the market is held : the latter is a spacious street, near-
ly a mile in length, having at the west end a newly-

' erected chapel, and in the centre a range of shambles,
‘which are much decayed and of mean appearance; the

h#mses are irregularly built, but the town being, from its

part sitgation, a great thoroughfare and place of traffic, it

es some good inns, Epping is celebrated for its
butter, of which large quantities are sent for the supply
of the London market, where, from the excellence of
its quality, it maintains a superiority in price : the pork
and sausages of this place are also in high estimation.
The market is on Friday: the fairs are on the Tuesday

_in Whitsun week, which is but thinly attended; No-

vember 18th, & very considerable fair for the sale of
stock ; and on the 11th of October, a statute fair for
anted Courts leet and baron are held ‘annually



: _contracted, many.
thrown into cultivation,
“handsome villas erected: among these,
Gopped Hall ‘the mofkhl(}onmm Esq., built on the
site of an ancient structure raised by the monks of
Waltham abbey, when they had possession of the manor,
is a noble edifice; and one of the chief ornaments of the
county ; it is situated in the centre of a ﬁnepark,of
nearly four thousand acres, planted with every kind of
forest trees, among which is a cedar of Libanus of extra-
wdhury beauty. The forest is under the jurisdiction of
rd warden, whose office is hereditary in the family of
"" Sir James Tilney Long, Bart., and four verdurers,
0 are elected by the freeholde.rsof the county, and re-
tain their office for life: the forest rights vary according
to the particular tenure prevailing in the different
manors included in the district. Though so near the
metropolis, wild stags are. still found here, and one is
annually turned out on Easter-Monday for the Epping
Hunt, which has been long established, and is still well
supported : the kennel for the hounds, and other build-
ings connected with the hunt, have been recently re-
erected at an expense of several thousand pounds. . On
that part near Barking, called Hainault Forest, where a
soc:ety for the revival of archery established their meet.
mgn was an oak of extraordinary dimensions, called
Fairlop Oak, the girth of which, at the height of three
feet from the ground, was thirty-six feet, the branches
extending over an area of three hundred feet in cir-
cumference. Round this tree a fair has for many years
been held, on the first Friday in July, and is still nu-
mermly attended : it originated in the annual visit of
an individual from London to dine with a select party of
his friends under the shade of the Fairlop Oak, from the
“of which he distributed a supply of beans and
to

many
qnt.ﬁon

e of a chld,«whxch was shewn to the Antanm
Jin 1721,
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poor persons who were attracted to
the forest was found a small earthen

take of Girring, North riding of the county of York, 8 “
miles @tiyum) ﬁm Rwhmmd, clmtamhmw h‘-

of its buildings and the extent of its population, b8
centre of the town.is a large sheet. of:vnterami*
are in general handsome and well built, and the inhas
bitants are tolerably supplied with water. The environs,
which are exceedingly pleasant, abound with handsome
villas; and on the downs, which .command an extensive
and interesting view of the surrounding country, is an
excellent course, on which races are held annually, com+
mencing on the Tuesday and continuing till the end of
the week preceding Whitsuntide ; the Derby stakes are
run for on Thursday, which is the principal-day, and the
Oaks on Friday. The grand stand, a handsome and
commodious edifice, was erected in 1829-30, the expense
being estimated at £ 13,890, raised in one thousand £20
shares ; the interior comprises several rooms for re-
freshment, and a saloon, one hundred and one feet in
length, and thirty-eight feet wide ; the whole length of
the building is one hundred and twenty-six feet, ar-
ranged for the accommodation of five thousand persons,
with seats on the roof for two thousand five hundred :
a second meeting also takes place in October : much of
the support of the town arises from the great influx
of strangers at the time of the races. The market,
formerly on Friday, has been discontinued ; but it is
in contemplation to erect a market-house for the. re-
newal of the market, with a room over it for holding
the sessions, on the site of an old watch-house, which
is about to be taken down : a fair is held annnally on
the 5th of August for toys. The medicinal
though less frequented than formeriy: still retain M
efficacy. The county istrates hold. here a
session for the division on the first Monday in_every
month ; and the town is within the of a
court held at for the recovery of debts. to

an t: amtbaronmhddmApnllnda
m&uecmom : o

. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the amhbn-
“of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
's books at £8. 9. 94., and in the patronage of
5, Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Martin,




W apelry mwéhbpma
Swarcrirre which '”lm'the ‘hundred of Bansury,
emytf O&roi.b, 7mﬂel (W.) fmm Bnbnry ‘con-

inhabitants,

i w*w town and parish in the
western mﬂdmwof the wapentake of ManLry, parts of
Linpsey, county of LincoLy, 263 miles (N.W. byN.) from
Lincoln, and 1573 (N by W.) from London, containing
1763 ‘inhabitants. 'This place, which is the principal
town in the Isle of Axholme, a district occupying the
north-west part of ' the county, was anciently the
residence of the Howard family, who had a castellated
mansion, of which there are no remains except the site,
where within the last half century were dugiup some of
the cannon belon to the fortifications. The town is
of considerable extent, but irregularly built; the adjagent
lands are flat, and, previously to the introduction of a
more efficient method of draining, were subject to
frequent inundation. ' The principal branch of trade is
the dressing of flax and hemp, a great quantity of which
grows in the neighbourhood; and the manufacture of
sacking and canvas is carried on to a considerable ex-
tent. The market is on Tuesday : the fairs are on the
first Thursday after May 1st, and September 29th, for
cattle, hemp, and flax. A court leet is held twice in the
year by the lord of the manor, in a building erected for
Ihatpmpdne in the market-place. The living is a
‘ : ‘ nry of Stow, and diocese of
ng's books at £28.16. 8., and
“of the The church is dedl-
& w. There are places of worship for
sts, the Society of Friends, theOld and the New
exion umm mdmve Methodists, A
hool for the instruction of children 1)ftlmr1m-is;]l
founded in 1711, and endowed wi&'t house and
n of land b : there are some chari-
que 'farmraﬁcfofﬂ!epoor ‘A Carthusian
Mw!ﬂnﬁdﬁhﬂe in the reign of Richard 11,
»‘m um, Earl of Nottingham, and Earl
‘England, the revenue of which at the
ion was £200. 11. 7.; the remains have’ been
‘into a private mansion. The Rev. John
founder of the sect of Methodists, was born in
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H. Pulteney, Esq. was patron iniM’ “The church is de-
dicated to'St. Michael. In this parish is ‘@ fnmm
for the education of %cm bonpmd an hospital for the
mo]m byw - Ay .r\

EMSWELL ‘a parish in the hundred of Laokrorp,
county of Sunox.x. 3 miles (N. by E.) from Mildenhall,
containing 346 inhabitants.  The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and  diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £16.6. 6. - T. B, Evans, Esq.
was po,tron n 1815, 'l’he church is dedicated to St

ERITH a parish in the hundred of Lrssness, hthe
of SurroN at Howe, county of Kenr, 2} miles (N.)
from Crayford, containing 1363 mhab\tants The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Rochester, rated in the king's books at £9. 12, 6.
S. Dashwood, Esq. was patron in 1804.  The church, de
dicated to St. John the Baptist, is an ancient structure,
almost. wholly overgrown with ivy. There is a small
sum for the education of poor children. . This is a de-
cayed market town, which at one period was incor-
porated, situated on the banks of the Thames ; it had
formerly fairs on Holy-Thursday, Michaelmas-day, and
Whit-Tuesday. The Thames forms a haven here, and
there is a branch establishment in connexion with the
custom-house, The East India ships which freqnenﬂy
anchor opposite this place, in their passage up the river,
occasion a considerablé traffic. An abbey for Canons Re-

ar was founded here in 1180, =

ERME (ST.), a parigh inthe western divmion of the
hundred of Powngr, county of CorNwArL, 3§ miles
(N. by E) from Truro, containing 561 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£92. 18. 4., and in the patronage of E. W. Wynne
Pendarves, Esq. The church was taken down in 1819,
and rebuilt on a handsomer and more uniform plan,

ERMINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Er-
MINGTON, county of Devown, 8 miles (N.W.) from
Modbury, containing 1870 inhabitants. The living
comprises a vicarage and a mediety rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter: the
vicarage is rated in the king's books at £33, 18
and the rectory at £24, The patronage is vested in
the Crown and the Rev. W, Cholwich alternately. The
church h dedicated to St.Peter. A market was for-
mecly here : two small cattle fairs m hel(::
Fabrn*yﬁgmd June 23d. In 1518, an ouse
a dll!'hy lclloul were endowed with lands hy Miue

M’I ST ,nchnpelrymthepuhhofm
nnxn, nmﬂ(:m) ‘division of the hundred of EasT,
eounty of Connmu, ¢ miles: (N. by E)) from gt'.‘xguu

i§ return wbﬂli “m, h.
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ERRINGDEN, a in the parish of Havnirax,
wapentake of MoRrLEY, st riding of the county of
York, 7 miles  (W.) from thfax. cbnt.mning 1471
inhabitants. The living is a curacy, in the
uc:‘()loeacom;y and diocese MYork hendowed with
£1 parliamentary gmt in the patronage of
the Vicar of Halifax. = The  chapel is degxacawdto St.
John, . :
ERTH (ST.), a pms‘h in the hundred of PeNwiTH,
county of OoulwuL, 4 miles (N.E. by N.) from Ma-
razion, contammg 1604 inhabitants. ~The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £14, 1. 0%, and
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Exeter.
Here u a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

is a small sum for the education of children,
Near the church is a bridge over the river Hayter,
and a little lower down a causeway and bridge, built by
subscription, for the convenience of persons going to
Penzance, who formerly had to wait for the tide. A
bridge, it is supposed, was built about the middle of the
fourteenth century, under which ships of large burden
sailed till the haven was choaked up by the sands. Some
stone coffins have been lately dug up in this parish.
Near the vicarage-house is a double circular intrench-
ment, called Carhangives, supposed to have been the site
of a'buroninl castle. Pieces of tin have also been found,
with inscriptions partly in Greek and partly in Latin,
mch may be translated, ¢ Near this well was a Roman

ERVAN (S8T.), a parish in the hundred of PypEr,
county of CorNwALL, 4 miles (8.8.W.) from Padstow,
containing 422 inhabitants. = The living is a rectory, in
the tﬁcﬂhﬂ jurisdiction of the Bishop of Exeter, rated

s books at £18. 6. 8. Sir W, Molesworth
Bart was patron in 1817.

ERWARTON, a parish in the hundred of SAmMrorD,
connty of Svnox.x, 8% miles (8.8.E,) from Ipswich,
ct:: 157 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
rated in the king's books at £10. 13. 4., and in
of Lady M. Chedworth. The chnrch is
d@ to St. Mary. '

ERYHOLME, a cha apelry in that part of the.
of GELLWG which is in the eastern dxvis'
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deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwic o -

'_of%ohester rated in the king's books at £9.
'lndintha

~ St. George. Inl789,GeogeNuthmelm
.'£850threepercents.,toﬁrdlhupro ng and s
»-theSmdachhoal twer thir
. areeducatedin it. Three |

the township oﬂMﬁk,ﬁﬂﬂWg :!m\
Thelivmguamntumh&kq [ ,
anddjocezeonork,mdhthekingl
£23.8.9. Henry Gale, Esq. was patron in IM i
church, dedmatedtoﬂtﬂelen,iluhndlm fructur

built about fifty years aﬁuy Beilby Tbompwa l«q:g :

on the site of the prior e
ESH, or ASH, achape]rymthatpnrtpfthe
of LancuesTeR which is in the western dlviciqnwf -
TER ward, county pnlatme of DuruaM, 5 g.l('w.
from Durham, containing 470 inhabitants, -
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and dm
of Durham, endowed with £800 royal bounty, and in
the patro of the Perpetual Curate of Lanchester.
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is a small struc-
ture without a tower. There is a Roman Catholic
chapel in the village, and at a short distance to the
east of it is a Catholic seminary, called Ushaw .,
a handsome and extensive building in the form of a
square, sufficiently capacious to accommodate one hun.-
dred and fifty students, besides apartments. for the
professors, &c. : it is conducted by the ecclesiastics of
the ancient English Catholic college of Douay, - in
French Flanders, who made their escape from the
Republican army during the French Revolution, and ar-
riving in England in 1794, the greater part of them
established a seminary at Crook Hall. This, however,
soon became too small for their growing institation ;
by the liberal support of the Catholic clergy and laity,
they were enabled to raise the present ample edifice
on the Ushaw estate, which was. purchued by themp
for that purpose. The estate is sn
of £20 per annum for the’, c

this chapelry.

ong since
puﬂ;gmthehundredof KinGsToN,
hie he second division of the hundred
BRIDGE, county of Surney, 134 miles (N.nx)
Guildford, containing 1108 inhabitants. livi
ry, in the urcbden;onryofﬁnrwy and

of the Warden and
, Oxford. The church is ¢

of Wadham Co

forﬂ:ell:mofiﬂayeu.‘
1779. 1In this parish are situ
mont and Esher Place ; ﬁ:‘ﬁr




Aty mMpmofmpamhof
- Feuton lﬂh‘h division of MorPETH
- ward, county RTHUMBERLAND, 94 miles (N.) from
,wntdning 114 inhabitants. There is a seam
of coal in this mhip, but the ‘colliery was aban-

M‘my
s Mmmshipin the parish of GARGRAVE,
m “division of the wapentake of SrarvcLivre and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of Yorx, 53 miles
(N "’) from Skipton, containing 69 inhabitants.
ESKDALE, a joint chapelry with Wasdale, in that
pu!tfof the parish of St. Brrs which is in ALLErRDALE
ward above Darwent, county of CUMBERLAND, 7 miles

(N.E. by R.) from Ravenglass, containing, with the
township of Wasdale-head, 296 inhabitants, The
living is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of

Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowell with £400
puvatebenefucﬁon, and £800 royal bounty. G.E.
Stanley, Esq. was patron in 1814, The chapel is dedi-
cated to St. Catherine. There is a small sum for the
eduuﬁon of children.
© ESKDALE-SIDE, a chapelry in the parish of
Wn:!rn‘r, liberty of Wau'nv-s'ruun, North riding of
the of Yorg, 54 miles (8.W.) from Whithy,
mﬁ&y 895 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
m hthe u'chdueonry of Cleveland, and diocese
. , endowed 694 13. 4. per annum and
) ' 0 royal bounty, and £1800
pah-onage of the Rev.
1l being ‘ruinous, a
dte was
: Esq 3
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M island by Constantine the Great, the present county of
~ Essex formed part of Flavia Cesariensis. The o

ESS
Hare Town, where it is supposed tlm'e vm fbrh;eﬂy a

“collection of houses. The country between Espershields

and Newbiggin, in the county of Durham, was anciently
Ic,ovel-eg by t{.) thlick wood, which is said to havé been

urnt down by the owner, well known by the ippellwtioﬂ
of “Mad Maddison,” who was afterwards hanged
Durham,

ESSENDINE, a chapelry in the parish of RyALL,
East hundred, county of Rurrany, 4} miles (N. by E.)
from Stamford containing 175 inhabitants. The chapel,
dedicated to St. Mary, has portions in the Norman and
early English styles of architecture : the Norman south
door is much enriched.

ESSENDON, a parish in the hundred and county of
HerTrorp, 35 miles (E.) from anhop s Hatfield, con-
taining 595 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, with
Bayford, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £18. The
Marquis of Sahsbury was patron in 1790. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. There iz a National school
supported by subscription, in which thirty boys and
twenty-six girls are instructed ; also an infant school
on the National plan, for boys a.nd gn'ls supported in
the samé manner. A branch of the river Lea bounds
the north side of the parish.

ESSEX, a maritime county, bounded on the north
by the counties of Suffolk and Cambridge ; on the west
by those of Hertford and Middlesex ; on the south by
the river Thames, which separates it from Kent ; and
on the east by the German ocean: it extends 'from
51° 30’ to 52°7" (N. Lat.), and from 0° 3’ to 1¢ 12
(E. Lon.), and includes one thousand five hundzed and
thirty-two square miles, or nine hundred and eighty
thousand four hundred and eighty statute acres. The
population in 1821 amounted to 289,424. At the time
of Cesar's invasion this part of Britain was inhabited
by the Trinobantes; and in the subdivision of the

of
e is coeval with the establishment of the

ef the East Saxons, of which London was the

jpolis, and of which the tract now comprised

the limits of this county formed a very important

‘of part. The foundation of that kingdom took place

the year 530, and it was called East Seard, mum-v

The conversion of

e East Saxons, to Christianity, took

At the time of the dm;o{::ﬁg; b::f-t, tli;:
ctarchy, it was subjugated by

. From 787 until the period ofthcdtvi-;
d between Canute and Edmund, Essex asex
R the d

‘.Py emo-tmemonmem*}
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* which brovght large and valaable domaits heve into the

possession of the distinguished family of Bohun, Earls
of Hereford, Essex, and Northampton; which, in 1421,
were divided between King Henry V. and Anne, Countess
of Stafford, the two co-heirs of that family. By act of
parliament, in 1414, that portion of the honours, castles,
manors, and other estates, once belonging to the Bohun
family;and which descended to Henry V., was severed
from.itbe crown of Englmd and annexed for ever to the
duchy‘of Lancaster. In 1588, Queen Elizabeth reviewed
at T the forces assembled to oppose the Spanish
invasion. In 1642, at the commencement of the civil
war, ithe popular feeling appears to have displayed itself
in the rcause of the parliament, the people having as-
sembled in large bodies, and done considerable damage
to the houses of different royalists. In the same year this
county united with those of Suffolk, Norfolk, Cambridge,
Hertford, the Isle of Ely, and the city of Norwnch, inan
association for of each. The siege
and capture of Col , and the’ military nemiioﬂ
of its defenders; Sir
is one of t
place in HEssex

S i

ﬂ?lﬂ*

The last important
hg"‘hiatm'y cof this ‘county

was the m-ﬁgbtoﬁ“ﬁarwwh,onthk&rdnfluu, 1665, -

in which the Dutch flect was defeated by the Duke of
York, the Dutch admiral's vessel being blown up,
fourteen others destroyed, and eighteen captured.
Thig county is ‘in- the diocese of London, and pro-
vince of Canterbury, and comprises the archdeaconries
‘of Essex and Colchester, and part of that of Middlesex.
The archdeaconry of Essex contgins the deaneries of
Barstaple, Barking, Chafford, Chelmsford, Dengie, On-
: ‘and Rochford ; that of Colchester; the deaneries of
Lelden, Newport, Sampford, Tendring, and

M whlch ig'in this coun
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WMW accnrrencu w‘luch took.

mlln mdﬂmtpm‘hanof'the archdeaconry of Mid-"
, those of Dunmow, Hu-bw ¥,
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" Several small ‘Mtillh'&m' German © n
@stuary of the Thames are 1 the lin %
this county : the first and most valmb!e, w the wuch- 4
east, is the island of Mersea, eight or ‘ten miles
south of Colchester, between the mouths of the rivers
Colne and Blackwater, a rich and fertile spot, about
five miles from east to west, and two from north to
south, The islands towards the gouth, in the hundred
of Rochford, are, Foulness, Wallasea, Potten, Haw‘:gon
and New England lying centignous to each other, and
bounded to the notth by the Crouch river; to east
and south-east by the German ocean ; and to the west
by the continental part of the+hundréd of Rochford ;
being about four or five miles from the town of Roch-
ford. The remaining island, towards the south-west, is
Canvey Isle, whichis in nine several parishes ; it is sur-
rounded by branches of the river Thames, and sitnated
nearly at its mouth. The most beautiful part of Essex,
without the addition of a river, is in the liberty of Ha-

vering-atte-Bower. From Romford to Brentwood is a
Mei:mmtry but the more striking scenes are not
within view of the road. From Thorndon to Epping is
lll.neu'lypi.the same description, exhibiting a
variety of hill and dale, thickly wooded, with gen
houses interspersed in every direction. Between |
ley and Rayleigh there is a beautiful view of a tichly
cultivated and well wooded vale, terminated by
grounds-in: the distance. Langdon Hills t

tensive and the finest prospect in the county: the

aeggm miles, and
view with.an in
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it lies.in the north-western part of
towards the borders of Hertford-
ire ; extending nearly twenty
from the neighbourhood of
‘Saffron-Walden, and aver-
“ab adth, having the town of
( Dunmow nearly in the centre. It is a hilly tract,
in which the surface loam in the vales is dryer and bet-
ter than on the hills, and in some cases forms a very
good soil ; but the general feature is a wet loam on a
clay marl bottom. The second district extends, with an
average breadth of about three miles, along the whole
southern and eastern border of the county, along the
margin of the Thames and on the sea-coast, environing
the wmstuaries of the rivers Crouch and Blackwater, and
including the islands before mentioned : the soil of Foul-
ness island is the richest in the whole county. Of the
strong wet land, or clay districts, one is situated in the
north-western part of the county, on the borders of
Suffolk and Cambridgeshire, its length being about
twelve miles from east to west, and its average breadth
about seven ; another is a small tract, about six miles
long, and four broad, adjoining the marshes on the north

side of the Blackwater: of the third, the western bound-

ald ns in a south-westerly
giie Bunteld,'and
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is, to keep the soil clean by the interposition of a fallow,
ora crop between every two of white corn : there
is, however, no regular course of crops th t the
whole county. The average produce of wheat per acre,
is estimated at twenty-four bushels, two pecks ; of bar-
ley, four quarters, six bushels, and three pecks ; of oats,
five quarters, five bushels, and half a peck ; of beans,
twenty-seven bushels ; and of peas, twenty bushels and
a quarter. Potatoes are extensively cultivated in
Essex, which circumstance is chiefly attributable to
its proximity to London, which it largely supplies
with that vegetable, The eculture of hops is con-
fined to a small number of parishes. In the islands
of Foulness, Wallasea, &c., and in the embanked
marshes, white or brown mustard seed is sown, the
average produce of which is twenty-four bushels per
acre. Some of the extensive marsh lands are very
valuable, and the district of Epping feeds considerable
herds of cattle; but, excepting these, the grass lands
are of inferior consideration. The annual quantity of
grain sent to London is estimated at about two hun-
dred and fifty thousand ¢ of wheat, and one hun-
dred and fifty thousand quarters of malt ; besides a vast
quaintity ho‘;f oats, peas, and beans, An agnculut;nl
society, ing its meetings at Chelmsford, was b-
lished in th?:?;mn&y about the year 1792.

There are many cherry orchards at Burnham, South-
minster, &c. The natural woods of Essex have been
much diminished both in number and extent within the
last seventy years: the principal remains of them are
the curtailed forests of Epping and Hainault. The
Forest of Epping was formerly the Forest of Easex,
and comprehended the whole county: by a charter of
King John, dated the 25th of March, in the fifth year
of his reign, and confirmed in the 8th of Edwhrd IV.,

..".,__d that part of the forest which lay to the north of the
ghway from Stortford to Colchester, was disafforested,

forest was further reduced by a perambulation made
1e 29th ‘gedmd"lx,'inpnrmeeo!*the Charta de



i eream | anngbutter there iaPoM-

' 'ceas fo lireed or stock of cows.
: usually applied to the p\n'pode of feed
':for the ' London market, - _ )

The favonrite breed of 'hOgs in the
of the county is the Berkshire; in the
ery variety.  The breed of horses
uffolk. 'This county producing
for fuel by the poor,  In

‘a considerable fishery ;
a is one of the principal stations of the
pers : - the munber of vessels d is about
hund mburdenfrome;g t tons’ to fifty,
emplo, 'yi from four hundred to five hundred men
and hoys. xizl breeding rivers are the Crouch,
h Blackwater, and the Coln : the oysters are sent to
Hm , Bremen, and in time of peace to
we. The quantity annually
twelve thousand to fifteen
s island are salt water

of ﬁuﬂbﬂt’,beoomesuhw w
?&s :fmix;ty and Sufolk,inl?y 50 co.
e course, passing |
a long and wide wstuary, which,

mouth, unites with the German ocean at Harwich
o:ltﬁn,hle up to Sudbury. The RDMM lﬂ"‘“
western part of the coun ty‘:he i

- south-
ward through the dig;;ipc;t calledF de
r, through orest,and by Barki
mmnmes ahout thg miles below the latter
The London and Cambridge canal pﬁi&f
north-western verge of the county.” .
The great road from Lonion to Norwich; through
wich, enters the county at Bow bridge, M
Stratford, Romford, Brel’ltwooﬂ. estor

to Ndrwich, tbrough Sudbnry, brimcheﬁ off ﬁw
latter at Chelmsford, and passing through
and ‘Sudbury, quits the county a
- road from London ‘to Nowieh,
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: ‘mansions, which were twelve in number,

castle of Colchester is the only one which is not either
utterly demolished, or extremely ruinous. Before the
Reformation there were forty-seven religious houses,
viz,, two mitred and six other abbeys, twenty-two pri-
ories, three nunneries, nine hospitals, three colleges, and

:ptories of the Knights Templars, The most
kable monastic remains are those of St, Botolph's
priory, Colchester, of St. Osyth’'s abbey, and of Wal-
tham Abbey church. Greenstead church, with its nave
of timber, is one of the most ancient and curious in the
kingdom ; and that of Little Maplestead is one of the
very few now remaining that are built on the model of
the Holy Sepulchre. Fossils are found in various parts of
the county, but no where so abundantly as in Harwich
diff. Essex gives the title of earl to the family of

ESSINGTON, a township in that part of the parish
of Busapury which is in the eastern division of the
hundred of Currresrons, county of Starromrp, 5%
miles (N.E.) from Wolverhampton, containing 605 in-
habitants,

_ESTON, a hamlet partly in the parish of ArTaU-
rET, and partly in that of Kirk-ANDREWS, ESKDALE
ward, county of CumsrrraND. The population is re-
turned with the parish, Eston was anciently a distinct

it of the pa.rish of
ision of the liberty

two

tha h of Forp, western
1 m,of, NORTHUMBER-
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(8.E.) from Wadhurst, containing 625 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the arch eacon?;h:fblaem , and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king’s books at £11..
Mrs. A.Lade was patroness in 1792. The church is
partly in the decorated and partly in the later En-
glish style, with a central tower, 2
ETLOE, a tything in the parish of Awnr, hundred
of BripEsror, county of Grovcster, 13 mile (8.)
mh?hkeney. The population is returned with the
ETON, a parish in the hundred of Sroxe, county
of BuckingHAM, 1 mile (N.) from Windsor, and 23
(W. by 8.) from London, containing 2475 inhabi ts,
This place, which is chiefly distinguished for its public .
school, is pleasantly situated in a valley on the north
bank of the river Thames, by which it is separated from
Windsor, and over which is a neat iron bridge, supported
on piers of stone. The village consists principally of one
street well paved and lighted by means of a highway rate,
and is supplied with water by a company whose works
also supply the town and castle of Windsor: the
houses are in general neatly built, and there are several
boarding-houses for the accommodation of those stu-
dents who do not reside in the college. The site on
which the college stands is said to be extra-parochial,
but the usual rites and ceremonies of the church
were formerly performed, for the benefit of the pa-
rishioners, in the collegiate church. The college was
originally founded by Henry VI, in 1440, for a pro-
vost, ten priests, six clerks, six choristers, twenty-five
poor grammar scholars, with a master to instruct
them, and twenty-five almsmen, and directed to be
called “The College Roiall of our Ladie of Eton, beside
Windesor ;" and though deprived of part of its endow-
ment by Edward IV., it was especially exempted in the
act of dissolution, at which time its revenue was
estimated at £1101, 13. 7. The present establishment

consists of a provost, vice-provost, six fellows, two
masters, with assistants, seven clerks, seventy king's

scholars, ten choristers, and inferior officers and servants.

The number of independent scholars, the sons of noble-

- gentlemen, is generally from three to four
Scholars on the foundation are entitled to
md scholarships in King's College, Cam-
h purpose there is an annual election,
removed till vacancies occur, to which
o to seniority, and on three years'
lege are entitled to a fellowship. For
 succeed in obtaining an election to
re are two scholarships founded in
gdiOxford, in 1582, by lt‘hemllev; John
augmented in 1754, by the Rev. Geo:

‘h oue i in the patronage of the Provost
mh that of the Provost of King's
5, 20 each per anm

ord

mod

el

ek
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£6 mmmmawwmmm

I 'a‘ ‘I 1i “.~"."
Mr. :Brymt bequ&ﬁxdrummmm

additional ships, at the discretion of t;he mvo&t
: mprise tvm spacious q com-
munica an ancient tower-gateway of mat beauty ;

mmmaumbm quadrangle is a hronze statue
of the mym\ﬁundnr onthesouthmdemmelegmt
dlqd‘ﬁ Wstyle of English architecture, strength-

‘with enriched buttresses, and ornamented with
parapet and pinnacles, and the school, divided -
‘the upper and lower school (each of which is sub-
into three classes), besides lodgings for the mas-
M and scholars on the foundation : the inner quadrangle
‘contains apartments for the provost and fellows, and the
library, a handsome building, containing one of the best
collections in Europe, having been augmented with nu-
merons magnificent contributions from various bene-
factors ; some very valuable paintings, drawings, and
oriental manuscripts, enrich this depository of rare and
curious productions. In the provost's apartments is a
-pomﬂt,m panel, of Jane Shore, which is said to be an
; The grounds for recreation and exercise, on the
nor side of the college, are extensive, and beauti-
fully shaded by a lengthened avenue of stately trees;
‘and the bounds of the college are marked by stones
set up in various places. To mention the many eminent
characters which this noble institution has produced,
‘would be to enumerate a very considerable portion of
the most distinguished names which history has recorded
in the proud list of British heroes, statesmen, scholars,
and divines. A custom, designated the Montem, is

triennially observed by the scholars on Whit-Tuesday, i
“which, though its origin is involved in obscurity,
Nminlycximdfmtherexgnofmmbeth,md;“

~ most probably, from the very foundation of the college,
‘ltbinehdcdinthehntpruentedtothe queen, when
on a visit' hm, “ of the ceremonies obsery
foundation.” The chief object of this

't salt money,” and by the procession
Mtﬁmﬂum&emuhmdn of the ]
ot hak acquired the name of Salt Hill,

church, dedicm@ to St. Mary
leghte,.and was _frequented
to the. erection of a neat
town, by Mr, Hetherington, 14
the accommodation of the
was founded by Mark a:mqn:l
at Eton College, who endow 1!: with funds for
struction of sixty boys and thirty g;rlg. An alms
for ten poor widows was founded by D,r. odo
formerly provost of Eton College ; an& an alm
come of about £ 120 is appropriated to the appr
of children : there are also other charitable bequests for
the benefit of the poor. William Oughtred, an eminen
mathematician, is stated to have. been born here in 1

ETRURIA, a hamlet formerly in the parish of 8!??‘:
npon TRENT, now in the parish of SurvrroN, which
been recently separated from Stoke by actﬂof patha‘
ment, northern division of the hundred of Pt
county of Srarrorp, 14 mile (N.E.) ﬁ-mg Ngy astl
under Line, The population is returned with the paris
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Metho
Here are the celebrated potteries of Wedgewuodaqd
where the ware, commonly called Wedgewood
manufactured.

ETTERBY, a townslnp in that part of the
Suwax wlnch is in EsgpALE Cou
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was ihcorp leyan ‘Methodists. Here ‘was formerly a castle, which'
there M W has now totally disappeared, the site byeingnupn“hy
;WW%%&M&M a fal;mdhouse ' the moat may still be traced.
70 VERCREECH, a mhhthehudredof“Wm
EU Wilh’in the hmdred of l!i.muovnw, Fomm, county of Souznm, 84 miles (8.E. by 8.) from’
junt #rﬂsv,hbr.x, 84 miles (.B.bys.) from Thetford, Shepton-Mallet, containing, with Chesterblade, 1253
ntaining ‘"lMinhabitlma The li is a rectory, with inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the- peculiar ju-
ham (Parva), and Barnham (St. Gregory and St. risdiction of the Dean of Wells, rated in the king's books
in), it the mﬁmm:-y of Sudbuiry, and diocese of at £16, 19., and in the patronage of — Talbot, Ksq.
Norwich, rnwd in the king's books at £18. 7. 11. The The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is a large and noble
church is dedicated to St. Genevieve, The Duke of edifice, with a tower in the decorated style of English
m ‘ehjoys the inferior title of Earl of Euston. architecture, one hundred and thirty feet high, termmat-
‘mfxmn, a chapelry in the parish and hundred ed with elegant pinnacles. The Wesleyan Methodists
of LevuAsn, cotinty palatine of LaNcAsTER, 24 miles have a place of worship here.. There is an endowed
(ﬁ.N W.) ftum Chotley, containiing 1360 inhabitants. school for ten boys. The manufacture of silk is carried
hvhig curacy, in the archdeaconry on to a considerable extent, furnishing employment to
and diocese of , endowed with £400 private be- several hundred persons. In this parish are a Ro-
nefaction, and £400 royal bounty. The Rev. J. Arme- man encampment, and a spring strongly impregnated
triding was patron in 1799. A free school, under the with salt.
Ment of tmstees is endowed with about £30 EVERDON, a parish in the hundred of FawsLey,
per annum. county oP“NomAunoN, 4} miles (8.8.E.) from Da-
ﬁ (ST)), a ptrish in the hundred of Pyper, ventry, containing 640 inhabitants. The living is a
CornwALL, 54 miles (N.W. by N.) from St, rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and dio-
GBlnmb Major, containing 323 inhabitants. The living cese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
is @ vicarage, in the ‘peculiar jurisdiction and patronage £24.2. 11, and in the patronage of the Provost and
of the Bishop of Exeter, rated in the king's books at Fellows of Eton College. The church, dedicated to St.
#£6. 13. 4. The church is dedicated to St. Eval: the Mary, has a beautiful door in the decorated style of
tower having fallen, it was rebuilt from the foundation, English architecture. There is a place of worship for
lndﬁnilheﬂ in 1727 : the expense, near}y £400, was'de- Independents. The interest of £500, the bequest of
contributions, including a donation from the William Folwell in 1813, is applied to the instruction
Bristol, to whose vessels it servesas a con- of children ; and the Sunday schools receive, towards
‘nw‘puilh ﬁés‘on ﬁ:e shore of the their support the dividends of about £ 200, bequentbui
by the Rev. Sir John Knightley.

EVERINGHAM, a parish in the Holmem
division of the wapentake of HarTuiLL, East m
the county of Yorxk, 5 miles (W, by N.) from
Weighton, containing 271 inhabitants. The li
-a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of the
‘riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books -
‘at £8. 6. 8. TheRevWAldersonwupatwninwoo

et i e, -5 ncat, modern edifice, is dedicated to the
W)frah‘ Vugm Mary. There is also a Roman Catholic \
ving ﬁ.‘:‘.?ﬂ
hamp- EVERLEY a parish in the hundred of Emus

'8 and ‘Bveruey, county of Wivrs, 4§ miles (W. N, W.)
K private benefaction, &mmhall containing 316 inhabitants, The living
in the patronage of the is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wﬂu, and diocese
¢ College, Oxford. of ‘ in the kmg ks at £16. ;.%‘

{hii n D Astley, ;

.....
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with the parish. Here was -idenﬂyldmpddadw
to St. Nicholas,

EVERSDEN (GREAT), a pavilh in ﬂ:e hundred of
LonGsTow, county of CaMBRIDGE, 7 miles (8. E. byE.)
from Caxton, containing 268 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Ely, rated in the king's books at £6. 14. 2., endowed
‘with £200 royal bounty, and £200 parhamentarygrmt
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary.

EVERSDEN (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
LongsTow, county of CAMBRIDGE, 74 miles (8.E. by E.)
from Caxton, containing 232 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £5. 2. 6., and in the patronage
of the President and Fellows of Queen's College, Cam-
bridge. The church is dedicated to St. Helen.
EVERSHOLT, a parish in the hundred of MAns-

HEAD, county of Benprorp, 24 miles (E. by 8.) from Wo-
burn, containing 870 inhahitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's hooks at £16. 11. 8., and in the pa-
tronage of the Marquis of Downshire. The church is
dedicated to St. John the Baptist. There is a small sum
for the education of children.

EVERSHOT, a chapelry in the parish of FromE
S1. Quintin, hundred of ToLLErroRD, Dorchester di-
vision of the county of Dorser, 74 miles (E. by N.) from
Beaminster, containing 567 inhabitants. The chapel is
dedicated to St. Osmond. A market formerly held here
on Saturday has been discontinued : a fair for bullocks
and toys is held on the 12th of May. There is a free
grammar school, with an endowment of about £145
per annmn,

EVERSLEY, a parish in the hundred of Howvp-
snorT, Basingstoke division of the county of Soura-
AMPTON, 2 miles (N.) from Hartford-Bridge, containing,
with the tythings of Great Bramshill and Little Brams-
hill, 767 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the
archd and diocese of Wmchester, rated ln the

's books at £11. 8. 9., and in the
- John Cope, Bart. The church is dedxcated to
Cattle fairs are held on May 16th and October 1

- EVERTHORP, a joint township with Drewllon in
ﬂm- parish of Norrs Cave, Hunsley-Beacon division
of the wapentake of HartuiiL, East ri - of the
county of York, 1§ mile (W. N. W) ﬁvm 'ﬂsve.
.muhi 177 inhabitants,

. EVERTON, a parish in the hundred ' BiooLEs-
*wn:; co\mty of Beprorp, 4% miles (N.by E.) from
Bi with Tetworth, 834 mhabi-
‘tants, Thch is a vicarage with thut of Tetworth
uniﬁadtoit,inthemhdumnryofﬂedﬁnd,ud diocese
ﬂl'Lhelih, rated mtheldngl books it £6. 13. 9., and

p&h:ﬁe ‘the Master of Clare Hall,
ﬁ%, church, which stands in the county
E :

hm:mﬂw iy
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~ hundred of Blackenhurst, county of WoRrCESTE
‘aulea (8. E.) from Worcester, 13 (N. E.) from Tey

d’ Watton

to the bay of Bootle: its proximity to

the salubrity of the air, hnvomdewd.i&w |
of several genteel families. A new church, )

St. George, has lately been erected. Here was an m
beacon, supposed to have been erected in 1220, by Ra-
nulph de Blundeville, Earl of Chester, which was. blnm
down in 1803,

EVERTON, a parish in the hberty of Somwm
and Scroosy, though locally in the wapentake of Bas-
setlaw, county of NorrincuaMm, 23 miles (8. E. by E:)
from Bawtry, containing, with the township of Scaft
worth, 741 inhabitants, The living is a dis
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Nottingham, an
cese of York, rated in the king's books at £7. 2. 2.,lnd
in the patronage of the Duke of Devonshire. The
church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. There is a
small sum for the education of children, The Ches-
terfield canal passes through the parish on the south-
east.

EVESBATCH, a parish in the hundred of Rm
row, county of Hererorp, 5% miles (8. E, by 8.) from
Bromyard, containing 87 inhabitants. The living is.a

d rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of

Hereford, rated in the king’s books at £1. 16. 104, R.
Yate, Esq. was patron in 1812, The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew.

Arms and Seal of Evesham,

EVESHAM a borough and muket town, haying
umdlcuon, locally in the lower division of the

bury, and 96 (N. W. by W.) from London, containin
exclusively of the parish of Bengworth, 2634 inhal

tants. This place has at different times been called
Homme, Chronuchomme, Hatholm, Hethelhomme, and
Aithommo, all originating in the Saxon. Aolm,;q- :
island, and sometimes a hill, or rising
mseapphcabktoitlsmmhm The aj
holme, or Evvesham, is sudmbedﬂwqdm
a swineherd in the ﬂmneeaf ngin, mﬁa




shared the fate of similar institutions, having been
u “on the 17th of November, 1539, at which
‘the annual revenue amounted to £1268. 9.10. The
buildings and site were then alienated by the King ; the
former, with the church, were demolished, and the mate-
rials sold : an arch, or gateway, on the northern side of
the present church-yard, probably leading to the clois-
ters, and a few fragments visible in some out-buildings,
are the only remains of this edifice, which appears to
have been of the decorated style of English architecture,
and highly enriched with sculpture. The handsome
isolated tower, which is so t an ornament to the
town, was erected by Clement Lichfield, the last abbot
but one; it is a beautiful specimen of the later English
style, strengthened with panelled buttresses, and crowned
with open battlements and pinnacles; but it does
not to have been connected with the monastic
buildings. - From recent excavations, the old tower
appears to have stood at the north side of the west en-
trance to the great cathedral. At the general demoli-
tion, the present tower was purchased by the inhabi-
tants : it is one hundred and ten feet high, and about
twenty-eight feet square at the base; the north side is
plain, the other three sides adorned with tracery. In 1745,
a clock with chimes was put up in the tower, by Ed-
ward Rudge, Esq. Several abbots and mounks have been
. ere, among whom was abbot Lichfield, whose
omb ened in 1817 ; but socompléte has been the

 once magnificent pile, that the exact

interment cannot be @scertained. The
morable occurrence in the history of

sive battle which was fought here, %

st, 4265, between Prince i

y town

d

: “. E of i : 3 i v k-
‘detained a prisoner. The combat was characterised by
son, about one hundred and sixty

+

thousand of their followers. - The
and his son, with those of
Despenser, were interred in the
" abbey ¢hurch, before the high altar, the king himself
ly at the earl's funeral. The issue of

the captive monarch, turn
to that success by which

- about three quarters of a
called The Old Road,
denominated
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its interesting scenery, and has conse attracted
many respectable families to the t(?:nn?nd ‘neigh-
bourhood. The vale of Evesham is celebraied for
the extreme richness and fertility of its scil, which,
by the successful mode of cultivation, produces earlier
and more abundant crops than that of any other
part of the country : near the town, on both sides of
the river, large portions of ground have been con-
verted into gardens, horticulture constituting the
chief occupation of the labouring class ; asparagus
attains an unequalled perfection in this soil, and
is extensively cultivated, and vegetables of every
kind are, by means of the river Avon, conveyed hence
to the principal towns in the surrounding district.
Though favoured by the navigable river Avon, it
has never become the seat of any particular branch
of trade or manufacture ; there are some corn-mills,
and a mill for extracting oil from linseed. The
market is on Monday : fairs are held on the 2nd of
February, the Monday next after Easter, Whit-Mon-
day, and the 21st of September, the last being famous
for the show of strong black horses. King Henry VIIL.,
in the thirty-cighth year of his reign, granted and sold
to Sir Philip Hobby the three fairs, tolls, customs, &e.,
together with the market.

The inhabitants were incorporated by a charter
granted by James I, in the third year of his reign,
which confirmed their prescriptive privileges, and con-
ferred others. The government is vested in a mayor,
seven aldermen, twelve capital burgesses, a recorder
and chamberlain, who, with twenty-four assistants,
form the common council. The mayor is chosen
on the Tuesday next after St. Bartholomew's day ; the
mayor, the recorder, and four of the aldermen, are
justices of the peace: the mayor is almoner and clerk
of the market ; he is also entitled to deodands, the goods
of felons, and tolls of fairs and markets, with other

h .manorial rights. A court of record, at which the mayor

or recordei presides in person, or by deputy, assisted by
two of the senior aldermen, is held every Tuesday, for
.recovery of debts to the amount of £100, by charter
fWJames I.: a court of session is also held on the
after the county quarter sessions. The assizes for
the ceunty, now holden at Worcester, were f:ormerly
held here, The corporation possess the privilege of
_trying ahd executing for all capital offences except high
treason : #he last infliction of this punishment occurred
in 1740, when a female was burnt for petty treason.
The town hall is a plain building in the mket-place,
i which the courts are held, and assemblies take place
during the season. The borough returned members to
parliament ig the 23rd of Edward L, but after that
king's reign i*™discontinued till the commencement of
that of James Iy since which period it ,hn.t maintqrmnt-
edly returned tatives. The right of election
is vested in the burgesses, of whom there are about
seven hundred: the mayor is the returning officer. The
influence possessed by Lord Northwick enables him to

Ly
[
LY.

_ensure the return of one member.

§t. Lawrence, and rworth, formerly in the peculiar
jurisdiction of the abbot of Evesham, now in the arch-
‘deaconry and diocese of Worceste ”.‘-MMQ‘:
* eastern: bank of the river, was ‘the borough

. the charter of James I. The It isa dis-
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charged vicarage. rated in the king' sbdohltﬂﬂ. lﬂ. 04,
endowed with £200 private by ion, £400 royal
bounty, and £600 parliamentary grnnt ‘and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church was formerly a
chapel to the abbey, and is said to have been built about
1350, but probably ecarlier ; it is an clegant structure in
the later style of English architecture, with a tower
and spire ; the porch at the western entrance is of very
beautiful construction, embattied, and having pinnacles
at the corner ; on the south side is a small chapel, built
by abbot Clement Lichfield, the roof of which is finely
groined, and beautifully adorned with fan tracery. The
living of the parish of St. Lawrence ig a perpetual
curacy, united to the vicarage of All Saints, endowed
with £ 600 royal bounty, andin the patronage of the Crown,
The church, which is in ruins, exhibits a rich speci-
men of the later style of English architecture : attach-
ed to it is a chapel of exquisite beauty; the tower and
spire are of earlier construction. There are places of wor-
ship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Wesleyan
Methodists, and Unitarians. The free grammar school
was endowed originally by abhot Lichficld. Henry VIIL,
after the dissolution of the abbey, refounded thls
school, restoring only a part of its previous revenue. The
charter which James granted to the inhabitants re-
modelled the institution, when it was called the free
school of Prince Henry. The master receives £10 an-
nually from the crown, with a house rent-free, and some
minor emoluments, In Bengworth is also a school,
founded in 1709, pursuant to the will of John Deacle,
Esq., alderman of London, dated three years previously,
whereby he bequeathed £2000 for the endowment of a
free school for the benefit of thirty poor boys, who are
clothed, cducated, and apprenticed. The nomination of
the boys is vested in the churchwardens and overseers
of the _parish ; and, should there not be a sufficient
number of poor boys in Bengworth, in the mayor and
capital burgesses of Evesham. John Gardner, of Lon-
don, gave £4. 6. 8. aunually, with the addition of 18s.
per annum, arising from some tenements in the town,

towards the insteuction, in the English ltmgnage, of

twenty-five poor hoys belonging to the parishes of
Saints and St, Lawrence. Several benefactions to !
poor, and for apprenticing children, are recorded
ts in the churches of the respective parishes, In
orth was an ancient cast ”whleh,
in 1169, was attacked by the abbot Willi
ville, who destroyed it, and evected the pres
' yn.ia built on the lnrface

on

,Mt seventy years since. In this parish rises

2 the hundred of Coermorne, county of Sw:
_ miles (N.W. by N.) from the road

" EVINGTON, a hihé., ) d
eountyof antml:t; mﬂe&{ﬁ QE)M ST
containing 257 inhabitants. The living is l i arag
the jurisdiction of the peculmi court o of bl
manor of Evington, rated in the kl J;
£7. 16. 8., and in the patronage of the- ﬁshqp of Lins.
coln. The church is dedicated to St, Denis. |
EWART, a township in the parish of nonnm
ToN, eastern division of GuenpaLe ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 5 miles (N.N.W.) from Wooler,
containing 150 inhabitants. There is a small endoy
for the education of children. This place is ‘lealaﬁﬂg
sitnated between the rivers Till and Glen, where it is sups
posed there was formerly a church and a barial-ground:
In 1814, two ancient bronze sword blades were found
in the park.

EWE (ST.), a parish in the castern division of the
hundred of Powprr, county of CorxwALrL, 4 miles
{E.N.E.) from Tregoney, containing 1663 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £21,
and in the patronage of Thomas Carlyon, Esq. The
Wesleyan Methodists have a place of worship here:
There are extensive copper and tin mines and works
in this parish,

EWELL, a parish in the hundred of Bew snonoveu,
lathe of S'r AUGUSTINE, county of Kenr, 2§ miles
(N.w.) from Dovor, containing 340 inhabitants. The
living is a v1carage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's hooks at £6. 18. 4., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and held by sequestration under the Archbi
of Canterbury. John Angle, Esq. w patron in 1
The church is a small edifice, dedicate
St. Peter. This village, situated in the
between Barham Downs and the Land’s :
was formerly called Temple-Ewell, from its
formed part of the possessions of the Kuights T

y @ the year 1185 : a building on a hill to
ti called the Temple Farm; but the
ins @f the ancient mansion of the Temphrs-*

mthaspot,m said to have been d

principal stream of the river Dour, or ldle,whiéh
into the sea at Dovor. :

EWELL, a parish partly in the first division umu
hundred of ReicaTe, but chiefly in the first division of




occupied the palace during
t which is at present only

remains of this once stately pile are

by Mr. Calyerley, who has erected
nEio the ancient style of English archi-
re, near the site: in the grounds, several Roman
have been discovered, among which were one of
ninus, and one of Constantine. The village is well
partially lighted with oil, and the inhabitants

. gre amply supplied with water. There are several gun-
M 5?!' lynd pl?r-mxlh set in motion by the river Kig‘;:-
ﬁ,‘p ‘stream which has its source in the parish, and
alls into the Thames at Kingston, The market, for-
erly held on Thursday, has long been discontinued :

mr fairs are, May 12th for cattle, and October 20th, a

very large mart for sheep, at which from thirty to forty
ousand are frequently sold, The parish is within the

urisdiction of a court held at Kingston, for the reco-
very of debts to any amount: courts leet and baron
are held at Michaelmas, The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage of
Sir Lewen Powell Glyn, Bart. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, is an ancient structure, and bas received
an addition of one hundred and eighty-one free sittings,
towards defraying the expense of which, the Incorporat-
ed Society for the enlargement of churches and chapels
amted £50, The rectory-house is an ancient edifice ;
in the grounds several fossils and coins have been found
within the last few years ; among the latter was one of

[rajan, There is a place of worship for Independents.
L National school, to which some bequests for the edu-

of children have been assigned, was established
about one hundred and seventy children are

his school, which is chiefly- supported by

IE, 8 parish in the hundred of EweLnr,
ty of Oxvorp, 3% miles (N.E.by E.) frgm Wal-
ford, containing 573 inhabitan :

annesed to the Regius P _
in the Vsipyonity of Oxford. I he a o
diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's books
b w?t this place, called from the elms
¥y

¢ 2

w

(vulgarly Newelme), William de la Pole, Duke
erected, in 1437, a mansion, a neat hospi

her tomb is remarkably elegant,

L 1585

chureh, dedicated to St. Mary, in which

il v
Fits
.ih‘?'i.: !

dis
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‘EWERBY, a parish in the hundred of ASWARD-
HURN, parts of Kestevex, county of Linconw, 32 miles
(E. by N,) from Sleaford, containing 315 inhabitants.
The lmng.is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeacon-
ry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£6. 10. 10, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. Here is a small en-
dowed school, with a garden attached.

EWHURST, a parish in the hundred of Kinas-
cLerE, Kingsclere division of the county of SovuTn-
AmprON, 6 miles (N.W.) from Basingstoke, containing
18 inhabitants, The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in
the king's books at £ 1. 6. 8., endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of Sir Peter Pole, Bart. The church is dedi-
cated to St,Mary. On the summit of a hill in this
parish, from which an extensive and pleasing view of the
adjoining counties may be obtained, are some tumuli,
and yew trees of great antiquity.

EWHURST, a parish in the second division of the
hundred of BrackueaTH, county of SURREY, 94 miles
(W, by N.) from Godalming, containing 821 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£12. 7. 34., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, is chiefly
in the early English style. On a common, called the
Churt, or East Churt, is a large camp called Holmbury,
supposed to be of Roman construction.

EWHURST, a parish in the hundred of Starre,
rape of Hasrings, county of Sussex, 4 miles (E. by N.)
from Roberts-Bridge, containing 12¢5 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeacoury of Lewes, and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£12. 2. 6., and in the patronage of the Provost and
Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. The church, de-
dicated to St. James, has portions in the early English,
with insertions in the decorated. style. The Rother runs
on the northern side of the parish. Fairs for cattle and
pedlary are held May 21st and August 5th,

- LEWSHOTT, a tything in the parish and hundsed

of WronpAaLL, Basingstoke division of the county of

SovraamrroN, 34 miles (E.) from Odibam, containing
489 inhabitants,

tal,  EWYAS-HARROLD, a parish in the hundred of

WesTREE, county of HErREFoRD, 12§ miles (8.W.) from
Hereford, containing 412 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Brecon, and
diocese of 8t. David, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and €400 royal hounty, and in the patronage
of the Bishop of St, David's, The church, dedicated
to St. Michael, is a small edifice, with a massive tower

early Bnglish style. Here was anciently a cas
. Sadiog to. Dugdale, was. buil b Wil

: ug' to Dugdale,
B hosses Eal of erefurd, ater the ©

d_observes that it was probably i
d, prior ta his clevation to the ¢

it upon an illegitimate son, also na ;" 5
cﬁm,m place is supposed to have ree




EXBOURNE, a parish in the hundred of Brack
TorriNGTON, county of Devon, 4§ miles (E. by 8.)
from Ha.thenleigh. contairiing 508 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£27. 11. 8. The Rev. F. Belfield was patron in 1793.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. A fair for cattle
and pedlary is held annually on the third Monday in
April.

v EXBURY, a chmpelry in the parish of FAwLEY, in
that part of the hundred of Bismor's WALTHAM Which
is in the New Forest (East) division of the county of
SouTHAMPTON, 9% miles (E. by N.) from Lymington,
containing, with the tything of Leap, 811 inhabitants.
This chapelry lies on the left bank, and near the mouth
of the Beaulicu river, which falls into the Isle of Wight
channel, at the Preventive station between Stone and
Needs Bar points. There are salt-works at the village ;
also a ferry over the river to St. Leonard’s.

" EXELBY, a township in the parish of Bur~NEsTON,
" wapentake of HarzigrLp, North riding of the county
of York, 2% miles (S. E. by E.) from Bedale, containing,
with Leeming and Newton, 562 inhabitants. The
sum of about £40 per annum is applied to the in-
struction of the poor children of the townships of
Exelby, Leemmg, and Newton,
= EXETER, a city and a
county of nself locally in
the hundred of Wonford,
J/” county of Devon, of which
it is the chief town, 10 miles
\ (N.N.w.) from Exmouth, 44
(N.E.) from Plymouth, and
176 (W. by 8.) from London,
% containing 23,479  inhabit-
ants, Geoffrey of Monmouth
affirms that Exeter was a
British city prior to its esta-
blishment as a Roman station, a'ad various circumstances
concur to prove the fact. It was by the Britons called
Caer-Wisc, i.e. city of the water; also Ceer Rydh, or
the red city, from the colour of the adjacent soil. After
its capture by the Romans, who made it a sti i
town,.it was denominated Isca, with the addition of
Danmoniorum, to distinguish it from Isca (now Usk), in
Monmouthshire. That it was once occupied by the Ro-

mans is evident from the mumerous coips and other
relics which have been dug up at different times, and
more partxcuhrly in July, 1778, when s | _statues of
Mercury, Mars, Ceres, and Apollo, the not ex-
ceeding fanrmchel and a half in height; evidently the

Pemtu,orhoueholdgodl,ofthatpeople,togumwhh
fragments of urns, tiles, and tesselated pavement, were

discovered, The city is said to have been honoured at
one time with the name of 4 , from the circum-
stance of its - been edv thbaeeondAn-
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marauders in §94, and was :th
Exeter was ata very early mnguhhed
ligious establishments, and contained so many m
foundations that the Cornish Britons and Saxon m
are reported to have called it in derision “ Monk-town,”
On the accession of Athelstan, however, the Britons and
Saxons who had not embraced Chriltianity, and who till
now had formed a considerable portion of its population,
were expelled, and the number of its religious institutions
was augmented by the foundation of a Benedictine monas-
tery, dedicated to St. Peter, which may be re,
as the origin of the present cathedral. The town is
greatly indebted for its early importance to Athellun,
who is said to have established two mints in it, and
to have regularly fortified it with towers and a wall
of hewn stone, from which circumstance, most pro-
bably, it was denominated Exan-ceastre, or Exacestre,
i.e. the castellated city of the Exe, from which its pre-
sent name is derived. In 968, King Edgar restored the
monastery founded by his predecessor, Athelstan, which
had been destroyed by the Danes, and appointed Syde-
mann to the abbacy. At this time the West Saxon see
of Sherborne, of which, prior to 924, Tawton, near Barn-
staple, was the head, having been sub-divided into se-
veral, Crediton became the seat of the Devonshire
dlocese, and Sydemann was ultimately raised to the
bishoprick. In 1003, Sweyn, King of Denmark, landed
on the western coast with a formidable force, to awi
the slaughter of his countrymen, and laid siege to Exeter,
which, after a vigorous resistance for two months,
treacherously given up by its governor, and, with its i
habitants, devoted to merciless destruction, The ma
nastery of St, Peter shared in the common ruin ;
did the city recover from its devastation till the acce
sion of Canute, when it began to resuine npam im*
portance, and the monks of St 0y i
vileges. In the reign of EdwaFl the Confea or, Ex
had attained to such magnitude, wealth, and sec
that the sees of Crediton and St. Germans (Cornwall
were united under one bishop, and Exeter was made
the head of the diocese. The ceremonies attendant on
this were commensurate with its importance;
and the church of the abbey of St, Peter was erected into
the cathedral church, in the nce of Edward; whose
chaplain, Leofric, was installed first bishop of the united
see, The monks were now removed to Westminster
abbey, and twenty-four secular canons were appoint-
ed by the new bishop to perform the serviep
c‘ﬂ"ﬂue instigated by Gi thl,

citizens, y Gi nmﬂw'
refused to receive o Norman
recourse to arms, were jc
bitants of c&mmtl

oM
iy




ﬁi tﬂhmpb Githa escnpedfwnth
in Flanders. = To prevent

. ! erected a citadel in. Exeter,
the gov ich ludentru&ehedtoB;ldwmde
", elevated to t barony of

A m’w by virtue of his oﬁice?rl;rl of Devon,
‘sheriff foﬂhe county. The castle having been gar-
risoned in 1186 by the partizans of the Empress Ma-
ﬂlﬂu, held out against Stephen for three months, but
was compelled to surrender from want of water. Ste-
phen, however, acted with clemency, and Henry II
mbuquenﬂy rewarded the loyalty of the citizens by
4 grant of additional privileges. In 1284, Hugh Cour-
tenay, then Earl of Devon, greatly mJured the trading
interests of Exeter, by obstructing the navigation of
the river Exe, hitherto navigable for vessels of con-
siderable burden. The alleged occasion of this is curious:
in ‘the market-place were three pots of fish, and the
earl's caterer wanted the whole; the bishop’s was
equally unreasonable ; and the dispute being referred
to the mayor, he allotted one to the ear], a second to the
bishop, and the third to the use of the town generally.
This, and other equally unimportant matters, so offended
the earl that he erected a large dam, or wen, across
the Exe at Topsham, where he built a quay, and con-
siderably curtailed the trade of the port. In 1286
Edward 1. held a parliament at Exeter, augmented the
pmvﬂmof the borough, and gave it a new common seal.
k Prince remained here several days with his

royal prisoner of France, and subsequently visited the

city in 1371, In 1469, the Duchess of Clarence, with
-others of the royal adherents, took refuge in Exeter,
which was besieged by Sir William Courtenay, one of
Edward's generals; tl)e aiége,however, was raised at the
& n 1470, Edward IV. arrived

‘of Clarence and the Earl of

3 we, In 1488,
i dward - Courtenay, Earl of‘D{von, was made free of
# uity"beihgtheﬂrsthonomryfreeman on record.

In 1497, Exeter sustained a violent assault from Perkin

Mc&., ded Richard of York, and claimant
‘&m«m : the inhabitants, however, succcssfully re-
till thearrivd of the Earl of Devon,

was "w rewarded by Henry VIL, who
them with his sword. In 1501, Catherine of
remained here several days, on her way from
on, ‘m the 2nd of July, 1549,
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that, with other more subluntial proofs of her m.‘oﬁr
she presented the corporation with the honourable motto
Semper Fidelis. During the parliamentary war, Exeter
scontinued firm to the royal cause; but the lord lieutenant
of the county, who was of the opposite party, disarmed
the citizens, and garrisoned the castle with parhamen-
tarian troops. It was, however, subsequently taken by
Prince Maurice and Sir John Berkeley, the latter of whom
was appointed governor. The city was now regarded as
a place of great security, and the queen, being near the
time of her confinement, took refuge within its walls, Her
accouchement took place in Bedford House, where she
was delivered of the Princess Henrietta Mann after-
wards baptized in the cathedral. Charles 1. visited
Exeter on his way to and return from Cornwall, and
the infant princess remained here till the surrender of
the city, after a vigorous blockade of more ‘than two
months, to General Fairfax, in April, 1646, During the
stay of the parhamentary forces, the cathedral was
shamefully defaced, and divided into places of worship
for Presbyterians and Independents. The palace, with
other buildings adjoining, was turned into barracks,
and the chapter-house converted into a stable. During
the Protectorate of Cromwell, two zealons royalists, who
had attempted to restore Charles II., were by Cromwell's
order beheaded in the city. On the restoration of
Charles 1L, the city again testified its loyalty with much
enthusiasm ; and the king, on his visit in 1671, pre-
sented - the corporation with a portrait of his sister
Henrietta, then Duchess of Orleans. On the appearance
of the Prince of Orange, in November 1688, the inha-

bitants submitted to him, and that monarch established
a mint here. In August, 1787, George I'I., with his
queen and three of the princesses, visited Exeter. Pes-
tilential diseases have formerly raged here, as in most
other towns, with destructive effect : the plague is said
to have been fatal to a great number in 1569. In 1586
oneof the judges of assize, several of the grand jury,
and others, fell victims to the gaol distemper. The
plague ‘was again prevalent in 1603 and 1625 ; and in
1777, no less than two hundred and enghty-ﬂve persons
diggl of the small pox.

This city, which has been denominated “The Capital
of the West,” occupies the flat summit and the declivi-
ties of a hill, rising gradually from the eastern bank of
the river Exe, but abruptly steep on the western side,
in the midst of a fertile and undulating country, sur-
rounded on all sides by scenes of beauty, or spots of
interest. - Its ‘salubrious air, cleanliness, good market,
and proximity to several delightful watering-places, tend
greatly to enhance its eligibility as a place of mldenu.
That portion of it which is within the walls is an oblc
quadrangle, about two thousand six hundred and mmy
yards in compass, divided by two spacious’ p
and intersected §y two inferior, streets: the four
divisions - thus produced are denominated the M

. South, East, md ‘West wards. - nwe.m,om
y the acclivity, and High-street, the summit of the hill,

Mwmxm
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which are enclosed grounds, md the public
baths, erected in 1821, having a handsome exterior of
classical design, and mtemnllyrapkm ‘with every accom-
modation. The town is well paved, partly lighted with
gas by a company embhahedin 1816, and supplied
with water from the river, by water-works erected in
1694, at its western extremity. At the western en-
trance is a handsome stone hridge over the river
Exe, erected, after repeated failures caused by the
rapidity of the current, in 1778, at an expense of
£20,000, a little above the site of an ancient bridge of
twelve lrches, originally erected in 1250. To the north of
the city are the cavalry barracks, and at some distance
to the south-west the artillery barracks, both comprising
extensive ranges of buildings. = The Devon and Exeter
AInstitution, for the general promotion of science, &e.,
was established in 1813. On the ground floor are two
spacious rooms forming the library, which at present
contains ten thousand volumes, under the care of a
resident librarian, with numerons natural and artificial
curiosities, a model of the cathedral m wood, and minia-
ture representations of Mont Blanc, the Sxmplon, &e.,
besides some good paintings : it is supported by two
hundred and thirty proprietors, who pay a premium
of £40, and £2 annually. The affairs of the institu-
tion are managed by a committee, consisting of a pre-
sident, vice-president, a treasurer, and twenty-ome of
the proprietors. In Fore-street is a public subscnp-
tion library, founded in 1807, and containing two
thousand five hundred volumes. The tradesmen and
mechanics’ institution, formed in 1825, now consists
of two hundred members, and is attended by masters
in the mathematics, architecture, and the French lan-
guage : it contains a good library, reading-rooms, &c.,
and in the winter season public lectures are delivered.
The freemasons’ grand provincial lodges, 53d, 98th,
178th, and the East Devon Military lodge, 272nd,
are held here. In a handsome modern building near
the Northern Hay walk are the public rooms, erected
- by subscription, "in 1820 : the ball-room, measuring
eighty feet by forty, is superbly fitted up, and lighted
- by a handsome dome. The theatre is a neat leg
structure, erected on the site of a former one .
atmyed by fire : its scenic arrangements are good, #
docoratlom ropriate : it is frequently. vidite
London rmers. The races generall '
in July or August, on Haldon, orHallewn,
: qmglleut race-course in the vicinity.
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it are extensive iron-foundries, «fnﬂmg-nﬂb, imber
wharfs, &c. A large basin is in progress of excava-
tion opposite the quay, where vessels of cmlw
burden may float and discharge their cargoes, There
are now about twenty-five vessels, of from seventy to
one hundred tons’ burden, tnd.mg ‘between this and
London, three to Liverpool, five to Bristol, ten to Wv-
mouth, and one to Falmouth and Pemnce. - The prin-
cipal exports are woollen goods and manganese; the
imports, wine, hemp, tallow, grocery, &ec. . The trade
of Exeter, at a very early period, was chiefly in the
article of wool, the market for this commodity having -
been removed hither from Crediton, in 1538. = Full-
ing-mills existed here in the time of Edward L : the
weavers and fullers were united to the merchant ad-
venturers, and incorporated by Elizabeth. = It formerly
exported woollen cloth to Italy, Turkey, &e.: and it
is said that before the year 1700, eight out of ten of
the citizens were engaged in that trade, which de-
creased during the American war. The cotton-works,
and manufactories for kerseymere and shawls, have
also declined ; though there is some probability of the
latter being revived. The manufacture at present
consists chiefly of coarse cloth. The governors of the
Bank of England have recently established a branch
‘bank here. The West of England Fire and Life Insur-
ance Compnny, which was formed in 1807, with a
capital of £600,000, has agents in all the -

towns in England. The markets are held by prescrip-
tion : the principal market day is Friday; there is,
however, a daily sale for butcher's: meat, fish, and
vegetables ; besides a market for pork, poultry, but- .
ter, &c., on Tuesday and Friday, on whichlwtﬁdly
is also a market for corn, cattle, and serge: ¢ :
are on the third Wednesday in February,
day in May, last Wednesday in July, an
Wednesday in December: there is a gm:t
the second Fnday in every month, ¥




We.r ‘The aﬁitﬂn are, the
, chamberlain, under sheriff, surveyor,
- sword-be: !mmforihe cltyandcountyofExeter,
 bailiff, four lujuntl at mace, constables for the four

Amuhofthoeity, others for those of the county of the

city, and additional constables for the whole city and

county, &c. The corporation hold a court of assize for the

_city and county of the city twice a year at the guildhall :

‘the assizes for the county of Devonare held in the ses-

sions house within the castle: a court of quarter gessions

is aleo held in both places. The Devon county court, for
the recovery of debté under 40s., is held every fourth

Tuesday in the castle, where there is also an insolvent

debtors’ court three times a year ; and there is a debtors’

court at the guildhall, where ano the mayor’s court, for
the decision of offences, is held every Monday and

Saturday. = The court of requests, for the recovery of

debts under 40s., by an act passed in the 13th of George

II1., is held every fortnight. | The court of provosty

of the city of Exeter, or Provost's court, is held every

Saturday throughout the year, for the recovery of debts

to any amount above 40s.: it is held by prescription,

traced by roll to the 14th of Edward 1., in the year 1286 :
the officers constituting the court are the receiver, and
three other stewards, also called provosts, or bailiffs, two
of whom form a gquorum, and are assisted by the town
clerk, who is the prothonotary of the court, and the
processes are executed by four serjeants at mace, At-
tendance is given at the guildhall by the magistrates

‘@very morning at eleven o'clock, to hear complaints, &c.;
“and-in the castle the magistrates for the hundred hold
i ‘sessions every Fmday a general court day is held
'corpamm*nf, poor, on the first Tuesday in

v members to parliament ever since
: : the rightiof election is vested
0 d freemen generally, the number of

@&wﬂe two hundred : the sheriff is

was formerly front-

e
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‘ Exeter was, in the reign
of Edward the- Confessor,
. erected into a see, the
s diction of which extends over
: ; the counties of Devon and
™ Cornwall, with the exception
of the deanery of St. Burian,
@ 10 the latter county: the
{' j 7 authority of rural dean is
"’/// exercised in this diocese.
( The ecclesiastical establish:
Arms of the Blshopnck ment consists of a bishop,
dean, sub-dean, precentor, chancellor, treasurer, fourarch-
deacons, and twenty-four prebendarxes of whom nine are
residentiary canons, Antiquaries are at variance concern-
ing the character and magnitude of the cathedral, as it
existed at the time of the union of the sees of Devon and
Cornwall. According to an old record at Oxford, a
new church was commenced by Bishop Warlewast, in
1112, and continued by his successors till complcted by
Bishop Marshall, who died in 1206. It is also said to
have been finished according to the original plan of
Warlewast ; consequently the entire building must have
corresponded in character with its two massive Norman
towers. On the accession of Bishop Quivil, in 1280,
the cathedral, with the exception of the towers, was re-
built in the early style of English architecture, and is
justly regarded as one of the most superb ecclesiastical
structures in the kingdom. Among the successors of
Quivil who contributed towards the completion of his
design, Bishops Stapleton and Grandison were distin-
guished by their munificence. Under the episcopacy of
the latter, the nave was lengthened and the rof vault-
ed: the west front was probably erected in the time of his
successor, Brantingham ; and in 1420, under the super-
intendence of Bishop Lacey, the whole as it now appears
was completed. The west front is splendidly decorated
with a profusion of canopied niches, statuary, and elegant
tracery : the principal entrance is in the centre of an ela-
borately carved screen, divided, by projecting and highly

_enriched buttresses, into compartments, in which are

wo series of arches, of which the lower, surmounted
_an open battlement, contains statues, in a sitting
ure, of several of the kings arrayed in their robes,
of others in armour ; in the upper stories and
buttresses are several statues of monarchs in an
re, and in the central niche is one of a king
with his foot on a globe, holding in one hand
sand in the other a sceptre; below which are the
I the sce quartered with those of the ancient

" Saxon monarchs, in a shield supported by

mﬁo Above the screen is a noble window of nine
with clegant tracery. On the north and south

udes of the cathedral are the massive Norman ‘towers,’
of which the lower parts, opening into the nave, form
the t The interior e;hibits a ﬁm combina-
tion of mnjeatxc grandeur and graceful simplicity;

- nave ig from the aisles by massive clustered

, oolumm it of elegant proportion, and above the finely
arches which support the vaulted roof, are ’wtny-
um of beauty, and anobk ange of clereste
d vith rich ec

, mm‘
rated fr
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of which, as well as . those of the: cathedral in general,
exhibit the finest specimens of tracery i the decorated
style to be found in the kingdom, = On the south side of
the choir are some stalls of exquisite beauty, and the
bishop's throne, reaching to the clerestory windows at
an elevation of sixty feet, is. a specimen of tabernacle-
work: ‘of unequalled _ To the north and
south of the lady chapel are those of St, Mary Magda-
lene and St. Gabriel, and in various parts of the cathe-
dral are others richly adorned with sculpture, in one of
which, dedicated to St. Edmund, is held the consistorial
court on every Friday during term. In the north aisle
of the choir are the splendid monuments of Sir Richard
and Bishop Stapleton; and among many others equally
deserving attention, ig the tomb of Bishop Stafford, of
beautiful - design. and elaborate execution. The length
of the cathedral is three hundred and ninety feet,
from east to west, and one hundred and forty from the
extremities of the transepts. The chapter-house is a
beautiful edifice, partly in the early, and partly in the
later style of English architecture ; the roof is of oak,
carved in panels on' the slope, and the intervals above
the beams are filled with tabernacle-work. The episco-
pal palace is an ancient structure, containing several
noble apartments, and a chapel. The deanery is celebrat-
ed as having been honoured by the visits of Charles IL,
William IIL, and George 111.

The city comprises the parishes of All Hallows, All
Hallows on the Walls, St. Edmund, St. George, St. John,
St. Kerrian, St. Lawrence, St. Martin, St. Mary Arches,
St. Mary Major, St. Mary Steps, St. Olave, St. Pancras,
St. Paul, St. Petrock, St. Sidwell, St, Stephen, and Holy
Trinity, the parochial chapelries of St.David and St.
Sidwell, and the extra-parochial precincts of the Cathe-
dral Close, Bedford, and Bradninch, all in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Exeter., The living of All
Hallows' is a discharged rectory, rated in the king's
books at £6. 4. 7., endowed with £800 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Rector of St. Stephen's.
The living of All Hallows' on the Walls is a discharged
rectory, rated in the king's books at £5. 4. 94., and in
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter : the church
having been demolished, the service was transferred to ,
that of St. Mary Steps in 1805. The living of St. Ed-
mund’s isa discharged
at £10. 16. 8., endowed with £400 private
ﬁi?:e royal bounty, and £400 parliamentary grang %
in

he king's books at £9. 13. 8., endowed with 6
h«mty and £1400 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The living of St. Johnahum-

~ torynot in charge, endowed with £ 400 private benefac--

tion, £700 royal bounty, and £ 1200 parliamentary grant,

and in the patronage of the Crown. %ﬂgw St

Kerrian's is a discharged mw
trock’s, the former rated in

rectory, rated in the king's boqkal about to be built in some of the above pu'is

 Independents, Wesleyan and other. Ma
~of the Mayor and Corporation. The
hvingof Sty ngesu a discharged rectory, rated in

royal before the date of the

and the latt\”er at £4. 13. 4., eadomd mm Qsm privis
nwntarysrm:nnimthepaﬂr the Dean %
Chapter. The living of the pumhtot' St. Mary Arches is
a discharged rectory, rated in the king’s books at £10,
endowed with £600. private henefaction, £800 royal
bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant, and in the pa.
tronage of the Bishop. = The living of St. Mary Major's.
is a discharged rectory rated in the king's books at
£15. 14. 94., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£ 300 royal bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter. The
living of the parish of St. Mary Steps is a disc £
rectory, rated in the king's books at £8. 6. 8., endowed,
with £400 private benefaction, £1200 royal bounty,
and £1600 parliamentary grant. The Rev. William.
Carwithen was patron in 1825. . The living of St.
Olave's is a discharged rectory, rated in the king's
books at £7. 13, 4., endowed with £400 royal bounty,
and £400 parliamentary grant, and. in the patronage of
the Crown. The living of St. Paul's is a discharged
rectory, rated in the king's books at £8. 2. 6., en-
dowed - with £ 200 private benefaction, £ 200 royal
bounty, and £400 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Dean and Chapter. The living of
St. Stephen’s is a discharged rectory, rated in the king's,
books at £7. 17. 34., endowed with £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Bishop. The living of the
Holy Trinity parish is a discharged rectory, rated in the
king's books at £11. 16. 4., endowed with £200 p_rivm-,
benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £200 parliamen~
tary grant, and in the patronage of the Dean and C
ter. The living of the parochial chapelry of St. David,
is a perpetual curacy, in the patronage of the Vicar
of Heavitree : the chapel was rebuilt in 1816, on the site
of the ancient edifice. That of $€, SidwelLL 18 lhq_ a
perpetual curacy, emkmd with £1400
grant, and in the. of the Vicar of Heavitree A,
the chapel, rebuilt in 1812, is a spacious and handsome -
structure in the later style of English architecture, with
a ofty , tower, surmounted by an spire.
ce to the south-west of the city is the ceme-
of St. Bartholomew, which was consecrated in 1639,
to the increase of population, chapels of

are places of worship for Baptists, the Society of

ians, a Roman Catholic chapel, and. wSW
e free grammar school was founded by the citizens,
arter of Charles 1., and ‘

six of£.36 mh,nf which mm
of Devon, Mhrm M



o, ¢t .' :'!oum,theweﬂhemre—
‘Within St. John's hos-

ital M - Blue- founded by Hugh Crossi
am wﬂm ywawh twenty-five boys, ndmﬁtg

from seven to ten years of age, are maintained, clothed,
and educated, till they attain the age of fourteen, when
theymfdkmﬂased with £6, as an apprentice fee : they
are by the governors, “ from the city and
county of Exeter, with the exceptlon of those for whom
a ‘specific ‘mode of nomination is appointed by the
donors.”  The College school, at Mount Radford, is
pleasantly situated, with extensive grounds uttached,
and was established in 1826, for the purpose of general
instruction : it is supported by a number of shareholders,
and managed by a body of directors ; the principal is
resident, together with one dxrector, and the several
masters receive boarders. The Blue Maids’ school, for
the instruction, clothing, and maintenance of seven poor
girls, who, on leavmg school, receive an apprentice fee of
£4, was founded in 1672, by Sir John Maynard and
Mrs. Elizabeth Stirt, and endowed with lands producing
more than £ 100 per annum, St. Mary Arches parochial
school was founded in 1686, by W. Wootton, for the
mstruction, on Dr. Bell's system, of forty-four boys, of
whom thirty are clothed. = The episcopal charity schools,
originating with Bishop Blackall, in 1709, and supported
by subscriptions, are open to all children of the parishes
in Exeter, and the out-parish of St. Thomas : one hun-
dred and seventy-six boys, and one hundred and thirty
girls, are clothed and educated. The Ladies’ school, in

which' fifty poor girls are educated, was established in
1804, and is rted by subscription. The Devon
and Exeter Central school,  for promoting the education

of ‘the poor in the princlplel ‘of the established church,”
was founded in 1811, and is supported by subscription :
about four hundred M y boys, and two hundred

and seventy girls, are and write, on the
Madras system.

The Exeter British’ school was esta-
blished in 1807, for the instruction of children, without
n'u‘d to sect or party; there are about eme hundred

~and thirty and as many girls in it.
Exeter ml:;ya school was mgxshed in 1825 :

re is a

‘&ec. The dissenters’ charity school, in St.
: ‘parigh, was established in 1780 ; the house
; Wywuedismnmdemy for - dis-

ng ministers, and had a valuable library attached to
wﬂmm obtain support, it was closed in 1772:

b school is supported ions, sub-
"“’“ﬁ., z for dlothing ‘and Wafing sbout dfty
1 fem en hundred and
Episcopal Sun-

ly schools attached to

wopenedfofputienu*
, and has a ¢

icians, four g
mm !llia
‘ b auiuu-s!«ha

,mwmu
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 number of beds exceeds two hun-

Bl ("“A.-';"i':a{ ;

ceived for the board of private patients: it is
a president, treasurer, two physicians, a sm'geon,mlvoﬁe-by ¢
cary, matron, &c. An eye infirmary, and an institution’
for the instruction of the deaf and dumb, have been
established, the latter of which is open to the poor of
the counties of Devon, Cornwall, Dorset, and Somerset.
A Female penitentiary was established in 1819. Here
are also a Humane society ; a society for the relief of
clergymen, their widows, and orphans; a society for sup-
plying the poor with clothing, coal, baby-linen, and medi-
cine; and a lying-in charity. The Exeter workhouse is
situated on the London road, a short distance from
the city, and is of great extent; it was finished under
an act of parliament, in 1707, and forms a large quad-
rangle, with a chapel in the centre: there are a house
for the governor, spacious committee-rooms, and suffi-
cient accommodation for several hundreds of the poor ;
the average number of inmates is about two hundred
and forty, The Devon and Exeter savings bank was
established in 1815. The Magdalene hospital is said to
have been founded before the Crusades, for persons
afflicted with leprosy ; and, in 1244, the government of
it was vested in the corporation, under whose manage-
ment it still remains : since the extinction of the leprosy,
it has been open to six poor scrofulous persons : the income
is about £65 per annum : the ancient chapel is in ruins.
St. Catherine's almshouse was founded in 1457, for
thirteen aged people, by John Stevens, who gave 173. 4d.
per annum to each of the pensioners ; to which other be-
nefactions have been added, making a total income of
£32. Wynard's hospital was established in 1436, for
providing lodging and subsistence to twelve infirm and
elderly men, who are appointed by the corporation, and
by Mr. Kennaway, who has the nomination of four of
the inmates : the chapel attached to this institution is
a handsome structure, the officiating minister of which
is appointed by Mr. Kennaway. = Grendon's, or the Ten
Cells' almshouses, were founded in 1406, by 8. Grendon,
Esq., for ten unmarried men or women: they have
an income of about £50 per annum, and are inhabited
by ten widows. In 1479, John Palmer founded an alms-
‘house for four poor women ; it is managed by the cor-
poration, who also nominate the three occupants of
Moores almshouse, founded in 1514. Hurst's alms-
were founded in 1568, for twelve poor trades-
or their widows, and are endowed with nearly £100
per atum, There is also in the parish of St. Mary
Arches, an almshouse for two married couple, and
two lmgle persons, among whom the sum of 7s. 8d. is
distributed weekly. Flaye's almshouses, consisting of six
tenements, for themdowsofpoorclergymenunddeu
cayed tradesmen, were founded in 1634, the j
being appointed trustees of the charity: the income
is about £100 per annum. Six poor parishioners of
St. Mary An are appointed by the corporation to
the lhnl founded in 1669, by Christopher  Leth-
Enq., “which Sir Thomas - Imhbddge ‘endowed

; msls e: pﬂmnum,tobedhidod
- the pensioners, In St. John's parish nh‘uem
 almshouse for ' six

wmm:mm

Brooking maqmm;m : 4
‘Richard Em. u:»ma “ “income of £170 per
annum,  Atwill's almshouses founded and ‘en-

mrvears of My

mw the: corporation, with' the
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income of this charity amounts to about £320, In St.
Sidwell's parish are the ancient chapel and eight alms-
houses of St. Anne ; ﬂmeformarh,ubeen lately repaired,
and is open for divine service every Wednesday ; the
pensioners, who are appointed by the Dean and Chapter,
receive each a quarterly allowance from the almshouse,
and a weekly one,‘fromv:the Dean and Chapter: there was
formerly an annexed to the chapel. There are
also an old chapel and almshouses in the adjoining
parish of Heavitree; besides which in this pansh is
an almshouse for four poor women, founded in 1676,
by Mr. John Webb, the rental of the land belonging to
which is about £30. A singular benefaction was made
by one Griffin Ameridith, who bequeathed in trust to
&t ‘corporation the annual proceeds of his lands at
Sidbury, to be laid out in the purchase of shrouds
and coffins for the bodies of malefactors executed
at this place. The incorporated company of weavers
and fullers meet twice a year in Tucker's hall; viz.,
in the months of August and Naevember, for the pur-
pose of arranging several charitable affairs with which
they are entrusted: they give away twenty suits of
clothes annually ; and to' such of the freemen’s sons
as have been educated in the school attached to this
foundation, £5 each towards an apprentice fee, In
addition to the above, there are various lands in the
possession of the different parishes, the proceeds of
which are applicable to general purposes of charity, and
numerous individual bequests and donations.

Exeter still retains some proud vestiges of its ancient
institutions and mural fortifications. In the vicinity are
several ancient encampments, among which may be par-
ticularized that at Stoke Hill ; it is semi-circular, and
more than two hundred and fifty paces in diameter. The
north, south, and east gates were taken down for the
improvement of the city ; but the walls in some places
exhibit the original elevatlon, and may be correctly
traced throughout. On the highest ground in the city,
the north-west angle, stand the venerable remains

‘of the Norman castle, supposed to occupy the site
- that founded by Athelstan :
mont castle from having heen erected on a mo

- of red earth. A collegiate chapel was founded wi umv, 44 miles (N. by E.) from Coventry, con
its walls, by Avenell, the grandson of Baldwin de Bn. 775 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
oniis, to whluh were attached four prebends: it mad archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of I
for the purpose of the assize chapel aftenhe ma- Coventry, TWnghﬁy,Enq.mpatmn
tion, but was taken down in 1782: its principdl gate- The church is dedicated to St. Giles. There
way, a lofty and piotmuque object, still does sum for the education of
also the greater part of the outer walls, from the sum- EXHALL, apaushinﬁxesnaﬁwd,
mit of is over the city, on hundred of Bmwnwn,aqnntyof WAR
the ofSt.Nicholu (8. E. by 8,) from containing &

! S u‘.'
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Atwill's charity, in 1771, for fifteen md. mollcn manu-
facturers, appointed by the corporation: the annnal

it was denominated Rorugm ﬂiﬁ entire wood of the forest has been

opened in 1792. Hmrm ﬂl}:; ncis
Dommxca.n convents : the latter was conve te :

suppression, into a mansion g 1o [ d
family; the site is now occupied by Bed m"d' rescent.
In the neighbourhood are some i
priory, founded in the reign of Ri w‘, of which, at
the dissolution, the revenue was £170. 2. 3, At Cowick,
in the parish of St.Thomas, there was also a monastery,
Among the most distinguished natives of this city, may
be enumerated Josephus Iscanus, or Joseph of Exeta.
Latin poet of the twelfth century; his contemporary,
Baldwin, Archbishop of Canterbury; John Hooker, who
wrote a history of Exeter, in the sixteenth century; Sir
Thomas Bodley, founder of the Bodleian library at Ox-
ford; Dr. John Barcham, an eminent writer on heraldry,
born in 1572 ; Matthew Lock, a composer of musi¢ in
the seventeenth century ; Lord Chancellor King, a distin-
guished lawyer and theological writer ; the Rev. Thomas
Yalden, a poet of eminence; Simon Ockley, a learned
Orientalist; Dr. James Foster, a non-conformist divine,
and theological writer of celebrity ; William Jackson,
an ingenious musical composer ; Andrew Brice, author
of a topographical dictionary; and the late Chief Jus-
tices Gibbs and Gifford. Exeter gives the titles of
carl and marquis to the family of Cecil.

EXFORD, a parish in the hundred of Carmame-
TON, county of SoMERSET, 8% miles (N. W. by N.) from
Dulverton, containing 873 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and dio~
cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books
at £18. 2. 84., and in the patronage of the Master
and Fellows of Peter House, Cambridge. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene. Exford takes
its name from its situation at one of the fords on
the river Exe, over which is a stone bridge of three
arches. The environs, for many milcs, wm ‘at one
time a forest, called Exmeor, Many curious plants
and flowers g-rowm #nd several barrows are scat-
tered over the traet, together with circular intrench-
ments thrown wup for religious rites or feats of exercise.

mile and a westward from the church are vutxgu
-seme-very ancient iron-works, in which tradition says

 EXHALL, a parish in the county of the city
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dodicaed 0 St Martin, There
y Suppor M e 805“'“0“)
n. At this village, which is
d on the west side of the river
‘on the first Thursday in May.
s through the parish.
extra-parochial lig:lty in the hundred
oN and FREEMANNERS, county of SOMERSET,
ig 113 inhabitants, This was formerly a
! d it is said that most of the wood was con-
‘sumed in some iron-works near Exford, where the pits
from which the ore was dug are still visible : a consi-
derable part of this wild romantic waste has lately been
brought into cultivation. In the time of the Druids, the
forest was one of the spots where their religious rites were
celebrated, and here are several circular intrenchments,
which it is supposed were thrown up for that purpose.
EXMOUTH, a fashionable bathing-place, and
chapelry, partly in the parish of Wiraycomse-Raw-
LEIGH, but chiefly in that of LitrLenam, eastern di-
vision of the hundred of BupLricH, county of Devon,
11 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Exeter, and 169 (W.S.W.)
from London. The population is returned with the
respective parishes. This place, as its name implies,
is situated at the mouth of the river Exe, on the coast
of the English channel. The landing of the Danes
here, in 1001 and 1003, probably first made it the
object of attention as a maritime station, and oc-
casioned the erection of a castle, to defend the en-
‘trance to the haven. The port appears to have been
of some consequence in the beginning of the thir-
teenth century; it sent two members to a council of
_state held at Westminster in the 14th of Edward IIL,
and furnished ten ships, and one hundred and ninety-
ce men, towards the great naval armament of that
. the eommencement of his war with France.
g " Edward IV., on the
, in 1459, fled into
Warwick, and
at Exmouth, whence they
; the great civll war, this place
by the royalist and parliame
ﬂ_aﬂbl; taken by the latter’ tn Mitrch
may have been the importance

, and about a century ago

t period it has attained celebrity asa
eing one of the oldest, and at present
( in the county. This is

it was de-"
“hamlet, inhabited chiefly by fisher-.

ing-houses, with a convenient market-house, recently
erected at the expense of Lord Rolle; though that
part of the town on the cliff facing the sea towards
the s(?uth is more pleasantly situated. On this com-
manding eminence are two hotels and boarding-
houses, one of which includes a subseription library,
and billiard and card roowns: and on the western
beach are two pleasing specimens of Grecian architec-
ture, in imitation of the temples of Theseus and the
Winds, at Athens. Among various contemplated im-
provements in the neighbourhood is the formation of
a new line of road between this place and Sidmouth,
about a mile in length, intended to be lined with
cottages. Exmouth is well supplied with water. There
is no trade but that occasioned by the influx of
visitors ; but among the lower classes most of the
women are employed in lace-making. A small weekly
market is held for provisions; and there are fairs on
the 25th of April and the 28th of October. The chapel,
dedicated to St. Margaret, is the chief ornament of the
town, occupying a conspicuous station on the Beacon
Hill, and is a chapel of ease to the vicarage of Little-
ham : it was erected in 1825, by Lord Rolle, at the ex-
pense of £12,000 ; and it consists of a body and aisles,
with alofty square tower of great beauty, in the English
style of architecture. Here are places of worship for
Independents and Wesleyan Methodists. Nearly two
hundred children are educated in a National school found-
ed by Lord Rolle, and endowed by Lady Rolle in 1816.
EXNING, a parish in the hundred of Lackrorp,
county of Surrork, 2 miles (N.W.) from Newmarket,
containing 695 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, with
the curacy of Landwade, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£13.7.6., and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Canterbury. The church is dedicated to St. Martin,
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
EXTON, a parish in the hundred of ArsTOR, county
of RuTLAND, 5% miles (N.E. by E.) from Oakham, ¢on-
taining 735 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, with the rectory of Horn united, in the arch-
deaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the king’s books at £8. 7. 8., endowed with £ 200

.

] ofy private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty. Sir Gerard
ages, it seems to have fallen int oel Noel, Bart. was patron in 1817. The church, dedi-

to St. Peter and St. Paul, is principally in the later

lish style, with a handsome steeple. There is an en-
dowed school, founded in 1702 by Henry Forster, Esq., of
whica the justices of the peace for the county are patrons,
'ON, a parish in the hundred of WirLrron

‘and FreemANNERs, county of SomErseT, 4 miles (N,

by E.) from Dulverton, containing 301 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton,

ks and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in ‘the I i

‘at fd4. 12. 11. J. Everard, and J. Jeffery, Esqrs.
e The church is dedicated to

- 8¢ Perer. The villige ‘stands on an eiineng overlook-

the river Exe, from which it derives its name,
EXTON, a_ parish in the hundred of Fawrey,
fley divisioh of the county of Sovrmampron, 4f
Bishop's Waltham, containing
g is & rectory, in the peculiar
bent, ra e king's books

o Pt
G
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Enghsh style, with some insertions of whmwm
parish is within the jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court
held at Winchester mry'rhmdny formsmmbyvl‘
-debts to any amount. ' '

EXTWISTLE, a joint *mﬂ; Brlmdiﬂ’e
in that part of the parish of WaarLey which is‘in the
higher division ‘of the hundred of BrAcksurN, county
palatine of ‘LANcAsTER, 8§ miles (E.N.E.,) from Burn-
ley, containing 1407 inhabitants.

EYAM, a parish in the hundred of Hicm me,
county of Dersy, comprising the townships of Eyam
and Woodhnd-Eyam and the hamlet of Foolow, and
containing 1516 inhabitants, of which number, 1021 are
in the township of ‘Eyam, 1} mile (N.W. by W.) from
Stony-Middleton, The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Co-
ventry, rated in the king's books at £13. 15. 5. The
Duke of Devonshire was patron in 1826. The -church
is dedicated to St. Helen. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists, A free school is endowed
with about £12 per annum, for which twenty poor
children are educated: the school-house was rebuilt
in 1826, by voluntary contribution. In September
and chber 1665, the infection having been conveyed
hither in a package from London, four-fifths of the in-
habitants of the village were carried off by the plague.
This parish is within the honour of Tutbury, duchy of
. Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of
- pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the
¢ recovery of debts under 40s. Ann Seward, poetess
' and novelist, was a native of this place, of which her
father was rector.

EYDON, a parish in the hundred of CmrpriNg-
WarpeN, county of NorTHAMPTON, 94 miles (8. by W.)
from Daventry, containing 548 inhabitants. = The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£16. 16. 3., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, which is dedicated to St. Nicholas, has lately re-
ceivednn‘ addition of ninety-seven sittings, of which
seventy are free, the Incorporated Society for the ‘en-

largement  of churches and chapels - having gnnted

£45 towards defraying the expense.

EYE, a parish in the hundred of Worrny, county 4

FOU

locally in the hundred of
Hartismere, county of Suw-
roLk, 204 miles (N.) from &
Ipswich, and 89f (N.E. by
N.) from London, contain- \§*
ing 1682 inhabitants,

name of this place, anciently
Eay,is derived from its situ-
ation on a tract of land al- d As

most surrounded with water, and in the adjommg fields
small rudders, iron rings, and other articles of shipping
tackle, have been frequently turned up by the plough.
Soon after the Conquest, Robert, son of Robert Malet,
who had accompanied William I. to England, having ob-
tained the honour of Eye (of which he was afterwards dis-
possessed for taking part with Robert, Duke of Nor-
mandy), erected a castle here, of which there are &till
some slight remains at the foot of the Mill Hill, 'The
same Robert Malet also founded a Benedictine monnstery,
dedicated to St. Peter, to which was annexed the episco-
pal see at Dunwich. In this monastery was preserved
St. Felix' book of the Gospels, written in 1
bardic characters, and called the Red Book, on which the
people used to be sworn, and which was removed from
the abbey at Dunwich when that place was destroyed by
thesea. The revenue at the dissolution was £184. 9. 7.:
the remains ¢¢ the buildings, which are to the east of the
town, have been converted into stables. The town is ]ﬂéa‘- y
santly situated in a valley, surrounded on all sides by,
streams of excellent water, and within a distance
miles from the high road from London to Norwi
news-room is supported by subscription. The
branch of manufacture is that of British lace, wh
the introduction of machinery, has been decli
market is on Tuesday for corn, and theie'f
ket for butter and vg

are on Whit-Monday,

of Hnmon:, 8% miles (N.) from Leominster, compri- g

townships of Ashton, Eye-Moreton, and Luston,

sing the
and containing 678 inhabitants.

The living isea dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and

‘of

Hmd,mdmthehnglbooksatﬁ‘r 19. 2, and in -

‘of the Crown. The church is dedicated

to St Peter and St. Paul. There is a charity school sup-
by subscription. A court leet is held occasionally.
EYE, a parish in the liberty of Perrersorovesn,
county of NortrAMPTON, 3} miles (N.E.) from Peter-
horough, wMunmg 747 inhabitants. Thehﬂng isa
T caracy, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
d diocese of Peterborough, endowed ‘with l!loo*pri-
W bmefmﬁon,m&yd Imnty and £ 600 par-
Theehmhilw'k‘& Jatthe

of the Bishop of ol




generally,
who are chiefly in the in-
- the bailiffs are there-

The 1 a deu-age in the uchdelwnry
bury, Wd’Norwmh,ntedin the king's books
at £11. 14. 7., and in the patronage of Major General
Sir Edward Kerrison, Bart, The church, dedicated to
8t, Peter and St. Paul, is a spacious and handsome
structure, with a fine s square tower in the later style of
English architecture : in the chancel is a very ancient
tomb much defaced, and in the north aisle a curious
iece of sculpture representing the good Samaritan,
ghae are places of worship for Baptists and Wesleyan
Methodists. A free grammar school, the founder of
which is unknown, is endowed by the corporation with
£10 per annum for the master, and with! the rents of
some land for the support of anwusher ; there are twenty
boye at present on the foundation of this school, which
has two exhibitions to Cambridge for sons of freemen
born in the borough. A National school for children of
both sexes is supported by subscription. An almshouse
was founded in 1636, by Mr. Nicholas Bedingfield, who
endowed it with certain lands and houses in Eye, for the
uq:port of four poor widows, or aged unmarried women.
is Cornwallis enjoys the inferior title of Baron
wallis, of Eye, in the county of Suffolk.
EYI’ORD an extra-parochial liberty, in the upper
ion of the hundred of StavenTER, county of GLov-
Qimxles (W. by 8.) from Stow on the Wold,
67 inhabitants. The Duke of Shrewsbury
n here, in which he received a visit from
id in a summer-house, now destroyed,
: vewnttmagreatpartofhu“Pun

f Lozs, county of

'oodbridge, con-

’;"g a discharged

Cand di

; £15, en

00 royal
in 1776.

red of Tmn
(s.) ﬁ‘om

md
poks at

1808.
he

of Sud-
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construction, and, 'hﬁnf it has beengl'enﬂ ‘altered
subsequent repairs, still exhibits a very eu’um um‘z
mented door-way- The Baptists have a place of wd:hip
here. There is a school at Crockinhill, for the instrac-
ﬂnnofthechlldmnofthispuuh,fomded by Thomas
Palmer, in 1809, and endowed by himself and others :
besides this, nine children are sent to the charity school
at Tonbridge, on the foundation of Sir Thomas Dyke.
Eynesford, through which the Darent passes, takes its
name from a noted ford on that river, on the east bank
of which are the ruins’of a eastle, supposed to have been
erected in the Norman times by a family named De
Eysford.

- EYTHORN, a parish in the hundred of Eistry,
lathe of 8. Aucvs'rmz, county of KunT, 64 miles
(N. N. W.) from Dovor, containing 890 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, with the curacy of Sutton, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in
the king's books at £15.12. 6., and in the patronage
of the Earl of Guildford and T. Papillon, Esq., alter-
nately. . The church, dedicated to St. Peter and St.
Paul, has portions in the later English style. There is
a place of worship for Baptists. A fair for toys and
pedlary is held on Midsummer-day. At the southern
extremity of this parish is a Roman intrenchment, and
near Eythorn Court Wood a large barrow or tumulus.

EYTHORPE, a hamlet in the parich of WaAppEs-
poN, hundred of AsmEnpoN, county of BuckiNnGaAM,
4 miles (W.) from Aylesbury. The population is re-
turned with the parish. Here was formerly a chapel,
now demolished.

EYTON, a parish in the hundred of Worray,
county of HErEFORD, 2} miles (N.W. by N.) from Leo-
minster, containing 125 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£ 1200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Governors of Lucton school. The church is dedicated
to All Saints. The boys of this parish are entitled to
free instruction at Lucton school. The river Lugg runs
between this place and Kingsland.

EYTON, a township in' that part of the parish
of ABBERBURY which is in the hundred of Forbp,
, county of Savop, 7 miles (W.) from Shrewsbury, con-

taining 65 inhabitants.

EYTON upon SEVERN, a chapelry in the parish of
Wroxerer, Wellington division of the hundred of
Braggorp (South), county of Saror, 63 miles
(N. y N.) from Much Wenlock. The population is

with the parish. The chapel is dedicnted to
Al Saints,

EY’!‘ON upon the WILD MOORS, a parish in the
Wi divigion of the hundred of Bnﬁnr&mn

(South),gounty of Saror, 25 miles (N. )fmm W
ton, containing 390 inhabitmts. The isa

intham’chdaconryofSalop, and’ mwm
rated in- mekmg-hoohwz% 14. 9
&romge m*x«m_%mf
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embellished with carvifigs of the armis of the duchy of Thursday after Old Mj
Lancaster, An organ has been r présented by  for horses, cattle, &e.
thcrector,mmﬂhthb arishion e ¢ indebt- the manor, oh the 1st :
ed for some emblematical designs in stained glass which sessions for the parts of Kesteve
decorate thé chancel mci&phoeso! have been removed to
worship for Ba pendents, and Primitive and new prison
Weuteym Methox .”*k anca i

- etian school for boys
supported by vw contributions, and there is &
Nntional school for girls. Lady Mary Townshend be-
¢‘and land in 1672, directing the pro-

e (&!nﬁdn poor children.
(MA A), a parish’ in the hundred

FA :
of BLACKBOURN, county of Surrork, 5 miles (8. 8. E.)
ﬁ-am tford, eonmning 214 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a ¢ rectory, in the archdeaconry of

- »-w ‘and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
4 nm ‘at £11. 10. 5., and in the patronage of the
Wm of Grafton. ’l’ﬁe church  is dedicated to St.

: FAKE’NHAM (PARVA), a hamlet (formerly a pa-
igh) in the parish of Evsron, hundred of BLACKBOURN,
county of Suvrrork, 44 miles (8.8.5.) from Thetford,
The tion is returned with Euston. ~'The living, a
rectory not in charge, is united to that of Euston, in
‘the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich
The church, which was dedicated to St. Andrew, has
béen demolished.

- FALDINGWORTH, a parish in the wapentake of
Lawress, parts of Linpsey, county of LincowLw,
5 miles (S.W.) from Market-Raisen, containing 276
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
’tki:gi books at £15. B. 14., and in the patronage of

‘Brownlow. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
There is a free school with an endowment of £5 per
annum.

; FAL'FIEI}D a chapelry in the parish, and lower
division of the hundred, of THORNBURY, county of
GLoucCEsTER, 4 miles (N. E. by E.) from ‘Thornbury,
pontqini with Moorton, 844 inhabitants.
) FAL%!:NKAM, aparish in the hundred of CorLngrs,
: | 8] miles (. 5. B.) from Tpswich,
‘285 inhabitants, The living is a dis
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of
r&t?dinthe‘king‘l books at £7. 11. 8., and in
s of the Crown. The church is dedicated
- The ‘navigable river Dew rans

lhg from sixty to aeventy pnﬂon&l
for a district which comprises five n
two hundred and eleven vilh.u lhq,
superintendence ure vcl:‘sted i:oin
parts of Kesteven, who t m! '
ing to the prison, viz., aﬁmphin, aﬂtg&nf, .

keeper, matron, and tarnkey. There are ten day-rooms
and airing-yards, used by the five ‘classes of male and
female prisoners, as directed by act of patlhment in the
4th of George IV., and within the walls area and
atread-mill, The male prisoners sentenced to labour
are employed at the tread-wheel, and the females in
Knitting and spinning, and they are severally allowed
one-fourth of their carnings; prisoners not: committed
for hard Tabour, who work voluntanly. receive mhﬂf;
and those committed for trial three-fourths. -

living is a rectory, with the vicarage of La
united, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £21.12. 3%., and in the

of Sir Gilbert Heathcote, Bart. The church, which is
dedicated to St. Andrew, is a spacious and handsome
structure, principally in the later style of English archi:
tecture; the chancel is of earlier date, and exhibits som
fine decorated windows ; and the tower, ) 1 i
most remarkable pnrtoftheednﬁce,hmndi ittlement
and eight pinnacles. The free grammar school is open
to all the children of the parish : the master has a salary
per annum, in addition to £40 per ‘“ﬁ
which is chargeable on landinear the town, and was
queathed by J. R. Brokesby, Esq.; other henefactions
have been maﬂetoprwi&adothhgfma mm-

‘of NORTHUMBERLAND, 7; miles (N. u.i.ym
‘wick cdniaining 112 hhmm T!wnu W ,




b FALMOIH‘H a pamh
- in the hundred of Kerrier,
county of CORNWALL, com-
B prising the sea-port and mar-
Iy ket town of Falmouth, which
A possesses exclusive jurisdic-
tion, and containing 6374
inhabitants, exclusively of
99" a portion of the parish of
Budock, which extends into
- Falmouth, in which there
are 4392 persons, 54 miles

hnuofthmphoe 'is derived from its-situation at
‘of the river Fal: the origin of the town may

. before that penod and resorted
10 by ships bound for British ports, having been con-
one of the most secure and commodious in
Bii The “earliest mention of it in history
reign of Henry IV., when the Duchess
Bretagne landed here on her arrival in
‘celebrate her nuptials with that monarch.
 there was only a single house of enter-
me; for persons, and perhaps a few
en's ootup on the site of the present town,
' d John (afterwards Sir John) Killigrew,
ground belonged, began to build several
ind met with much opposition from the
Penryn, Truro, and Helston, who united
g James agimt the work, stating the evil
quen : ~ to their own interests,
l a wvm. he' 'bnﬂt at Falmouth harbour. The
itter was referred to the lords of the eauncxl and by
doddedinKiligrewnfavour the there-
, neeeded ndﬂwtown : a place
g "m “Soon. after 1670, Sir
Bart. constructed a new quay, and proeured an act of
rliamen meuhindwutobepmdtohxmulf
irs 3 and the t establishment of the
‘m to Lishon, tthest Indies, &c., con-
A g of the place.
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to Penryn, and consists principally main |
which, under different nam exteu.dsoxouta
Tength, paved, well lighted with mﬂ&ﬂ
with water. The buildi ingenm-alaremodernlnd
have a neat appearance; behind are rising
which overlook the harbour and the town, g:o ‘:;c?
side of the entrance to the harbour are the castles of
St. Mawes and Pendennis ; the latter, which is on the
western side, being built wpon a peninsular eminence,
two miles in circumference at the base, and rising
wards of three hundred feet above the level of tg;
sea, has a very majestic appearance: it is strongly
fortified, and contains commodious barracks, store-
houses, and . magazines, with apartments for the lien-
tenant-governor. The castle of St. Mawves, on the op-
posite side, in the parish of St. Just, is inferior, both
in size and situation. There are reading and billiard-
rooms and a theatre: a musicel society, called the
Philharmonic Society, has been established.

The, trade of Falmouth, from its advantageous posi-
tion, soon. became extensive, and it is now one of the
principal ports in the West of England, being scarcely
inferior to any in its advantages as a rendezvous for
outward and homeward bound fleets. In many in-
stances, vessels have made theirvoyage from this harbour,
while those from Plymouth and Portsmouth have been
forced back by contrary winds, before they could reach
the mouth of the channel: outward bound ships from
Liverpool, Bristol, Greenock, &c. rendezvous here to
join convoy, and thus avoid a tedxous navigation up and
down the channel ; while, for a similar reason, the mas-
ters and supercargoes of homeward bound vessels call
to ascertain the state of the British and continental mar-
kets, or to receive orders from their owners or corres-
pondents for regulating their further proceedings. This
port has for many years carried on a very extensive
foreign trade ; it was one of the first ports in the west-
ern counties to which the privileges of the bonding aet
were extended, and is the only tobacco port in the coun-
ties of Cornwall and Devon : its jurisdiction exterds from
Helford river westward, to the Deadman point eastward.
The impom are,~—from America, wood, wheat, ﬂom',
staves, rice, &c.; from Spain and Portugal, fruit, wine,
wool, salt, &c.; from Holland, oak-bark, grain, &e.;
fmm Russia and the north of Europe, hemp, tallow, tar,
pitch, iron, linen, sail-cloth, timber, and_o¢casionally
grain ; from the Mediterranean, fruit, oil silk, &c. ; from
France, grain, flour, fruit, wine and brandy ; and from
Ireland, salt provisions, flour, feathers, &c, It formerly
tity of pressed pilchards to the

Weat Indies and. Tealy; but, this fish has htelybeenm .
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ahout the year 1688 ; the present | _
of five packets on the Lishon sta m&hﬂm
other parts of the world. At Falmouth and St. Mawes ; choo
there was formerly a very extensive pilchard fishery, relief and supp
fourteen thousand 1} having been exported lo ing to e port of
hence in one season; but from the decrease of fish, chil nofludxudwﬂdbew '
little has been domfmthuht two years. Here is merchants' service, was established h
some employment in  ship- and rope-making. under the powers of an act of parliament
Markets are held on’ ’l‘nudny, ureday, and Satur- 20th of George IL, authorising any ov
day, for butchers' meat, fish, and other provisions : and establishing ‘an ho@ital for seamen t
there are two ﬁu,nm.Angust 7th and October 10th, for port, to appoint fifteen trustees for its ms
cattle. The market-house was built in 1813, at the ex- are annually elected by the owners and con
pense of Lord Wodehouse, and has a fountam of spring vessels helonging to the port, and confirmed
water in the centre. This town was incorporated by poration in London, established under the
charter of Chgrles I, in 1661: the muxrigxopal body @ treasurer, receiver, and secretary, are
congists of a mayor, seven aldermen, twelve burgesses, the trustees, who meet mnnthly at the
ﬁhﬂ recorder and town clerk; the latter officers are transact business, The present income |
nted by the King, on the petmon of the corpera- is about £300 per annum ; the regu,hr pensio
; the serjeants at mace and constables are appointed dows and children of deceased mariners, wh ﬁéuive
by ﬂie corporation. The mayor is elected from the relief, are numerous. All merchant ships I
aldermen, and the aldermen from the burgesses, by a registered at this port claim a right for their seamen, on
majmtykof the whole body. They hold a court of quar- payment of sixpence per month each, to the b‘ehdtl‘q
ter session by charter ; and a court of record, for sums the establishment. The widows’ retreat, an almshouse
not. excceding one hundred marks, was appointed by containing ten small rooms, for the residerice of as man
the charter to be held every second Thursday before poor widows, was erected in 1810, at the expense ¢
the mayor, recorder, and aldermen, or their deputies, Wodehouse. A dispensary was established s
or any three of them; its jurisdiction extends only year 1807, and soon afterwards a benevolent so €
to the town itself, but this court has not been held the relief of the poor, and especially of \gers,
since May, 1785, The ‘mayor, his predecessor, and the the management of a visiting committee ; to
recorder,m by charter justices of the peace, with ex- their examination of cases, the town is diviﬂéa !h%,
clusive jurisdiction. The county magistrates meet at the several districts. In 1800, a lying-m chnty esta-
Green B hotel jon the second Thursday in every blished; in 1812, a humane society ; and in lglf o
month, to hold a session for the eastern division of provident society and snvmgs bank: in addltibd
the hundred of K are several benefit societies and masonic lodges.
The living is a rectory, in the peculiar junsdlction of interest of £300 three per cent. consols, w W
the Bishop of Exeter, rated in the king's hooks at £3, by the late Mrs. Daval, of Chiswick, to 'k
and inthe patronage ‘of Lord Wodehouse. The clmrch ternately to the relief of poor wxdow§ and
soon after the Restoration, and dedicated to the the son of a poor widow. Near Penderinis a
ry of Charles I, “King and Martyr,” was made mnimofanmtmﬁ!nﬁtﬁndeb Cromwell durin
ehial in 1664, by act of parliament. A hand- civil war, Fnlmaﬂh the title of &t :
some chapel of ease was erected about two years since, family of Boscawen of Tregothnan. Dunstan
'bx.mmmbmiptlon, and ‘a grant from the Incorpo- race, or GreenBaﬁk, is an appenda;ge of ‘this
rated Society for the enlargement of churches, &c.,at the situated in the of Budock.
: st end of the town, within the parish . VE FALSGRA
¢; the site was presented by Lord de of the of Smnb:o‘(ma, 'Nort ’
of mmp for | Baptists, B.;psm,the ~ eonntyol’Ym, 1 mile (8.W. by W.) from
; Primitive_and Wi 345 inhabitants,
INE, a parish in the
M wmy of‘N‘ )

Mh!m, the subscrip-
boys, @;i{“““’m"‘“g




its cor
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. with 1 Gilaland fips. . At s place called the Bells
a8 e ,[”

ncient religious building, conti-

(NORTH), a parish in the hundred
o_i'. Essex, 5 miles (N.N.W.) from
air 147 inhabitants. The living is a
ischa 7, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and
and patronage of the Crown. The church is
dedicated to the Holy Trinity. North and South Fam-
b@:ujgeh are separated by the river Crouch, over which
B R

. RIDGE (SOUTH), a parish in the hundred
of Rocurorp, county of Essex, 34 miles (N.N.W.)
; ochford, containing 107 inhabitants. ' The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £17. E. Ste-
phenson, Esq. was patron in 1809, The church is de-
dicated to All Saints.

~ FANGFOSS, a parish in the Wilton-Beacon di-
vision of the wapentake of Hamruivr, East riding of
the county of Yorx, 4 miles (N.W.) from Pocklington,
containing, with Spittle, 154 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, endowed with £1000 royal bounty,
and in the p;cnhzr jurisdiction and’ patronage of the
Dean ef York. ‘

CETT, a chapelry in the parish of Stanp-
of Norman-Cross, county of Hun-
S (8. by E.) from Peterborough, contain-
5. The chapel is dedicated to St. Mary.
a market town and parish, in the hun-
areEAM, Portsdown division of the county
MPToN, 12 miles (E.S.E.) from Southampton,
.) from London, on the road from South-
Portsmouth, containing 3677 inhabitants,
tuated on the north-west branch of Ports-
wrbour, which is here crossed by a bridge,
ned in Domesday-book as having, from its
ituation, been formerly much exposed to the

the Danes. It is a neat and flourishing
ying an elevated site, neither lighted nor

_connected with the naval esta-
outh.  There is a handsome as-
about thirty years ago, in which,

.. The town has a
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werful and efficacious

! n. 1, rated in the king's books at £4.13. 4., -

i, but well supplied with water. Several

m, assemblies are held monthly.. books at £18. 6. 05. Lewis Cage, Esq. was pat

on, though upon a small . 1797. The church is dedicated to All Saints..
slo ‘small vessels : there
nd a manufactory for fine red

CuMBERLAND, cowprising the townships of East Far-

lum?“.and West Farlam, and containing 663 inhabitants,
of ;
of Wt Fnrlain. The living is oris

FAR

of the Bishop of Winchester ; and petty sessions are held
here weekly for the division of Pompeﬂym iving
is a vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of »the*hm-
bm,;mwdh} the king's books at £8, 12, 6., and in the'
patronage of the Bishop of Winchester. ~The church,’
dedlcat.ed to St. Peter und St.Paul, is a handsome edifice 3,
rebuilt about fifteen years ago, with the exception
of the chancel, which is of early English architecture,
Independents and Wesleyan Methodists have each
a place of worship. Here is a National school, at
which about eighty boys and fifty girls are educated ; it’
was established in 1813, and about two years ago 'a
suitable school-room was erected. In 1721, William
Price gave by will £200, for the erection of a charity
school ; and an estate in this parish, with another in
the parish of Alverstoke, from the produce of which a
salary of £35 per annum is paid to a master for teach-
ing thirty poor boys, chosen by the minister and church-
wardens, who are trustees of the charity, and receive
£6 per anmum for their trouble; the overplus of the
rents, after paying for books and clothing the children,
is distributed among poor widows. The funds haye
been angmented by money arising from the sale of ‘tim
ber, and other sources; and the present income, in
cluding rents and dividends on funded property, amounts
to £264. 10. 8. per annum, : :
FAREWELL, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of Orrrow, county of Starrows, 2 miles
(N. W.) from Lichfield, containing, with Charley, 202
inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of Lich-
field, endowed with £600 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Marquis of Anglesey. The church is
dedicated to St. Bartholomew., Roger, Bishop of Chester, s
or Lichfield, founded, about 1140, a religious house, to
the honour of the Blessed Virgin Mary, for canons re~
gular, who afterwards gave place to Benedictine nunsj;
it was suppressed by Wolsey. 2
FARFORTH, a parish in the Wold division of the
hundred of Lovru-Eskg, parts of Lannsey, county of
LincoLn, 6% miles (S. by W.) from Louth, containing,
with Maiden-Well, 94 inhabitants. = The living is a
discharged rectory, with the vicarage of Maiden-Well,
united in 1753 to the rectory of Ruckland, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in' the king's -
books at £6. 6. 8. The church is dedicated to St-Peter. -
FARINGDON, a parish in the hundred of Skr- °
BorRNE, Alton (North) division of the county of Sovrm .
AMPTON, 8 miles (8. by W.) from Alton, containing 479
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea- |
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the:kitwg‘n.;]‘;‘x
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ston harbour bounds the parish on the south and

mt!l;,,‘v“ ) HERH AN
ARLAM, a parish in Eskpare ward, county

PRt

of

which number, 491 are in the township of Bast Far-

of



18 in the peculiar

. b of Oanterbnry, rated in
the kmgs books ntﬁa ;ag and in the patronage of
the Crown. The church has at the west end a tower
and spire. . An ancient stone bridge of five arches crosses
the Medway at the entrance to the village, Here are
almshouses for five poor persons.

AB.LEIG;H ST), a parish in the hundred of
Twyrorn, lathe of AvLesrorp, county of Kent, 3%
miles (W. 8. W.) from Maidstone, containing 364 inha-
h}m The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry

4wme of Rochester, rated in the king's books at

£ 6. 10, 5., and in the patronage of the Dean and Chap-
tm‘ of Rochester. The church, dedicated to All Saints,
principally in the early style of English architecture.
?]m place, which rises gradually from the southernbank
of the Medway, has been the residence of genteel fa-
milies for centuries; the houses are prettily detached, and
there are commnmcatmm with the opposite side of the
river by three bridges, viz., Barnjet, St. Helen's,and Teston.
FARLEIGH-HUN GERFORD a parish in the
hundred of WerLow, county of SOMERSET, 7 miles
(8. E.) from Bath, containing 174 inhabitants. The
living is a dxscha.rged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £8. 11. 8., and in the patronage of John
Houlton, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.Leonard.
The river Frome runs through the parish, and the
neighbourhood abounds with a species of marble, good
for roads, and with the best freestone rock for ornamental
buildings in the kingdom. Farleigh castle was erected
in 1170, by Sir Thomas Hungerford ; only two of the
towers are now standing, those at the morth-eastern
angle having been demolished in 1797 : the chapel
contains several ancient monuments to the Hungerfords,
Margaret, Countess of Salisbury, hter of George,
Dulke of Clarence, and the last of the l;gmltagemzta, was
horn here ; this princess was married to Sir Richard
Pole, a kinsman of Henry VIL, and was the mother of
the. celebrated C:\;mgdmal Poid a}sohof Lord Henry
Mm,‘who aceu of h treason, the
“Countess was implicated in the chug?ngd

to- be beheaded ; after a violent ththg%x-
.mz.m-heq&zeddeathmtheas VI
A Roman tesselated pavement was dise in 1085,

andotharv stiges of a Roman

am wﬂrs

side of the vﬂlngq arleton Kn, lofty.
limestone mlng above the vmlge, hias on ltl
several springs : e

FARLEY, a towmhxp in tbe
southern division of the h of &
county of Starrorp, 4% miles (E. by N.).
containing 398 inhabitants. :

FARLEY, a parish in the second dlvhiog af ép
?undred of TANDRIDGE, county of;ls)ivnnu, %mmn (l E.)

rom Croydon, con 84 inb ts e is

a discharged rectory, in tine archdeac%?:ry of Yjagnd
diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's at
£4. 16. 5., endowed ‘with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the pa of the
Warden and Fellows of Merton College, Oxford. Tbe
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

FARLEY, a chapelry in the parish and hnndnd of
ALDERBURY, county of Wirts, 5 miles (E.) from Sllik
bury, containing 229 inhabitants. This .
within the 6)ecuhar jurisdiction of the Treasurer in thp
Cathedral ch of Salisbury. The chapel was rebmh
by Sir Stephen Fox, who was born here in 1627 ;
also founded, in 1678, an almshouse, and endowed it
with £ 188 per annum, arising out of the manor of mnr
nington, for the support of a chaplain, or warden, six
men, and six women : it is a plain brick buildmgﬁxm‘
ing three sides of a quadrangle, the &entre of w is
appropriated to the chaplain, who has, besides, the
charge of a free school, established by the same '
volent individual. .

FARLEY-CHAMBERLAYNE, a pu'iah
dred of King’'s SomBourN, Andover divis
county of Sourmameron, 53 miles (W.
Winchester, containing, with Shckxtead,
ants,  The living is a rectory, in the.
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
£10. 12, 1., and in the patronage of !
Mildmay, Ecq The church is dedicated lo
On an eminence, termed Beacon hill, are ves
ancient encampment, i

FARLINGTON, a parish in the hmdmd of
pown, Portsdown division of the county of

AMPTON, 2% miles (W, by s.) ftou) H*mt,
with the extra-parochial 1i ,
hlbita.nt!



is applied to

chapelry with Kingston-Lisle,
of SparsmoLT whith is in the

po

AIVENHAM, county of Berks, 5% miles
‘Wantage, containing 357 inhabitants. The
hich was dedicated to St. James, has been de-

OW, a chapelry in that part of the parish
TTESDEN Which is in the hml:)dred of WoLrny,
‘of Herkroro, 53 miles (N, W. by N.) from
‘Cleobury-Mortimer, containing 345 inhabitants, The
apel is dedicated to 8. Giles.
* FARLSTHORP, a parish in the Wold division of
the hundred of Cavceworta, parts of Linpsey, county
'mmcoz.‘x,‘lé mile (8. E.) from Alford, confaining 101

bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
conry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king’s
£5. 6. 8., and endowed with £200 royal bounty.
7 Kipling, Esq. was patron in 1814. The church
is dedicated to St. Andrew.
* FARMANBY, a township partly in the parish of
mhﬁxiy; but chiefly in that of THorNTON-DALE,
ickERING lythe, North riding of the county of York,
3 miles (L. 8.E.) from Pickering, containing 403 inha-
, gﬁqﬁ _There is an estate in this township belonging
'%Egm and Canons of Windsor, part of which is
“called Monlklands.

MBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of Kxyn-
of _SomErseT, 3§ miles (8. E.byE.) from
ntaini %‘752 inhabitants. The living is a

chdeaconry of Bath, and diocese of
s, rated in the king's books at £10.2. 11.
Tisq. was patron in 1823. The church is
All Saints. There 18 a place of worship
c’athoﬂis‘tl. 3

cesTER, 2% miles (E.) from Winch-
ulation is returned with the parish.
N, a parish in the hundred of Bwap-
GLOUCESTER, 2 miles (E,N.E.) from
containing 245 inhabitants, The lving is
_archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
0 oks at £16. 5, 5. E. Waller, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St.
bounds the parish

i la -

a cha.pe!l? elry in the parish of Lower
division of ‘the hundred of KirrscaTs,

R L e B S e Y B RSF E o)

FAR
fooms i, auantity sf Sk oW RELC 1Y Had ncipnily

a market and two fairs, but the { has been
since disused, and one fair only is now held, onéh:;-s
tember }sth. Faruborough gives the title of baron to
the family of Long, created July 8th, 1826. -

FARNBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of Crox-
paLL, Basingstoke division of the county of Sourn-
AMPTON, 5% milés (N. E, by N.) from Farnham, contain-
ing 287 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in
the king's books at £7. 12. 11,, and in the patronage
of —— Greenwood, Esq. and others. The Basingstoke
canal passes through the parish,

FARNBOROUGH, a parish in the Burton-Dassett
division of the hundred of KineTown, county of Wan-
wick, 65 miles (E. by 8.) from Kington, containing 356
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £5. 12., en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
hounty. W. Holbeche, Esq. was patron in 1812. The
churcg is dedicated to St, Botolph, John Freckleton,
about 1764, bequeathed property for the benefit of the
poor of Aston, Cleydon, Dasset, and Farnborough ; and
in 1812, Viscount Andover left £ 100, producing together
an income of about £42, which is applied to the educa-
tion of seventy children of these parishes. The
canal enters the county at the northern boundary of the
parish.

FARNDALE, a chapelry comprising the township
of Farndale High Quarter, in the parish of Laisring-
HAM, and the township of Farndale Low Quarter, in the
parish of Kirksy-Moorsipe, wapentake of RyrpaALE,
North riding of the county of York, 13 miles (N.W.)
from Pickering, and containing 499 inhabitants,

FARNDALE-EASTSIDE, a township in the parish
of LasTiNGHAM, wapentake of Ryevare, North riding
of the county of Yorxk, 11 miles (N.W.by N.) from
Pickering, containing 455 inhabitants, e

FARNDISH, a parish in the hundred of WiLLey,
county of BEprorp, 44 miles (8.w. by 8.) from Higham-
Ferrers, containing 73 inhabitants, The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of

_ Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £10. C. Chester,

ichael. i
FARNDON, a parish in the higher division of the
Jmndred of Broxrton, county palatine of CHusTER,
comprising the townships of Barton, Churton by Farn-

- don, Clutton, Crewe, and Farndon, and containing 857
inhabitants, of which number, 429 are in the township

'Esqiayu patron in 1784. The church is dedicated to
St. i

of Farndon, 8§ miles (8.) from Chester. The livingisa

perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry ‘and e of
Chester, endowed with £600 private benefaction, £200
ywal bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of Eaul Grosvenor. The church, dedicate
B, Chad, was ned in the civl var, and in o
M&&w?lwi:i@%ﬁmﬂ s & curious
~swined window, representing ' :

)



FAR
bridge of eight drches, co with the town ~ FARNHAM, a parish in
of Holt, in Flintehire. A charity was ‘erected  the hundred of FARNEAM,
in lm,andendo\mlﬁth’m‘ M‘&‘.;; county of SURREY, compti- -
n occup

per annum, with a small croft and ied
the innst/;t wmﬁmmi on the Madras
system. John 1) Engﬂqh topographer
and historian, was born here in 1552.

FARNDON, & hamlet in the parish of Wooprorp,
huridred of CriprinG-WArpEN, county of NorTuaMP-
ﬁw 9& miles (8.5.W.) from Daventry. The population

- is returned with the parish
FARNDON a ‘parish in the southern division of

the waj ‘of NewArk, county of NoTTiNGHAM, 2
miles (8. W. by W.) from Newark, containing 499 inhabit-
ants. 'meﬁvlng is a discharged vicarage, with the curacies

of Balderton, and Fiskerton, in the archdeaconry of Not-
ﬂh%ﬂhh and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £6. 18. 4., éndowed with £400 royal bounty, and in
‘the ptironage of the Prebendary of Farndon in the
Qathedral Church of Lincoln. The church, dedicated to
'St. Peter, is a large and lofty edifice. The parish is
bounded on the west by the river Trent, and is inter-
sected by the Roman fosse-road. There ds a small en-
dowment for teaching children.

FARNDON (EAST), a parish in the hundred of
RoraweLy, county 8f NorTHAMPTON, 2 miles (5.8.W.)
from Market-Harborough, containing 250 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of North-
ampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's
books at £18. 1. 04., and in the patronage of the Pre-
sidént and Fellows of St.John's College, Oxford. The
church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. There is a
ml.?'nl in the parish.

,a pansh partly inthe hundredof Cravk,
county of Wu.'ra,but chiefly in that part of the hundred
of Onnsﬁmm which is in the Shaston (West) division
“of the county of Dorser, 8 miles (W.byN,) from Cran-
borne, containing, with the tything of Farnham-Tollard,

~ 288 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol,
rated in the king's books at £7. 10., and in the patron-
igeéﬂheﬂrown The church is ded:cate&toStLaw
‘¥ence. There is a fair for cheese on the 21st of August.
ET “ FARNHAM, a parish in the hundred of CLAVERING,
Wof Essex, 3% miles (W.byN.) from Stansted-
Bountfitehet, containing 470 inbabitants. The living is
‘a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and d
ﬁ&unm,!mdhthemsbooh at £28. 6.
in the p ‘the and Fellows of Ty

.

md

situated, and of the adjoini

sing the market town of
Farnham, the chupe'lry of
Bagshot, and the tythi

of Culverlands with

ford, Runfold, Runwick, undv :
Wrecklesham * with Bourn,
and containing 54!3 mha-
bitauts, of which nurber,
3132 are in the town of < d e
Farnham, 10 miles (W. by 8.) from Gnﬂdford wd 38
(8.W.) from London. on the road to Southampton. This
place, originally called Feral ain, from the fern growing on
the extensive hepths by which on all sides, except the
south. west, it is for roanymiles surrounded, was by Ethel-
bald, King of the West Saxons, annexed to the see of
Winchester. In £93, Alired obtained a signal victory
over the Danes, who were ravaging this part of the coun-
try ; and in the reign o” Stephen, Henry de Blou,bmh!r
of that monarch, and Bishop of Winchester l, on
a hill commandmg the town, a castle of |

and of considerable extent, which ig said to hmr hem
seized by the Dauphin of France, in his expeditiona
King John. In the following reign, this castle having bt-
come a retreat for the mal-contents, was demolished by
Henry 111, in the war with the barons; but was sub-
sequently rebuilt by the bishops of Wmchestet ‘with
greater magnificence, as the episcopal palace. m
the parliamentary war, the castle was

the king, but being besieged by Waller, the M-
mentary general, it fell into his hands, and was
warde diemantled and nearly destroyed. The
rémains are some portions of tbe walls, and
which still retains vestiges of 'its ancient
the deep fosse, by which the castle was surround

o the north side occupied’ by a_plantation of Mt
trees. At the Restoration ti mhabited part was g

repairs : it has been ;
principal residence of bhhqps of the di
‘containg an gxtensive and Tlibrary

the see. ’l‘hepukthreemﬂdine umfe
mands & fine view of the valley in which W

cmmti:y

umtﬂr-dut _To the east of t




1 any other part of the kmgdom, and inva-
-a higher price : they are almost exclusively
/hill fair, near: Andover, where they are sold
mmm;wnntrydedera On the banks of the Wey
-are several flour-mills, from which considerable supplies
are sent to the London market by the Basingstoke canal,
whiehemm the high road within four miles of the
The market, which was formerly well supplied
‘with corn, is on Thursday : the fairs are on Holy Thurs-
day and Midsummer-day, for horses, cattle, sheep, and
and November 13th, for horses and cattle. Farn-
hm was anciently a borough and returned members to
Arom the 4th of Edward II. till the 38th
Henrg VI.: it had a charter of incorporation
miad by the bishops, under which the government
was vested in two bailiffs and twelve burgesses; but
M privileges were so little regarded that the va-
m&jﬁr in the number of the burgesses were not
up, and in 1790, the bailiffs having been in-
dicted for not repaiving the bridges at Tilford, sur-
. their charter to the bishop, and sent the
“records of the borough to the castle. The town is
within the jqu:ctlon of the county magistrates, who
petty sessions for the division : the bishop holds
wt leet in the spring, at which tythingmen and
ables are appointed, and a court baron every third
ﬂ\e mpvery of debts under 40s.

‘vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
of Winchester, rated in the king's
). 5., and il phe patronage of the Arch-
\ cated to St. Andrew, is a
ture in the later style of

a lqnovf t:we;sx;: the weztl end ;
ow of five lights, with egant
allery over the north aisle was en-
and twenty additional free
from the Incorporated Socmty for the
of es and chapels, eod a similar in-
mmmumgl for females was made
over the south aisle, by subscription. There
ts, and also one at

f

Q.

by :?m,hm been recently appropriated w.the

of Farnmam; in that part of

of Wumley, founded in 1128, by Gahrd, Bi
Winchester, for monks of the Cistercian owder‘hq{l‘)hq
introduced into England (the abbot, according to Gale,
being . the superior of that order in this coun-
try), the clear” annual revenue of which, at the dissolu-
tion, was £174. 8, 3.: the remains consist of part of
the souih aisle of the church, in the windows of which,
within the memory of the present generation,
many specimens of the rich stained glass with wm
the church was decorated ; and part of the dormxtnry,
refectory, and the c]onsf,ers, richly mantled with ivy, and
extending in detached portions over a space of three or
four acres: stone coffins and numerous sepulchral re-
mams having been frequently discovered on the spot.
Peier de Rupibus, Bishop of Winchester, died at Farnham,
and was buried at Winchester, but his heart was depomted
at Wavcrley, and is said to have been dug up entire
about six years since, enclosed in a leaden box, contain-
ing a saline liquid. Nicholas de Farnham, successively
physician to Henry IT1, MBishop of Chester and Durham,
and author of several works on the practice of physic
and the nature of herbs ; and the Rev, Augustus Mon-
tague Toplady, A, M. an eminent controversial divine of
the last century, were natives of this place.
FARNHAM, a parish in the lower division of the
wapentake of CrAro, West riding of the county of York,
comprising the townships of Farnham, Ferensby, and
Scotton, and containing 548 inhabitants, of which
number, 141 are in the township of Farnham, 2% miles
(N.) from Knaresborough. The living 1s a v1cnn&
within the peculiar jurisdiction of the court of
honour of Knareshorough, rated in the king's books at
£6. 12. 1., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£800 royal hounty, and £1700 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Rev. Thomas Collins, and
the Rev. Timothy Shann. The church is a neat struc-
ture, situated on an eminence. The river Nidd bounds
the parish on the west. A copper mine was opened
in 1757, but the adventurers failed of success.
FARNHAM-ROYAL, a parish in the hundred of
Burnuawm, county of Buckingraym, 34 miies (N.) from
Eton, containing, with the hamlets of Hedgerley-Dean
and Seer-Green, and a portion of Salt-hill, 1149 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
of Bu and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £12. 16. 0., and in the pa-
tronage of the Provost and Fellows of Eton College.
The ehurch is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place
of worship for Dissenters. Mrs, Elizabeth Hethngg
ton, in 4777, gave £140 towards the foundati :
, the proceeds of which, with sundry

»

school-house. ey
!‘WW*TOLIABD tytlnng in th

vhieh is in the Shmsw (%Mt):
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'h in the hundred of AxToN,
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PArTrORD, and . ma'ron, lathe of Surron at Honz,
Yeounty of Kuxt, 53 miles (8. E. by E.) from Foot's
Cray, containing 586 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of

the Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the king’s books
at £9.5.10. The church, dedicated to St. Peter and
St. is principally in the early style of English
q-chitecture having at the west end a handsome flint
_tower, and containing hrasses and other remnants of
_antiquity, with an octagonal font curiously and elabo-
.<I'Oﬁﬂ1 carved. Farningham, anciently Fremingham,
,liptéymg the village by the brook, is situated on the
road from London to Maidstone, on the river
Darent, which is crossed by a bridge of four arches,
and has some paper-mills on its banks: it had formerly
a market on Tuesday, and a fair for four days, commenc-
annually on the eve of St.Peéter's day ; there is still
:nga for horses and cattle on the 15th of October.
FARN-ISLANDS, a cluster of small islands in the
parish of HovLy IsLanND, in ISLANDSHIRE, county pa-
latine of DurmAM, seventeen in number, extending
about 7 miles (8. E.) from Holy Island. = The largest of
them, called House Island, whi¢h lies nearly two miles
to the eastward of Bambrough castle, is remarkable as
the spot where St. Cuthbert passed a few of the latter
years of his life, and whereon a priory subordinate to
Durham was subsequently founded for Benedictine
_ monks, whose revenue at the dissolution was £12.17. 6.
Ethelwold. St. Bartholomew, and Thomas, prior of Dur-
mher celebrated devotees, since the time
» sequestered themselves in this place.
,Am tower, the ruins of a church, and other build-
. ings, are still remaining, also a stone coﬂin, in which it
is said the body of St.Cuthbert was first laid. At the

: ;gt d'eau sixty feet high, ca]led t
as been erected on House island,

ishnﬂ,threemﬂutoth

oo
‘ wx

; mba;u end is a deep chasm, through which in stormy #'in the archdeaconry and diocese of Che
- weather the sea forces its way with such violence as to awith £200 private benefaction, £200 Nyd

royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant,
patronage of the Vicar of Leeds. o

FARNLEY-TYAS, a chnzel ry in tbﬁ pﬁ'hﬂf ,'&e.—.
parish of AumoNpBURY which is in the upper division
of the wapentake of Acprice, West riding of :
of Yorxk, 4 miles (8. 8. E.) from Huddeuﬁl'ld, m
ing 900 inhabitants. - Here is a free school.’ i ik

FARNSFIELD, a pansh in the liberty ofle'tm! ;
werL and Scroosy, though locally in the wapentake
of Thurgarton, county of Norrineuam, 4 miles (N. W.
by W.) from Southwell, containing 811 inhabitants,
The living is ‘a discharged vicarage, in  the '
jurisdiction and patronage of ‘the Chapter of the Colle -
giate Church of Southwell, rated in the king's books
at £4. The church is dedicated to St. Michael. There
is-a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. = A free
school is endowed 'with a house and certain land of dhe
annual vahlae of £20.

FARNWORTH, a chapelry in the parish of Dm
hundred of Sarrorwv, county palatine <of LANcASTER,
24 miles (8. 8. E.) from Great Bolton, containing 2044
inhabitants. The chapel, a handsome structure, has been
recently erected by the Commissioners appointed under
the act for building additional churches, at an ex
of £8000. There is a place of worshipl'for ¢
dents. In this township are extensive toal and v
werks, spinning and power-loom mills, and one of
best paper manufactories in the kingdom. A
house, erected on land given by James Roscoe, in
was endowed, in 1728, with £300 by Nathan
The commissioners of enclosures, in 1798, al
tain land to the trustees of this school, and
the school-room was rebuilt ; there is also a'ho

rden for the master. An infant school,
or the children of Wesleylm Methodutlg »he
by subseription.

FARNWORTH, nchupeh'yin the pv.rish df
hundred of Wrst Derny, county palatine of
TER, 53 miles (W.) from Warri . The pop
weturned with the parish. ‘l‘helivmgha perpet






